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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This annual report contains forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-looking 
statements on our current expectations and projections about future events. Although we believe that the 
expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that such 
expectations will prove to be correct. These forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-
looking terminology, including the terms “believes,” “estimates,” “anticipates, ” “expects, ” “intends, ” “may, ” 
“will” or “should” or, in each case, their negative, or other variations or comparable terminology. These 
forward-looking statements include all matters that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places 
throughout this annual report and include statements regarding our intentions, beliefs or current expectations 
concerning, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, 
strategies and the industry in which we operate. 

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to 
events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. We caution you that forward-
looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and that our actual results of operations, our 
financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in which we operate, may differ materially 
from those made in or suggested by the forward-looking statements contained in this annual report. In addition, 
even if our results of operations, our financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in 
which we operate, are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this annual report, those 
results or developments may not be indicative of results, conditions or developments in subsequent periods. 
Important factors that could cause those differences include, but are not limited to: 

• our substantial indebtedness; 

• our ability to obtain sufficient short-term credit to finance our spot market crude oil purchases and 
long-term credit to finance our future capital expenditures; 

• volatility in refining margins and in market prices for crude oil and refined products; 

• the competitive nature of our industry; 

• operational hazards and our dependence on key refinery assets; 

• our ability to comply with existing or newly implemented environmental regimes in the countries 
in which we operate;  

• our liability for violations, known and unknown, under environmental, occupational health and 
safety, and other laws; 

• our ability to remediate contaminated sites within budgeted amounts; 

• our ability to hedge against currency, commodity and interest rate risks; 

• progress on the planning and construction of the heavy fuel oil upgrade project; 

• economic disruptions in the countries in which we, our suppliers and our customers operate; and 

• limitations on our operational flexibility arising under agreements governing our debt. 

We urge you to read the sections of this annual report entitled “Risk Factors, ” “Operating and 
Financial Review and Prospects” and “Business” for a more complete discussion of the factors that could affect 
our future performance and the industry in which we operate. In light of these risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions, the forward-looking events described in this annual report may not occur. 

All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by these 
cautionary statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or publicly revise any forward-looking 
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. All subsequent written and oral 
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forward-looking statements attributable to us or to persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their 
entirety by the cautionary statements referred to above and contained elsewhere in this annual report. 

PRESENTATION OF INFORMATION AND KEY TERMS 

We have generally obtained the market and competitive position data in this annual report from 
industry publications and from surveys or studies conducted by third party sources that we believe to be reliable, 
including the Swedish Petroleum Institute, the Swedish Statistical Central Bureau, Bloomberg, and Platts. 
Where we have sourced information from any third party, this information has been accurately reproduced and, 
as far as we are aware and are able to ascertain from information published by such third party, no facts have 
been omitted that would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.  

In addition, in many cases we have made statements in this annual report regarding our industry and 
our position in the industry based on our experience and our own investigation of market conditions. We cannot 
assure you that any of these assumptions are accurate or correctly reflect our position in the industry, and none 
of our internal surveys or information have been verified by any independent source. 

In this annual report, unless otherwise provided below: 

• “2001 Notes” refers to the issuance by Preem Holdings AB (publ), previously the parent company 
of Preem Petroleum, of 10 5/8% Senior Secured Notes due 2011 in an aggregate principal amount 
of €305 million, which have been redeemed and are no longer outstanding; 

• “2004 Notes” refers to the issuance by Preem Petroleum of 9% Senior Subordinated Notes due 
2014, which were initially issued in the aggregate principal amount of €100 million, which have 
been repurchased and are no longer outstanding or have been legally defeased; 

• “2005 Notes” refers to the issuance by Corral Investment AB (publ), previously a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Corral Petroleum Holdings, of Floating Rate Split Coupon Notes due 2010 in an 
aggregate principal amount of €410 million and $150 million, which have been redeemed and are 
no longer outstanding; 

• “2006 Credit Facility” refers to the combined SEK 7,130 million and $1,150 million revolving 
credit and term loan facility for Corral Petroleum Holdings and Preem Petroleum, respectively, 
pursuant to a facilities agreement dated June 16, 2006, among Preem Petroleum, as borrower, 
Corral Petroleum Holdings, as borrower and guarantor, Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) 
and Svenska Handelsbanken (AB) (publ), as mandated lead arrangers, certain financial institutions, 
as lenders, and SEB Merchant Banking, Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ), as facility 
agent; 

• “CMH” refers to Corral Morocco Holdings AB, previously a subsidiary of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings and now a wholly-owned subsidiary of Corral Morocco Gas & Oil; 

• “Corral Morocco Gas & Oil” refers to Corral Morocco Gas & Oil AB, a wholly-owned subsidiary 
of Moroncha Holdings; 

• “Corral Finans” refers to Corral Finans AB (publ); 

• “Corral Petroleum Holdings” refers to Corral Petroleum Holdings AB (publ), a direct, wholly-
owned subsidiary of Corral Finans, which the Company is contemplating merging with Preem 
Petroleum, the wholly-owned subsidiary of Corral Petroleum Holdings; 

• “Corral Petroleum Holdings Acquisition” refers to the purchase by Corral Finans of all the issued 
and outstanding shares of Corral Petroleum Holdings from Moroncha Holdings in exchange for 
SEK 6,500 million paid by issue of the Moroncha Note in the amount of SEK 6,500 million; 

• “EU” refers to the European Union; 
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• “Moroncha Holdings” refers to Moroncha Holdings Co. Limited, the parent company of Corral 
Finans; 

• “Moroncha Note” refers to a promissory note issued by Corral Finans to Moroncha Holdings, in 
the principal amount of SEK 6,500 million, in connection with the Corral Petroleum Holdings 
Acquisition; 

• “Notes” refers to the issuance by Corral Finans of €355 million aggregate principal amount of its 
Floating Rate Split Coupon Notes due 2010 and $350 million aggregate principal amount of its 
Floating Rate Split Coupon Notes due 2010, which are listed on the Irish Stock Exchange. 

• “Preem Holdings” refers to Preem Holdings AB (publ), previously the parent company of Preem 
Petroleum, which merged into Preem Petroleum in June 2006; 

• “Preem Petroleum” refers to Preem Petroleum AB (publ), a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Corral Petroleum Holdings; 

• “Swedish GAAP” refers to generally accepted accounting principles in Sweden; 

• “United States” or the “U.S. ” refers to the United States of America; 

• “U.S. GAAP” refers to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States; and 

• “we, ” “us, ” “our” and other similar terms refer to (i) Corral Finans and its consolidated 
subsidiaries, including Corral Petroleum Holdings and Preem Petroleum, except where the context 
otherwise requires or (ii) Corral Petroleum Holdings and its consolidated subsidiaries in relation to 
historical financial data, except where the context otherwise requires. 

In the petroleum refining industry, crude oil and refined product amounts are generally stated in cubic 
meters (“m3”) or barrels, each of which is a unit of volume, or in metric tonnes (“tons”), a unit of weight, 
depending on the product and the reason for which the amount is being measured. These volumes may be 
expressed in terms of barrels. A barrel (“bbl”) contains 42 U.S. gallons. We have converted cubic meters to 
barrels at the rate of 1 cubic meter=6.2898 barrels. 

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Unless otherwise indicated, the financial information in this annual report in relation to Corral Finans 
has been prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards, adopted pursuant to the 
procedure of Article I of Regulation (EC) No. 1606/2002 (“IFRS”) and, with respect to historical financial 
information of Corral Petroleum Holdings, has been prepared in accordance with Swedish GAAP. Swedish 
GAAP differs in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP and from IFRS.  For a discussion of the most 
significant differences between Swedish GAAP, U.S. GAAP and IFRS as they apply to us, see “Selected 
Consolidated Financial Information—Principal Differences Between IFRS and U.S. GAAP,” “Selected 
Consolidated Financial Information of Corral Petroleum Holdings—Principal Differences Between Swedish 
GAAP and U.S. GAAP,” and “Selected Consolidated Financial Information of Corral Petroleum Holdings—
Principal Differences Between Swedish GAAP and IFRS.” 

Corral Finans, a newly incorporated limited liability company, purchased all of the issued and 
outstanding shares of Corral Petroleum Holdings on March 29, 2007 in connection with the offering of the 
Notes and has an operating history of nine months. Accordingly, we believe that presenting the consolidated 
financial data (including certain unaudited pro forma data) of Corral Petroleum Holdings as of and for the years 
ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 provides more relevant data with respect to our financial position and 
results of operations. Prior to February 2006, the results of CMH, a then wholly-owned subsidiary of Corral 
Petroleum Holdings, were consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum Holdings. The business of CMH was 
independent from that of Preem Petroleum. In February 2006, Corral Petroleum Holdings sold all of the shares 
of CMH to Corral Morocco Gas & Oil, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Moroncha Holdings, in exchange for a 
promissory note from Corral Morocco Gas & Oil in the amount of SEK 3,136 million (€347 million). As a 
result, Corral Petroleum Holdings no longer owns any interest in CMH and has no liabilities relating to CMH’s 
business or its disposition. In order to present what we believe is a more informative presentation of the 
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historical performance of our business operations, we also present Corral Petroleum Holdings’ unaudited pro 
forma consolidated statements of operations data for the financial year ended December 31, 2006 in this annual 
report as if the results of operations of CMH had not been consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum Holdings 
for the years ended December 31, 2006. We present this pro forma data as we believe that this provides a more 
meaningful discussion of our business. The pro forma adjustments are based upon available information and 
certain assumptions that management believes are reasonable, although such pro forma statements are not 
prepared in a format in compliance with the rules of the SEC. The unaudited pro forma financial data do not 
purport to represent what Corral Petroleum Holdings’ results of operations or financial condition would actually 
have been had the results of operations of CMH in fact not been consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings for such years, or to project the results of operations of Corral Petroleum Holdings for any future 
period or the financial condition of Corral Petroleum Holdings or its results of operations on any future date. 

Some financial information in this annual report has been rounded and, as a result, the numerical 
figures shown as totals in this annual report may vary slightly from the exact arithmetic aggregation of the 
figures that precede them. 

CURRENCY PRESENTATION 

In this annual report: 

•  “$” or “dollar” refers to the lawful currency of the United States; 

• “€” or “euro” refers to the single currency of the participating Member States in the Third Stage of 
European Economic and Monetary Union of the Treaty Establishing the European Community, as 
amended from time to time; and 

• “SEK,” “krona” or “kronor” refers to the lawful currency of Sweden. 

EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION 

We publish our financial statements in kronor. For your convenience, this annual report presents 
translations into euro of certain krona amounts at the Swedish Central Bank’s exchange rate for the krona 
against the euro on December 31, 2007 of €1.00=SEK 9.4735. On March 31, 2008, the Swedish Central Bank’s 
exchange rate for the krona against the euro was €1.00=SEK 9.3920. The following chart shows, for the period 
from January 1, 2003 through March 31, 2008, the period end, average, high and low Swedish Central Bank 
foreign exchange reference rate for cable transfers of euro expressed as kronor per €1.00. 

 SEK per €1.00 
 

High Low 
Period 

average(1) 
Period 

end 
Year     
2003 ................................................................................................. 9.2965 8.8990 9.1250 9.0940 
2004 ................................................................................................. 9.2730 8.8920 9.1268 9.0070 
2005 ................................................................................................. 9.6490 9.0040 9.2849 9.4300 
2006 ................................................................................................. 9.4675 8.9700 9.2549 9.0500 
2007 ................................................................................................. 9.4735 9.0145 9.2481 9.4735 
Month     
October 2007 ................................................................................... 9.2175 9.1025 9.1768 9.1930 
November 2007 ............................................................................... 9.3885 9.2045 9.2845 9.3885 
December 2007................................................................................ 9.4735 9.3555 9.4239 9.4735 
January 2008.................................................................................... 9.5270 9.3660 9.4322 9.4360 
February 2008.................................................................................. 9.4675 9.2980 9.3664 9.3825 
March 2008...................................................................................... 9.4820 9.3470 9.4043 9.3920 
____________ 
 (1) The period average for 2003 to 2007 represents the average of the noon buying rates on the last business day of each month during the 

relevant period. 

On March 31, 2008, the Swedish Central Bank’s exchange rate for the krona against the dollar was 
$1.00=SEK 5.9500. The following chart shows, for the period from January 1, 2003 through March 31, 2008, 
the period end, average, high and low Swedish Central Bank foreign exchange reference rate for cable transfers 
of dollars expressed as kronor per $1.00. 
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 SEK per $1.00 
 

High Low 
Period 

average(1) 
Period 

end 
Year     
2003 ................................................................................................. 8.8000 7.2750 8.0894 7.2750 
2004 ................................................................................................. 7.7500 6.5825 7.3496 6.6125 
2005 ................................................................................................. 8.2525 6.6625 7.4775 7.9525 
2006 ................................................................................................. 7.9825 6.7925 7.3766 6.8725 
2007 ................................................................................................. 7.1125 6.2475 6.7607 6.4675 
Month     
October 2007 ................................................................................... 6.5250 6.3650 6.4533 6.3650 
November 2007 ............................................................................... 6.4025 6.2475 6.3274 6.3700 
December 2007................................................................................ 6.5950 6.3800 6.4712 6.4675 
January 2008.................................................................................... 6.6125 6.3125 6.4173 6.3575 
February 2008.................................................................................. 6.5200 6.1650 6.3526 6.1650 
March 2008...................................................................................... 6.1750 5.9475 6.0633 5.9500 
____________ 
 (1) The period average for 2003 to 2007 represents the average of the noon buying rates on the last business day of each month during the 

relevant period. 

On March 31, 2008, the Federal Reserve Bank of New York exchange rate for the euro against the 
dollar was €1.00=$1.5805. The following chart shows, for the period from January 1, 2003 through March 31, 
2008, the period end, average, high and low noon buying rate in the City of New York for cable transfers of 
euro expressed as dollars per €1.00, as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New 
York. 

 $ per €1.00 
 

High Low 
Period 

average(1) 
Period 

end 
Year     
2003 ................................................................................................. 1.2597 1.0361 1.1321 1.2597 
2004 ................................................................................................. 1.3625 1.1801 1.2438 1.3538 
2005 ................................................................................................. 1.3476 1.1667 1.2449 1.1842 
2006 ................................................................................................. 1.3327 1.1860 1.2563 1.3197 
2007 ................................................................................................. 1.4862 1.2904 1.3705 1.4603 
Month     
October 2007 ................................................................................... 1.4468 1.4092 1.4237 1.4468 
November 2007 ............................................................................... 1.4862 1.4435 1.4675 1.4688 
December 2007................................................................................ 1.4759 1.4344 1.4559 1.4603 
January 2008.................................................................................... 1.4877 1.4574 1.4728 1.4841 
February 2008.................................................................................. 1.5187 1.4495 1.4759 1.5187 
March 2008...................................................................................... 1.5805 1.5195 1.5520 1.5805 
____________ 
 (1) The period average for 2003 to 2007 represents the average of the noon buying rates on the last business day of each month during the 

relevant period. 

The rates in the above tables may differ from the actual rates used in the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements and other financial information appearing in this annual report. Our inclusion of these 
exchange rates is not meant to suggest that any amount of the currencies specified above has been, or could be, 
converted into the applicable currency at the rates indicated or any other rate. 
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RISK FACTORS 

The risk factors below are associated with our company and the Notes. You should carefully consider 
the risks and uncertainties described below. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial 
condition or results of operations could be adversely affected. We have described the risks and uncertainties that 
our management believes are material, but these risks and uncertainties may not be the only ones we face. There 
may be additional risks that we currently consider not to be material or of which we are not currently aware, and 
any of these risks could have the effects set forth above. 

Risks related to our Business 

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our operations or financial results and prevent 
us from fulfilling our debt obligations. 

As of December 31, 2007, our total debt on a consolidated basis (consisting of total long-term debt and 
total current debt) is SEK 18,209 million (€1,922 million). We also have SEK 4,682 million (€494 million) 
available under our unutilized credit facilities. Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our 
operations or financial results and could have important consequences for you. For example, such indebtedness 
could, in and of itself, and in light of the restrictive covenants included in the agreements governing the Notes 
and the 2006 Credit Facility: 

• make it more difficult for us to fulfill our obligations and agreements to which we are a party (see 
“Description of Certain Indebtedness”) and our failure to fulfill any such obligation could result in 
a default under the related obligation which could, in turn, result in a cross-default under our other 
indebtedness; 

• restrict our ability to borrow money in the future for working capital, capital expenditures, 
acquisitions or other purposes; 

• expose us to the risk of increased interest rates with respect to the debt we carry at variable interest 
rates; 

• make us more vulnerable to economic downturns and adverse developments in our business; 

• reduce our flexibility in responding to changing business and economic conditions, including 
increased competition in the oil and gas industry; and 

• limit our ability to take advantage of significant business opportunities, to respond to competitive 
pressures and to implement our business strategies. 

Prices for crude oil and refined products are subject to rapid and large fluctuations; our margins 
may be adversely affected by market conditions. 

Our results of operations from refining are influenced by the relationship between market prices for 
crude oil and refined products. We will not generate operating profit or positive cash flow from our refining 
operations unless we are able to buy crude oil and sell refined products at margins sufficient to cover the fixed 
and variable costs of our refineries. In recent years, both crude oil and refined product prices have fluctuated 
substantially. Consequently, our inventory of crude oil and refined products is exposed to fluctuations in price. 
These fluctuations have an impact on our results. During periods of rising crude oil prices, the cost of 
replenishing our crude oil inventories increases and, thus, our working capital requirements similarly increase. 
Prices of crude oil and refined products depend on numerous factors, including global and regional demand for, 
and supply of, crude oil and refined products, and regulatory, legislative and emergency actions of national, 
regional and local agencies and governments. Decreases in the supply of crude oil or the demand for refined 
product may adversely affect our liquidity and capital resources. 

Supply and demand of crude oil and refined products depend on a variety of factors. These factors 
include: 

• changes in global economic conditions, including exchange rate fluctuations; 
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• global demand for oil; 

• political stability in major oil-producing countries; 

• actions by OPEC and crude oil production levels; 

• the availability of crude oil and refined product imports; 

• worldwide inventory levels of crude oil and refined products; 

• the availability and suitability of competitive fuels; 

• the extent of government regulation, in particular, as it relates to environmental policy; 

• market imperfections caused by regional price differentials; 

• local market conditions and the level of operations of other refineries in Europe; 

• the ability of suppliers, transporters and purchasers to perform on a timely basis or at all under 
their agreements (including risks associated with physical delivery); 

• seasonal demand fluctuations; 

• expected and actual weather conditions; and 

• changes in technology. 

These external factors and the volatile nature of the energy markets make oil-refining margins volatile. 
Generally, an increase or decrease in the price of crude oil results in a corresponding increase or decrease in the 
price of refined products, although the timing and magnitude of these increases and decreases may not 
correspond. During periods of excess inventories of refined products, crude oil prices can increase significantly 
without corresponding increases in refined products prices and, in such a case, refining margins will be 
adversely affected. Differentials in the timing and magnitude of movements in crude oil and refined product 
prices could have a significant short-term impact on our refining margins and our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. 

Our business is very competitive and increased competition could adversely affect our financial 
condition and results of operations. 

Increased competition in the oil refining industry could result in a decrease in our market share or 
negatively impact on our refining margins, either of which could adversely affect our financial condition and 
results of operations. Competition is based on the ability to obtain and process crude oil and other feedstocks at 
the lowest cost, refinery efficiency, refinery product mix and product distribution. In order to remain 
competitive, we must continue to upgrade our facilities, and we must monitor shifts in product demand. Our 
supply and refining segment competes principally with, for example, AB Svenska Shell and Svenska Statoil AB, 
as well as with Neste Oil Corporation (formerly Fortum Oil), who have also recently upgraded their facilities to 
be able to process larger volumes of lower-priced, high-sulphur heavy Russian crude. Our marketing segment, 
which includes the station and consumer division through which we sell gasoline and other refined products to 
retail customers, competes primarily with Svenska Statoil AB, OK-Q8 AB, AB Svenska Shell, Norsk Hydro 
ASA and Conoco Jet Nordic AB. In 2006, our marketing segment’s gasoline sales in Sweden ranked fifth in 
market share, based on data from the Swedish Statistical Central Bureau. Our small market presence in the retail 
gasoline business has had an adverse effect on the results and prospects of our marketing segment. Due to 
competitive factors, including continuing aggressive pricing by our competitors at their retail stations, there is a 
risk that we will not be able to increase profitably our marketing segment’s share of the Swedish gasoline 
market in the future. 
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We are faced with operational hazards as well as potential interruptions that could have a material 
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. 

Our operations are subject to all of the risks normally associated with oil refining, storage, 
transportation and distribution that could result in damage to or loss of property, suspension of operations, or 
injury or death to personnel or third parties. These risks and hazards could result in damage or harm to, or 
destruction of, properties, production facilities or the environment. Any or all of these hazards, particularly an 
event that results in a shutdown not covered by insurance at either Preemraff Lysekil or Preemraff Gothenburg, 
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. We depend on the cash 
flows from production from both Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff Gothenburg; a prolonged interruption in 
production at either refinery would have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results 
of operations and cash flow. Our property, business interruption and public and product liability insurance may 
not fully cover the consequences of all property damage, business interruptions and other liabilities. In 
particular, our business interruption insurance does not cover losses for the first 40 days of interruption, on 
average, and may not cover blockades, interruption due to political circumstances in foreign countries, hostilities 
or labor strikes. Our property and liability insurance does not cover gradual environmental and other damage 
that was not the result of a sudden, unintended and unexpected insurable accident. Insurance coverage of our 
chartered vessels does not include coverage of liabilities, costs and expenses related to cargo carried on board. 
The occurrence of an event that affects operations and that is not fully covered by insurance could have a 
material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

We are subject to governmental and environmental regulations, which could expose us to fines or 
penalties or force us to modify our operations. 

We are subject to various supranational, national, regional and local environmental laws and 
regulations relating to emissions standards for, and the safe storage and transportation of, our products. We also 
are subject to EU and Swedish environmental regulations concerning refined products. Sweden has among the 
strictest environmental specifications in the EU. We are subject to strict EU environmental regulations, certain 
of which took effect on January 1, 2005. These regulations restrict the sulphur content of both gasoline and 
diesel and the aromatic content of gasoline and impose a CO2 emissions trading program. There is uncertainty 
with regard to future allocation of emission allowances within the CO2 emissions trading program. In the future, 
we may need to purchase emission allowances in order to comply with the stipulated environmental regulations. 
In addition, the EU has announced even stricter restrictions on the sulphur content of gasoline and diesel, which 
will take effect in 2009. We already produce diesel and gasoline in compliance with the EU’s 2009 
specifications. However, we may be required to incur additional capital expenditures if more stringent standards 
are implemented. We may not have sufficient funds to make the necessary capital expenditures. Failure to make 
these capital expenditures could negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

In addition, we are subject to laws and regulations relating to, among other things, the production, 
discharge, storage, treatment, handling, disposal and remediation of crude oil and refined petroleum products 
and certain materials, substances and wastes used in our operations and other decontamination and remedial 
costs. For example, new EU legislation concerning the handling and storage of chemicals (REACH) entered into 
effect on June 1, 2007, requiring companies, including us, to register and perform risk assessments in relation to 
certain regulated substances. Our failure to comply with any of these requirements, which in some cases would 
constitute a criminal offense, would subject us (including individual members of management) to fines and 
penalties and may force us to modify our operations. In addition, we need a variety of permits to conduct our 
operations. From time to time, we must obtain, comply with, expand and renew permits to operate our facilities. 
Failure to do so could subject us to civil penalties, criminal sanctions and closure of our facilities. The risk exists 
that we will be unable to obtain or renew material permits or that obtaining or renewing material permits will 
require adopting controls or conditions that would result in additional capital expenditures or increased 
operating costs. 

Changes in legislation affecting our operations or changes to the way such legislation is interpreted 
or administered may result in additional expenses, changes in our operations or fines and penalties. 

The oil refining industry and the transportation and distribution of our products is highly regulated and 
we are subject to environmental and other laws and regulations in each jurisdiction in which we operate, 
including the EU. In particular, Sweden, where both of our refineries are located, has among the strictest 
environmental specifications in the EU. Changes in legislation or regulations and actions by Swedish and other 
regulators, including changes in administration and enforcement policies, may from time to time require 
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operational improvements or modifications at, or possibly the closure of, various locations or the payment of 
fines and penalties. Generally, environmental laws and regulations affect our operations and have become and 
are becoming increasingly stringent. We cannot predict the nature, scope or effect of legislation or regulatory 
requirements that could be adopted in the future or how existing or future laws or regulations will be 
administered or interpreted in the future. Consequently, we may need to make additional and potentially 
significant expenditures in the future to comply with new or amended environmental laws and regulations. See 
“—We are subject to governmental and environmental regulations, which could expose us to fines or penalties 
or force us to modify our operations” herein. 

We are subject to occupational health and safety laws in Sweden and elsewhere, which could expose 
us to fines or penalties or force us to modify our operations. 

Our oil refining transportation and distribution activities are also subject to a wide range of 
supranational, national, regional and local occupational health and safety laws and regulations in each 
jurisdiction in which we operate. These health and safety laws change frequently, as do the priorities of those 
who enforce them. Any failure to comply with these health and safety laws could lead to criminal violations, 
civil fines and changes in the way we operate our facilities, which could increase the costs of operating our 
business. 

We may be liable for environmental damages, which could adversely affect our business or financial 
results and reduce our ability to pay interest and principal due on the Notes. 

We believe that the risk of significant environmental liability is inherent in our business. We are 
subject to risks relating to crude oil or refined product spills, discharge of hazardous materials into the soil, air 
and water, and other environmental damage. Our feedstock and refined products are shipped to and from our 
refineries in tankers that pass through environmentally sensitive areas. An oil spill from a tanker in such areas 
would have an adverse impact on the environment, and could impact our reputation and our business. In our 
industry, there is an ever-present risk of accidental discharges of hazardous materials and of the assertion of 
claims by third parties (including governmental authorities) against us for violation of applicable law and/or 
damages arising out of any past or future contamination. Environmental regulators are aware of and, in some 
cases, investigating soil and groundwater contamination at our refineries, at some of our depot sites and at some 
sites where we previously had operations, which, we believe, could lead to legal proceedings being initiated 
against us and/or third-party contractors. 

We may have to pay substantial amounts in fees and penalties, for remediation, or as compensation to 
third parties, in each case, in respect of past or future operations, acquisitions or disposals. Any amounts paid in 
fees and penalties, for remediation, or as compensation to third parties would reduce, and could eliminate, the 
funds available for paying interest or principal on the Notes and for financing our normal operations and 
planned development. 

We may be liable for environmental damage caused by previous owners of operations or properties that 
we have acquired, use or have used. We may be liable for decontamination and other remedial costs at, and in 
the vicinity of, most of the sites we operate or own and that we (and companies with which we have merged) 
have operated or owned, including following the closure or sale of, or expiration of leases for, such sites. We 
may be liable for decontamination and other remedial costs as a result of contamination caused in connection 
with the transportation and distribution of our products. In some instances, such as the closure of a number of 
our depots, we are currently unable to accurately estimate the costs of necessary remediation and may face 
significant unexpected costs, which could materially adversely affect our financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows. 

We have leased the Finnberget storage depot since 1987, and our lease agreement terminated in 
September 2001. Our lease agreement has a provision limiting our liability for any decontamination costs to a 
maximum of SEK 4 million (€0.4 million). We are in a dispute, however, with the landlord over whether this 
limitation extends to third-party claims, including claims made by governmental authorities. Both the district 
court and the Court of Appeal ruled entirely in our favor. The Court of Appeal delivered the judgment on April 
22, 2008 and the judgment comes into force on May 21, 2008 if it is not appealed. We anticipate that a petition 
for leave to appeal to the Supreme Court will not be approved. However, if a petition is granted and the 
Supreme Court does not find in our favor, we may be liable for all or part of the decontamination of this site. 
The total cost of decontamination depends on the intended future use of the site. The total estimated 
decontamination cost for future industrial use on the site has been estimated at approximately SEK 40 million 
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(€4 million). The total estimated decontamination cost for future housing has been estimated at approximately 
SEK 75 million (€8 million) to SEK 120 million (€13 million). 

Legal action by the Swedish Competition Authority, other European regulatory authorities or any 
related third-party claims may expose us to liability for fines and damages. 

We are subject to strict Swedish and European competition laws, which limit the types of supply, sales, 
marketing and cooperation arrangements we can enter into, and may subject us to fines, damages and invalidity 
of such agreements or certain provisions thereof. The competition regulations are normally subject to 
interpretation and enforcement by governmental authorities and, ultimately, by the Swedish Market Court or the 
European Court of Justice. In case of private enforcement of competition law (i.e., nullity and damages claims 
by contracting or third parties), any general court may handle those claims. 

Agreements that we enter into in the ordinary course of our business, or other aspects of our business 
practices, may be subject to challenge as restrictive of competition or abusive of a dominant market position. 
Some of our long-standing commercial arrangements may not be fully in compliance with recent interpretations 
of or changes in, competition laws, or may no longer qualify for exemptions. Any of these risks could lead to 
material fines and penalties, restrictions on our business practices, and/or nullification of our existing 
agreements with our competitors, customers and suppliers. In addition, contracting and third parties may recover 
damages resulting from competition law infringements. Given our leading position in the Swedish market, and 
the nature of the European oil refining and marketing industry, we may be more closely watched by regulators 
and/or subject to future investigations of our business conduct by European regulatory agencies or to restrictions 
not applicable to other competitors. 

The Swedish Competition Act also provides the possibility for companies and private parties to recover 
damages caused by infringements of the Swedish Competition Act, and Articles 81 and 82 of the EC Treaty, in 
which case the total amount of our liability would be uncertain. If there are court rulings against us based on 
either existing or future claims, the fines imposed or damages awarded could be material, in which case our 
financial condition and results of operation would be adversely affected. 

Given our leading position in the Swedish oil refining market and the nature of the European oil 
refining industry, we may be subject to future investigations of our business conduct by European regulatory 
agencies. The right to damages under the Swedish Competition Act lapses if no action is brought within ten 
years from the date when the damage was incurred. However, for damages incurred prior to August 1, 2005, the 
limitation period is five years. 

Certain of our borrowings bear interest at floating rates that could rise significantly, increasing our 
interest cost and debt and reducing our cash flow. 

Borrowings under the 2006 Credit Facility bear interest at per annum rates equal to EURIBOR, LIBOR 
or STIBOR, adjusted periodically, plus a spread. The Notes will bear interest at per annum rates equal to 
EURIBOR or LIBOR, adjusted periodically, plus a spread. These interest rates could rise significantly in the 
future, increasing our interest expense associated with these obligations and thus our debt, reducing cash flow 
available for capital expenditures and hindering our ability to make payments on the Notes. 

We are exposed to currency fluctuations, which could adversely affect our financial results, liquidity 
and ability to pay interest and principal due on the Notes. 

Our crude oil purchases are primarily denominated in dollars. Our revenues are primarily denominated 
in dollars and kronor. We publish our financial statements in kronor. As of December 31, 2007, our krona-
denominated, fixed-rate indebtedness totaled SEK 2,899 million (€306 million) and our krona-denominated, 
variable-rate indebtedness totaled SEK 6,121 million (€646 million). As of December 31, 2007, our dollar-
denominated, fixed-rate indebtedness totaled $255 million and our dollar-denominated, variable-rate 
indebtedness totaled $634 million. As of December 31, 2007, our euro-denominated, variable-rate indebtedness 
totaled €361 million. As a result, fluctuations of these currencies against each other or against other currencies 
in which we do business or have indebtedness could have a material adverse effect on our financial results. We 
primarily use forward exchange contracts and, to a lesser extent, currency swaps to manage our foreign currency 
risk. Present or future management of foreign exchange risk may not be adequate and exchange rate fluctuations 
may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. See “Operating 
and Financial Review and Prospects—Fluctuations in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates.” 
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We engage in hedging activities from time to time that could expose us to losses should markets 
move against our hedged position. 

Changes in the price of commodities, such as crude oil, can affect our cost of goods sold and the price 
of our refined products. Commodity price changes can also trigger a price effect on inventory, which can affect 
our revenues, gross profit and operating income. We enter into commodity derivative contracts from time to 
time to manage our price exposure for our inventory positions and our purchases of foreign crude oil in the 
refining process, and to fix margins on certain future production. On occasion, we also enter into certain 
derivative contracts that are classified as “speculative” transactions. 

To the extent these derivative contracts protect us against fluctuations in oil prices, they do so only for 
a limited period of time. Derivative contracts can also result in a reduction in possible revenue if the contract 
price is less than the market price at the time of settlement. Moreover, our decision to enter into a given contract 
is based upon market assumptions. If these assumptions are not met, significant losses or lost opportunities for 
significant gains may result. In all, the use of derivative contracts may result in significant losses or prevent us 
from realizing the positive impact of any subsequent fluctuation in the price of oil. See “Operating and Financial 
Review and Prospects—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.” 

Given the highly specialized and technical nature of our business, we depend on key management 
personnel that we may not be able to replace if they leave our company. 

Our industry and our specific operations are highly specialized and technical and require a management 
team with industry-specific knowledge and experience. Our continued success is highly dependent on the 
personal efforts and abilities of our executive officers and refining managers, who have trained and worked in 
the oil refining industry for many years. Our operations and financial condition could be adversely affected if 
any of our executive officers become unable to continue in or devote adequate time to their present roles, or if 
we are unable to attract and retain other skilled management personnel. 

We may be exposed to economic disruptions in the various countries in which we operate and in 
which our suppliers and customers are located, which could adversely affect our operations, tax treatment 
under foreign laws and our financial results. 

Although we operate primarily in Sweden, our operations extend beyond Sweden. Through our supply 
and refining segment, we export refined products to certain countries in northwestern Europe, including 
Scandinavia, the United Kingdom, Germany, and the United States and, to a lesser extent, other markets. 
Additionally, we purchase the crude oil that we refine predominantly from Russia and the North Sea area. 
Accordingly, we are subject to legal, economic and market risks associated with operating internationally, 
purchasing crude oil and supplies from other countries and selling refined products to them. These risks include: 

• interruption of crude oil supply; 

• devaluations and fluctuations in currency exchange rates; 

• imposition of limitations on conversion of foreign currencies or remittance of dividends and other 
payments by our foreign subsidiaries; 

• imposition or increase of withholding and other taxes on remittances by foreign subsidiaries; 

• imposition or increase of investment and other restrictions by foreign governments; 

• failure to comply with a wide variety of foreign laws; and 

• unexpected changes in regulatory environments and government policies. 

It is difficult to compare our results of operations from period to period, which may result in 
misleading or inaccurate financial indicators and data relating to our business. 

It is difficult to make period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations as a result, among other 
things, of changes in our business, fluctuations in crude oil and refined product prices, which are denominated in 
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dollars, and fluctuations in our capital expenditures, which are primarily denominated in kronor. As a result, our 
results of operations from period to period are subject to currency exchange rate fluctuations, in addition to 
typical period-to-period fluctuations. In addition, we hold large inventories of crude oil and refined products. 
Fluctuations in oil prices have a direct effect on the valuation of our inventory and these fluctuations may 
impact our results for a given period. For these reasons, a period-to-period comparison of our results of 
operations may not be meaningful. 

Terrorist attacks and threats of war and actual conflict may negatively impact our business. 

Terrorist attacks, events occurring in response to terrorist attacks, rumors, threats of war and actual 
conflict may adversely impact our suppliers, our customers and oil markets generally and disrupt our operations. 
Energy-related assets, including oil refineries like ours, may be at greater risk of terrorist attack than other 
targets. It is possible that occurrences of terrorist attacks or the threat of war or actual conflict could result in 
government-imposed price controls. 

Risks related to the Notes and our Capital Structure 

Corral Finans is a holding company with no revenue generating operations of its own. We depend 
on the ability of our subsidiaries to distribute cash to us. 

Corral Finans is a holding company. As a holding company, to meet its debt service and other 
obligations, Corral Finans is dependent upon dividends, permitted repayment of intercompany debt, if any, and 
other transfers of funds from Corral Petroleum Holdings or equity contributions from its parent company, 
Moroncha Holdings. As of the date of this annual report substantially all of Corral Finans’ assets consist of 
100% of the share capital of Corral Petroleum Holdings. 

Because the cash component of the interest payable on the Notes is based on a margin above 
EURIBOR with respect to the euro denominated Notes and U.S. LIBOR with respect to dollar denominated 
Notes, the amounts required for each cash interest payment will be variable and will rise in the event that 
EURIBOR and U.S. LIBOR rise. For this reason, there is less certainty as to the ability of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings and Preem Petroleum to generate adequate net income to ensure that a sufficient amount of cash can 
be distributed or otherwise transferred from Preem Petroleum to Corral Petroleum Holdings, and from Corral 
Petroleum Holdings to Corral Finans in order for Corral Finans to service the required cash component of the 
interest on the Notes. 

Until Corral Petroleum Holdings is able to repay or prepay specified amounts under the 2006 Credit 
Facility, it may not expend any cash, declare any dividends or otherwise transfer any funds to Corral Finans. In 
addition, Corral Petroleum Holdings may not expend any cash, declare any dividends or otherwise transfer any 
funds to Corral Finans unless it can maintain certain financial ratios and is otherwise not in default under the 
2006 Credit Facility. See “Description of Certain Indebtedness—2006 Credit Facility.” Furthermore, even if 
Preem Petroleum or Corral Petroleum Holdings are otherwise able to dividend moneys upstream, we may 
nevertheless choose to pay down amounts outstanding under the 2006 Credit Facility for tax optimization 
reasons. In other words, Preem Petroleum or Corral Petroleum Holdings may choose not to pay the maximum 
dividend allowable under these restrictions. 

Additional restrictions on the distribution of cash to Corral Finans arise from, among other things, 
applicable corporate and other laws and regulations and by the terms of other agreements to which Corral 
Petroleum Holdings is or may become subject. Under Swedish law, Corral Petroleum Holdings may only pay a 
dividend to the extent that it has positive net equity according to its adopted balance sheet in its latest annual 
report; provided, however, that the distribution of profits may not be made in any amount which, given due 
consideration to the financing needs of Corral Petroleum Holdings or the group, including the liquidity or 
financial position of Corral Petroleum Holdings and the group, would contravene sound business principles. 

As a result of the above, Corral Finans’ ability to service cash interest payments or other cash needs is 
considerably restricted. Currently, Corral Petroleum Holdings would not be permitted to pay a dividend. Given 
our current business and tax planning, it is unlikely that this situation will change significantly. If Corral 
Petroleum Holdings is unable to pay dividends or otherwise transfer funds to Corral Finans and if equity 
contributions from Corral Finans’ parent company, Moroncha Holdings, are not forthcoming, then Corral Finans 
will be unable to satisfy its obligations to pay interest on the Notes and will be required to refinance those 
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obligations to avoid default. We can provide no assurance that Corral Finans will be able to obtain the necessary 
funds from Corral Petroleum Holdings or Moroncha Holdings, or that it will be able to refinance its obligations. 

Our ability to generate cash depends on many factors beyond our control and, if we do not have 
enough cash to satisfy our obligations, we may be required to refinance all or part of our existing debt. 

Our ability to meet our expenses and service our debt, including the payment of principal and interest 
on the Notes, depends particularly on the future performance of Preem Petroleum, our principal operating 
subsidiary, which is affected by financial, business, economic and other factors. We are not able to control many 
of these factors, such as economic conditions in the markets in which we operate and competitive pressures. The 
money generated from our subsidiaries’ operations may not be sufficient to allow Preem Petroleum and Corral 
Petroleum Holdings to make payments under the 2006 Credit Facility, which payments are required before they 
will be permitted to make dividend or other payments to Corral Finans, which, in turn, needs to pay principal 
and interest on the Notes and to meet other obligations. In addition, tax and other considerations may effectively 
limit our ability to dividend funds from Preem Petroleum to Corral Petroleum Holdings in an amount sufficient 
to make the payments under the 2006 Credit Facility that are necessary to permit us to make further dividend 
payments to Corral Finans. Any amounts not repaid in any given year under the 2006 Credit Facility must be 
repaid in subsequent years before Corral Petroleum Holdings will be permitted to make dividends or other 
payments to Corral Finans. If we do not have enough money, we may be required to refinance all or part of our 
existing debt, sell assets or borrow more money. If such a scenario were to occur, we may not be able to 
refinance our debt, sell assets or borrow more money on terms acceptable to us or at all. In addition, the terms of 
existing or future debt agreements, or potential joint venture, partnership or other alliance agreements, may 
restrict us from adopting any of these alternatives. 

The Notes are effectively subordinated to our subsidiaries’ debt and other liabilities. 

As of March 31, 2008, Corral Finans has total consolidated debt (consisting of long-term debt and total 
current debt) of SEK 16,786 million (€1,772 million), of which SEK 11,221 million (€1,184 million) has been 
borrowed through wholly-owned subsidiaries. Generally, creditors of a subsidiary will have a claim on the 
assets and earnings of that subsidiary superior to that of creditors of its parent company, except to the extent that 
the claims of the parent’s creditors are guaranteed by a subsidiary. 

In the event of any bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization or similar proceeding relating to any of 
Corral Finans’ subsidiaries, holders of their indebtedness and their trade creditors will generally be entitled to 
payment of their claims from the assets of those subsidiaries before any assets are made available for 
distribution to Corral Finans. The Notes, therefore, are structurally subordinated to creditors of all direct and 
indirect subsidiaries of Corral Finans. 

The 2006 Credit Facility is secured by a pledge of all outstanding shares of capital stock of Preem 
Petroleum. 

Our obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility are secured by a pledge of all outstanding shares of 
capital stock of Preem Petroleum. In the event of a default under the 2006 Credit Facility, if the lenders enforce 
their security over these shares, we would no longer control our operating company and would lose the power to 
have dividends declared and paid to us. Were that to happen, we can make no assurances that we would be able 
to meet our obligations under the Notes. 

The Notes and the 2006 Credit Facility contain a number of restrictive covenants; we may be unable 
to repay or repurchase the Notes. 

Our ability to comply with the restrictive covenants set forth in the Indenture governing the Notes, and 
the restrictive covenants set forth in the 2006 Credit Facility, may be affected by events beyond our control and 
we may not be able to meet these obligations. A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default under 
the Indenture or the 2006 Credit Facility and, potentially, an acceleration of our obligation to repay the Notes or 
amounts outstanding under the 2006 Credit Facility. 

At maturity, the entire outstanding principal amount of the Notes, together with accrued and unpaid 
interest, will become due and payable. In addition, if Corral Finans experiences a change of control, as defined 
in the indenture pursuant to which the Notes were issued, each holder of the Notes may require Corral Finans to 
repurchase all or a portion of that holder’s Notes. At maturity, or if a Change of Control occurs, we may not 
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have the funds to fulfill our obligations and may not be able to arrange for additional financing. If the maturity 
date or change of control or other obligation to offer to purchase the Notes occurs at a time when other 
arrangements prohibit us from repaying or repurchasing the Notes, we would try to obtain waivers of such 
prohibitions from the lenders under those arrangements, or we could attempt to refinance the borrowings that 
contain the restrictions. If we could not obtain the waivers or refinance these borrowings, we would be unable to 
repay or repurchase the Notes. Our failure to repay or repurchase the Notes would be an event of default under 
the Indenture and would, therefore, have a material adverse effect on us. 

Corral Finans and its subsidiaries, including Corral Petroleum Holdings, may be able to incur 
substantially more debt, which could further exacerbate the risks described above. 

Preem Petroleum and Corral Petroleum Holdings are borrowers and Corral Petroleum Holdings is the 
guarantor under the 2006 Credit Facility. In addition, although the agreements governing many of our financing 
arrangements contain restrictions on the incurrence of additional debt, these restrictions are subject to a number 
of significant qualifications and exceptions. Thus, we and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial 
additional debt, including secured debt. Any future indebtedness of Corral Petroleum Holdings, Preem Petroleum 
or any other subsidiaries of Corral Finans will be senior in right of payments relative to the Notes. Any 
additional secured indebtedness will be effectively senior in right of payment to the Notes to the extent of the 
value of such security. In addition, to the extent we incur additional indebtedness, the substantial leverage risks 
described above would increase. 

We are controlled by one shareholder whose interests as they relate to us may conflict with the 
interests of the noteholders. 

All of the share capital of Corral Finans is owned by Moroncha Holdings, and all of the share capital of 
Moroncha Holdings is owned by Mr. Mohammed Hussein Al-Amoudi. Our board of directors consists of 
designees of Moroncha Holdings, whose board of directors consists of designees of Mr. Al-Amoudi. Mr. Al-
Amoudi is also the Chairman of the board of directors of Corral Petroleum Holdings and Preem Petroleum. As a 
result, Mr. Al-Amoudi indirectly controls our operations and has the power to approve any action requiring 
shareholder approval (including adopting amendments to our articles of association and approving mergers or 
sales of all or substantially all of our assets). It is possible that the interests of Moroncha Holdings and Mr. Al-
Amoudi, including as shareholders of Corral Finans, may conflict with the interests of the noteholders. 

If we incur substantial operating losses or a reduction in the value of our assets, we may be subject 
to liquidation under Swedish law, which would severely restrict our ability to meet our debt obligations. 

In light of the several possible risks to our business discussed herein, we may record losses that would 
reduce our share capital. To the extent these reductions are substantial, we would need to take measures to avoid 
liquidation. Such measures could include, among other things, raising more equity from Mr. Al-Amoudi, who is 
under no obligation to contribute more equity. Losses to our share capital may lead to our liquidation under 
Swedish law, which would constitute an event of default under the Indenture related to the Notes. 

Under Swedish law, whenever there is reason to assume that, as a result of losses or reductions in the 
value of our assets, or the assets of any of our subsidiaries, or any other event, our equity, or the equity of any of 
our subsidiaries, is less than half the registered share capital, the board of directors of such company shall 
without delay prepare a special balance sheet (kontrollbalansräkning) and have the auditors examine it. The same 
obligation arises if we or such subsidiary in connection with a seizure pursuant to Chapter 4 of the Debt 
Recovery Act (utsökningsbalken) is found to lack seizable assets. If the special balance sheet shows that the 
equity of the company is less than half of the registered share capital, the board of directors shall refer the issue 
of the liquidation of the company to the general meeting of shareholders as soon as possible. Unless a general 
meeting of shareholders within eight months from the reference approves a balance sheet, examined by the 
auditors, as at the date of the shareholders meeting showing that the equity of the company amounts to the 
registered share capital, the board of directors shall, unless the shareholders meeting resolves to liquidate the 
company, apply to the district court for an order of the liquidation of the company. 
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Swedish insolvency laws differ from U.S. insolvency laws and your rights as our creditor may not be 
as strong under Swedish insolvency laws, which, in the event of our insolvency, may result in your claims 
remaining unsatisfied. 

In any main insolvency proceedings initiated in Sweden against us, the insolvency laws of Sweden 
would normally apply to us. Under Swedish law, there is no consolidation in bankruptcies of the assets and 
liabilities of a group of companies. Each individual company would thus be treated separately by a bankruptcy 
administrator appointed by the local district court. The assets of our subsidiaries, including the shares of Preem 
Petroleum, would first be used to satisfy the debts of each respective subsidiary and only the surplus (if any) 
remaining of a subsidiary would benefit the creditors of its parent company. As a result, your ability to protect 
your interests as potential creditors of a parent of such subsidiary may not be as strong under Swedish law as it 
would be under U.S. law. 

Rules of recovery under Swedish law may protect other creditors to your disadvantage. 

Under Swedish law relating to recovery, it is possible that other creditors may claim that payments 
under the Notes should be voided as recoverable transactions. Under Swedish law, in the case of bankruptcy or 
company reorganization proceedings affecting Corral Finans, payments under the Notes (of principal or interest 
or otherwise) that are made less than three months before the application for bankruptcy or company 
reorganization proceedings is filed with the competent court may, in certain circumstances, be recovered if the 
payment is carried out: 

• using unusual means of payment; 

• prematurely; or 

• in an amount that has caused a material deterioration of the debtor’s financial position. 

Payments that are deemed to be customary, having regard to the circumstances, are, however, 
permissible. It should be noted that this recovery provision also applies to any set-off if the creditor was not 
entitled to set-off in the debtor’s bankruptcy. 

Under Swedish law relating to recovery, any security granted may be recovered if (i) it was not 
provided for at the time the debt was created or if it was not transferred to the secured party without delay 
following the creation of such debt unless the security can nevertheless be considered ordinary having regard to 
the circumstances and (ii) it was transferred less than three months before the application for bankruptcy or 
reorganization. Should the secured party be considered to be closely related to the grantor, the relevant time 
period is less than two years before the application for bankruptcy or reorganization, but in that case the security 
will be recovered unless it is shown that the grantor was not, and did not by that measure become, insolvent. 

A Swedish court could also determine that a recoverable transaction has taken place under the general 
provision on recovery whereby a payment under the Notes could be revoked if an agreement, transaction or 
other act, such as the issuance of the Notes is held to favor a creditor in an undue manner to the detriment of 
another creditor or to transfer property out of reach of the creditors or to increase the debt to the detriment of the 
creditors, provided that: 

• the debtor was insolvent at the time the agreement, transaction or other act was concluded or the 
debtor became insolvent as a result of the transaction, by itself or combined with other 
circumstances; and 

• the other party knew or should have known of the insolvency, as well as of the circumstances due to 
which the payment under the Notes favored a creditor in an undue manner. 

However, under Swedish law, if such an agreement, transaction or other act is concluded earlier than 
five years before the application for bankruptcy or company reorganization was filed, the payment under the 
Notes could be revoked only if the party to the agreement, transaction or other act was someone related to the 
bankrupt or reorganized party, such as a group company. 
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Under Swedish law, a gift may be recovered by the bankruptcy estate if it has been made within six 
months prior to the date of application for bankruptcy or reorganization. A gift that has been given before this, 
but within one year prior to the date of application (or three years if effected to a related party) may be 
recovered unless it can be shown that the debtor after the gift retained assets that could be the subject of 
execution (utmätningsbar egendom) and which clearly covered its debts. A sale or an assignment at undervalue 
may be regarded as a gift for the purposes of this recovery provision if the consideration is such that the 
transaction entails an obvious gift element. 
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CAPITALIZATION 

The following table sets out the historic consolidated capitalization and cash and cash equivalents of 
Corral Finans, determined in accordance with IFRS, and the consolidated capitalization and cash and cash 
equivalents of Corral Petroleum Holdings, determined in accordance with Swedish GAAP, as of December 31, 
2007. You should read this table in conjunction with the audited annual consolidated financial statements and 
the related notes, of each of Corral Finans and Corral Petroleum Holdings, which are included elsewhere in this 
annual report, and the information set out in “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects.” 

 As of December 31, 2007 
 

Corral Finans 
Corral Petroleum 

Holdings 

 SEK €(1) SEK €(1) 
 (in millions) 
Cash and cash equivalents.................................................... 835 88 591 62 
Total current debt(2)................................................................. 2,838 300 2,838 300 
Total long-term debt(3) ........................................................... 15,371 1,623 9,642 1,018 
Total debt................................................................................ 18,209 1,922 12,480 1,317 
Total parent company shareholders’ equity ............................ (1,251) (132) 4,099 433 
Total capitalization(4) ............................................................ 16,958 1,790 16,579 1,750 
____________ 
(1) We have translated kronor into euro at the rate of €1.00=SEK 9.4735 (the exchange rate on December 31, 2007). We have provided 

this translation solely for your convenience. The exchange rate on March 31, 2008, was €1.00=SEK 9.3920. 

(2) Total current debt is represented in the audited annual consolidated financial statements of Corral Finans and Corral Petroleum 
Holdings under current liabilities as “Liabilities to credit institutions.” 

(3) Total long-term debt includes amounts under a bank overdraft facility that is categorized as long-term debt under Swedish GAAP. 

(4) Total capitalization represents total debt (including current debt) and total shareholders’ equity. 

There has been no material change to the capitalization of Corral Finans since December 31, 2007. 



 

 13 
 

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The selected consolidated historical financial data in this section have been derived from the audited 
consolidated financial statements of Corral Finans, as of and for the period ended December 31, 2007. The 
audited financial statements of Corral Finans have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, and have been 
audited by KPMG Bohlins AB, independent accountants. IFRS differs in certain significant respects from U.S. 
GAAP. 

The principal assets of Corral Finans as of December 31, 2007 consisted of 100% of the outstanding 
shares of Corral Petroleum Holdings.  The principal liabilities of Corral Finans as of December 31, 2007 
consisted of the Notes and the outstanding debt of Corral Petroleum Holdings. You should read the data below 
in conjunction with the Corral Finans audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes, which are 
included elsewhere in the annual report. 

Corral Finans, which was formed on March 13, 2007, purchased all of the issued and outstanding 
shares of Corral Petroleum Holdings from Moroncha Holdings on March 29, 2007 and has an operating history 
of only nine months. Accordingly, we believe that presenting the financial data (including certain unaudited pro 
forma data) of Corral Petroleum Holdings as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 provides 
more relevant data with respect to our financial position and results of operations. See “Selected Consolidated 
Financial Information of Corral Petroleum Holdings” and the Corral Petroleum Holdings audited financial 
statements and related notes included elsewhere in this annual report. 
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 Corral Finans 
 March 13– 

December 31, 2007 
  

SEK 
 

€(2) 
 (in millions) 
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data: (1)   

Revenues:........................................................................................................................ 55,828 5,893 
Excise duties ................................................................................................................... (5,817) (614) 
   
Sales revenue ................................................................................................................. 50,011 5,279 
Cost of goods sold........................................................................................................... (46,195) (4,876) 
   
Gross profit.................................................................................................................... 3,816 403 
Other operating income................................................................................................... 295 31 
Selling expenses.............................................................................................................. (521) (55) 
Administrative expenses ................................................................................................. (292) (31) 
   
Operating income .......................................................................................................... 3,298 348 
Interest income................................................................................................................ 149 16 
Other financial income(3) ................................................................................................. (9) (1) 
Interest expense............................................................................................................... (1,178) (124) 
Other financial expense(4) ............................................................................................... 333 35 
   
Income before taxes....................................................................................................... 2,593 274 
Income taxes ................................................................................................................... (820) (87) 
   
Net profit........................................................................................................................ 1,773 187 

   
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:   

Cash and cash equivalents............................................................................................... 835 88 
Total tangible fixed assets, net ........................................................................................ 10,244 1,081 
Total assets...................................................................................................................... 28,575 3,016 
Total current debt ............................................................................................................ 2,838 300 
Total long-term debt........................................................................................................ 15,371 1,623 
Minority interests ............................................................................................................ 9 1 
Parent Company Shareholders’ equity ............................................................................ (1,251) (132) 

   
Other Financial Data:   

EBITDA(5) ....................................................................................................................... 4,015 424 
Depreciation and amortization ........................................................................................ 717 76 
Total interest expense...................................................................................................... 1,178 124 
Capital expenditure ......................................................................................................... 1,408 149 
Cash flow from operating activity................................................................................... 2,195 232 

____________ 
(1) Corral Finans was formed on March 13, 2007. However, Corral Petroleum Holdings’ income and expenses are reported in the 

consolidated accounts from April 1, 2007, the date of the acquisition of Corral Finans by Corral Petroleum Holdings (which is also the 
time when controlling influence arises). 

(2) We have translated kronor into euro at the rate of €1.00=SEK 9.4735 (the exchange rate on December 31, 2007). We have provided 
this translation solely for your convenience. 

(3) Other financial income includes exchange rate gains and losses and miscellaneous financial income. 

(4) Other financial expense includes exchange rate losses and miscellaneous expenses. 

(5) EBITDA, which we define to mean operating income before depreciation and amortization, is a non-IFRS, non-GAAP financial 
measure of liquidity and should not be considered as a substitute for operating earnings, net profit, cash flows from operating activities 
or other statements of operations or cash flow data computed in accordance with IFRS or U.S. GAAP. We believe that EBITDA 
provides useful information to investors because it is a measure of cash flow and an indicator of our ability to finance our operations, 
capital expenditures and other investments and our ability to incur and service debt. Funds depicted by this measure may not be 
available for management’s discretionary use or for service of payment of interest or principle on our outstanding indebtedness. 
Because all companies do not calculate EBITDA identically, the presentation of EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly entitled 
measures of other companies.  
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Principal Differences Between IFRS and U.S. GAAP  

Pensions 

Under IFRS, accounting for pensions is made in accordance with IAS 19. The FASB issued SFAS No. 
158 “Employers’ accounting for defined benefit pension and other post-retirement plans” in September 2006. 
SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the funded status of pension and other post-retirement plans 
(other than a multi-employer plan) as an asset or liability in its statement of financial position and to recognize 
changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income. The same 
accounting treatment is available as one of the options under IAS 19, but the Company has not elected that 
option. 

Reconciliation of EBITDA 

The following table presents a reconciliation of net income to EBITDA. EBITDA is a non-IFRS, non-
GAAP financial measure of liquidity and should not be considered as a substitute for operating earnings, net 
profit, cash flows from operating activities or other statements of operations or cash flow data computed in 
accordance with IFRS or U.S. GAAP. We believe that EBITDA provides useful information to investors 
because it is a measure of cash flow and an indicator of our ability to finance our operations, capital 
expenditures and other investments and our ability to incur and service debt. Funds depicted by this measure 
may not be available for management’s discretionary use or for service of payment of interest or principal on 
our outstanding indebtedness. Because all companies do not calculate EBITDA identically, the presentation of 
EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly entitled measures of other companies. EBITDA is also calculated 
differently from Consolidated EBITDA for purposes of various covenants applicable to us under the Indenture 
governing the Notes. 

 Corral Finans 
 March 13– 

December 31, 2007(1) 
  

SEK 
 

€(2) 
 (in millions) 
   
Net income ....................................................................................................................  1,773 187 
Add back:   

Income tax...................................................................................................................  820 87 
   
Income before taxes .....................................................................................................  2,593 274 
Adjustments for:   

Depreciation and amortization ....................................................................................  717 76 
Other financial expense...............................................................................................  (333) (35) 
Interest expense...........................................................................................................  1,178 124 
Financial income .........................................................................................................  (140) (15) 

EBITDA ..................................................................................................................................  4,015 424 
____________ 
(1) Corral Finans was formed on March 13, 2007. However, Corral Petroleum Holdings’ income and expenses are reported in the 

consolidated accounts from April 1, 2007, the date of the acquisition of Corral Finans by Corral Petroleum Holdings (which is also the 
time when controlling influence arises). 

(2) We have translated kronor into euro at the rate of €1.00=SEK 9.4735 (the exchange rate on December 31, 2007). We have provided 
this translation solely for your convenience. 
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF CORRAL PETROLEUM 
HOLDINGS 

The selected consolidated historical financial data in this section have been derived from the audited 
annual consolidated financial statements of Corral Petroleum Holdings, as of and for the years ended December 
31, 2006 and 2007. The audited financial statements of Corral Petroleum Holdings have been prepared in 
accordance with Swedish GAAP, and have been audited by KPMG Bohlins AB, independent accountants. 
Swedish GAAP differs in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP and IFRS. Corral Finans, a newly 
formed limited liability company, purchased all of the issued and outstanding shares of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings from Moroncha Holdings on March 29, 2007 and has an operating history of only nine months. 
Accordingly, we believe that presenting the financial data (including certain unaudited pro forma data) of Corral 
Petroleum Holdings as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 provides more relevant data 
with respect to our financial position and results of operations. 

Prior to February 2006, the results of CMH, a then wholly-owned subsidiary of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings, were consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum Holdings. The business of CMH was independent 
from that of Preem Petroleum. In February 2006, Corral Petroleum Holdings sold all of the shares of CMH to 
Corral Morocco Gas & Oil, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Moroncha Holdings, in exchange for a promissory 
note from Corral Morocco Gas & Oil in the amount of SEK 3,136 million (€331 million). As a result, Corral 
Petroleum Holdings no longer owns any interest in CMH and has no liabilities relating to CMH’s business or its 
disposition. In order to present what we believe is a more informative presentation of the historical performance 
of our business operations, we also present Corral Petroleum Holdings’ unaudited pro forma consolidated 
statements of operations data for the financial year ended December 31, 2006 in this annual report as if the 
results of operations of CMH had not been consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum Holdings for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. We present this pro forma data as we believe that this provides a more meaningful 
discussion of our business. It has not been practicable to prepare full pro forma consolidated balance sheets or 
cash flow statements for Corral Petroleum Holdings on a similar basis. The pro forma adjustments are based 
upon available information and certain assumptions that management believes are reasonable, although such pro 
forma statement is not prepared in a format in compliance with the rules of the SEC. The unaudited pro forma 
financial data do not purport to represent what Corral Petroleum Holdings’ results of operations or financial 
condition would actually have been had the results of operations of CMH in fact not been consolidated with 
those of Corral Petroleum Holdings for such years, or to project the results of operations of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings for any future period or the financial condition of Corral Petroleum Holdings or its results of 
operations on any future date. See “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects” and the Corral Petroleum 
Holdings audited financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this annual report. 

The principal assets of Corral Petroleum Holdings as of December 31, 2007 consisted of 100% of the 
outstanding shares of Preem Petroleum. The principal liabilities of Corral Petroleum Holdings as of December 
31, 2007 consisted of consolidated debt under the 2006 Credit Facility in the aggregate amount of SEK 10,612 
million. You should read the data below in conjunction with the Corral Petroleum Holdings audited annual 
consolidated financial statements and the related notes, which are included elsewhere in this annual report. 
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Corral 
Petroleum 
Holdings 

Pro Forma 
ex-CMH 
Corral 

Petroleum 
Holdings(1) 

Corral Petroleum 
Holdings 

 

Year ended 
December 

31, 

(Unaudited)
Year ended 
December 

31, 
Year ended 

December 31, 

 
2006 
SEK 

2006 
SEK 

2007 
SEK 

2007 
€(2) 

 (in millions, except ratios and share data) 
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:     

Revenues:.................................................................. 77,187 75,459 71,652 7,563 
Excise duties ............................................................. (8,024) (8,024) (7,738) (817) 
     
Sales revenue ........................................................... 69,163 67,435 63,914 6,747 
Cost of goods sold..................................................... (65,842) (64,303) (59,402) (6,270) 
     
Gross profit.............................................................. 3,321 3,132 4,512 476 
Selling expenses........................................................ (714) (710) (677) (71) 
Administrative expenses ........................................... (554) (540) (512) (54) 
Other operating income............................................. (436) 393 386 41 
     
Operating income .................................................... 1,617 2,275 3,709 392 
Interest income.......................................................... 194 193 186 20 
Other financial income(3) ........................................... (20) (22) (1) (0.1) 
Interest expense......................................................... (1,578) (1,575) (963) (102) 
Other financial expense(4) ......................................... 747 752 183 19 
     
Income before taxes................................................. 960 1,623 3,114 329 
Income taxes ............................................................. (551) (503) (911) (96) 
Minority interests ...................................................... (43) (2) (2) (0.2) 
     
Net income ............................................................... 366 1,118 2,201 232 

     
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:     

Cash and cash equivalents......................................... 1,285  591 62 
Total tangible fixed assets, net .................................. 9,576  10,122 1,068 
Total assets................................................................ 25,732  28,362 2,994 
Total current debt ...................................................... 664  2,838 300 
Total long-term debt(5)............................................... 12,546  9,642 1,018 
Minority interests ...................................................... 8  9 0.9 
Shareholders’ equity.................................................. 1,898  4,099 433 

     
Other Financial Data:     

EBITDA(6) ................................................................. 2,719 3,377 4,789 506 
Depreciation and amortization .................................. 1,102 1,102 1,080 114 
Total interest expense................................................ 1,578 1,575 963 102 
Capital expenditure ................................................... 831 831 1,562 165 
Cash flow from operating activity............................. 4,437 4,437 1,353 143 
Total Corral Petroleum Holdings debt ...................... 6,540 6,540 5,685 600 
Total debt(7) ............................................................... 13,210 13,210 12,480 1,317 

____________ 
 (1) The Corral Petroleum Holdings’ unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of operations data for the financial years ended 

December 31, 2006 are presented as if the results of operations of CMH had not been consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings for the years ended December 31, 2006. 

(2) We have translated kronor into euro at the rate of €1.00=SEK 9.4735 (the exchange rate on December 31, 2007). We have provided 
this translation solely for your convenience. 

(3) Other financial income includes exchange rate gains and losses and miscellaneous financial income. 

(4) Other financial expense includes exchange rate gains and losses and miscellaneous expenses. 

(5) Total long-term debt excludes the current portion of long-term debt, but includes amounts under bank overdraft facilities that are 
categorized as long-term debt under Swedish GAAP and other long-term liabilities. 
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(6) EBITDA, which we define to mean operating income before depreciation and amortization, is a non-GAAP financial measure of 
liquidity and should not be considered as a substitute for operating earnings, net profit, cash flows from operating activities or other 
statements of operations or cash flow data computed in accordance with Swedish or U.S. GAAP. We believe that EBITDA provides 
useful information to investors because it is a measure of cash flow and an indicator of our ability to finance our operations, capital 
expenditures and other investments and our ability to incur and service debt. While depreciation and amortization are considered 
operating costs under Swedish GAAP, these expenses primarily represent the non-cash current period allocation of costs associated 
with long-lived assets acquired or constructed in prior periods. Funds depicted by this measure may not be available for management’s 
discretionary use or for service of payment of interest or principle on our outstanding indebtedness. Because all companies do not 
calculate EBITDA identically, the presentation of EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly entitled measures of other companies. 
EBITDA is also calculated differently from Consolidated EBITDA for purposes of various covenants applicable to us under the Notes. 
See “—Reconciliation of EBITDA.” 

(7) Total debt of Corral Petroleum Holdings on a consolidated basis includes total long-term debt and total current debt. 

Principal Differences Between Swedish GAAP and IFRS  

Corral Petroleum Holdings prepares its financial statements in accordance with Swedish GAAP. Corral 
Petroleum Holdings adopted IFRS as from January 1, 2008, which implies that the comparative amounts for the 
2007 financial statements will be restated accordingly, and Corral Finans prepares its financial statements in 
accordance with IFRS. The criterion for the adoption of the new accounting standards is included in IFRS 1 
(First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards). The net effect of the adoption of IFRS is 
reported as an adjustment to shareholders’ equity. Subject to certain exceptions, Corral Petroleum Holdings will 
generally be required to retroactively comply with all IFRS and IAS standards which have become effective and 
are approved by the European Commission as of December 31, 2006. The principal differences between 
Swedish GAAP and IFRS upon adoption of IFRS by Corral Petroleum Holdings relate to business 
combinations, minority interests, cash flow statements, depreciation of property, plant and equipment, foreign 
exchange differences and financial instruments and hedging. 

Business combinations and goodwill 

In accordance with IFRS 3 (Business Combinations) goodwill is not to be amortized. Rather, the 
acquirer must test goodwill for impairment on an annual basis at a minimum or more frequently if events or 
changes indicate that it might be impaired. Additionally, a more comprehensive allocation of intangible assets is 
required in a business combination under IFRS. Provisions for restructuring costs as a part of the acquisition 
cost are not allowed. As a result, restructuring costs in connection with acquisitions will be included in the 
earnings of the acquiring company. As per the provisions of IFRS 1, Corral Petroleum Holdings will elect not to 
restate acquisitions of subsidiaries and associated companies made before January 1, 2004, in accordance with 
IFRS 3. Goodwill for acquisitions before January 1, 2004, will be accounted for at the net book value. 
Acquisitions within the Corral Petroleum Holdings group as from January 1, 2004 will in the IFRS statements 
be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3. 

Minority interests 

In accordance with IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements), minority interests are classified as a 
separate component of shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet rather than being presented separately before 
shareholders’ equity. The earnings from the minority interest are no longer deducted from earnings but are 
included in the income statement and the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the parent and that 
attributable to minority interests are presented separately under the statement of earnings. 

Cash flow statements 

In addition to bank holdings, Corral Petroleum Holdings has included short-term investments as liquid 
funds. In accordance with IAS 7 (Cash Flow Statements) only investments which at acquisition had a maturity 
of 3 months or less are classified as cash equivalents. Under IFRS, other investments will increase by 
corresponding amounts. 

Property, plant and equipment 

IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) requires that the amount recognized as property, plant and 
equipment be allocated to its significant components. Each component shall be depreciated over its estimated 
useful life. This standard applies to buildings as well as machinery and equipment. 
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Foreign exchange rate differences 

Net exchange differences arising from foreign operations are required to be reported as a separate 
component of equity in accordance with IAS 21 (The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates). On 
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange rate differences related to the foreign 
operation shall be recognized in earnings. In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 1, Corral Petroleum 
Holdings has elected to deem all cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations to be zero as of 
January 1, 2007. Translation differences from prior periods will be classified as other equity. 

Financial instruments and hedging 

IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement) became effective on January 1, 2005. In 
accordance with IAS 39, all derivatives must be measured at fair value. The Corral Petroleum Holdings group 
uses derivatives to manage certain financial risks in accordance with its policy and these financial instruments 
are currently measured at fair value. As a result, no effects on the financial statements are expected in relation to 
this. 

However, according to IAS 39, transaction costs that are directly attributable to raising of loans shall be 
accounted for as a reduction of loans in the balance sheet. Under Swedish GAAP, the transaction costs are 
accounted for as an asset. 

Principal Differences Between Swedish GAAP and U.S. GAAP 

The principal differences between Swedish GAAP and U.S. GAAP pertain to the treatment of business 
combinations, pensions and financial investments. 

Business combinations 

Acquisitions of certain subsidiaries are reported differently in accordance with Swedish GAAP and 
U.S. GAAP. The difference is attributable primarily to reporting and amortization of goodwill. In accordance 
with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill and other intangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives should not be amortized but rather evaluated for impairment annually. Accordingly, the 
amortization of goodwill reported under Swedish GAAP should be reversed in the determination of net profit 
and shareholders’ equity under U.S. GAAP. Impairment tests have been performed for existing goodwill as of 
December 31, 2007. No impairment loss has been recognized under Swedish GAAP. 

Financial instruments 

Under Swedish GAAP, unrealized gains and losses on certain financial instruments are deferred and 
recognized only when realized. Under U.S. GAAP, unrealized gains and losses on forward refining margin 
contracts, which do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment, would be recognized as income or loss when 
they occur. SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and SFAS No. 138, 
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Transactions, an Amendment to FASB 
Statement No. 133” establish accounting and reporting standards requiring that derivative instruments be 
recorded on the balance sheet at fair value as either assets or liabilities, and require companies to designate, 
document and assess the effectiveness of a hedge to qualify for hedge accounting treatment. We use derivative 
instruments to hedge the value of our financial position. 

Pensions 

Under Swedish GAAP, accounting for pensions is made in accordance with RR:29, which is equivalent 
to IAS 19 and SFAS 87. The FASB issued SFAS No. 158 “Employers’ accounting for defined benefit pension 
and other post-retirement plans” in September 2006. SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the 
funded status of pension and other post-retirement benefit plans (other than a multi-employer plan) as an asset or 
liability in its statement of financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which 
the changes occur through comprehensive income. The same accounting treatment is available as one of the 
options under IAS 19, but the Company has not elected that option. 
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Reconciliation of EBITDA 

The following table presents a reconciliation of net income to EBITDA. EBITDA is a non-IFRS, non-
GAAP financial measure of liquidity and should not be considered as a substitute for operating earnings, net 
profit, cash flows from operating activities or other statements of operations or cash flow data computed in 
accordance with Swedish or U.S. GAAP, or IFRS. We believe that EBITDA provides useful information to 
investors because it is a measure of cash flow and an indicator of our ability to finance our operations, capital 
expenditures and other investments and our ability to incur and service debt. While depreciation and 
amortization are considered operating costs under Swedish GAAP, these expenses primarily represent the non-
cash current period allocation of costs associated with long-lived assets acquired or constructed in prior periods. 
Funds depicted by this measure may not be available for management’s discretionary use or for service of 
payment of interest or principal on our outstanding indebtedness. Because all companies do not calculate 
EBITDA identically, the presentation of EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly entitled measures of other 
companies. EBITDA is also calculated differently from Consolidated EBITDA for purposes of various 
covenants applicable to us under the Indenture governing the Notes. 

 

Corral 
Petroleum 
Holdings 

Pro Forma 
ex-CMH 
Corral 

Petroleum 
Holdings(1) Corral Petroleum Holdings 

 
Year ended 

December 31, 

(Unaudited) 
Year ended 

December 31, 
Year ended 

December 31, 

 
2006 
SEK 

2006 
SEK 

2007 
SEK 

2007 
€(2) 

 (in millions) (in millions) (in millions) 
     
Net income ............................................................. 366 1,118 2,201 232 
Add back:     

Minority interest................................................... 43 2 2 0.2 
Income tax............................................................ 551 503 911 96 

     
Income before taxes .............................................. 960 1,623 3,114 329 
Adjustments for:     

Depreciation and amortization ............................. 1,102 1,102 1,080 114 
Other financial expense........................................ (747) (752) (183) (19) 
Interest expense.................................................... 1,578 1,575 963 102 
Financial income .................................................. (174) (171) (185) (20) 

EBITDA ...................................................................... 2,719 3,377 4,789 506 
____________ 
 (1) The Corral Petroleum Holdings’ unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of operations data for the financial year ended December 

31, 2006 is presented as if the results of operations of CMH had not been consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum Holdings for the 
years ended December 31, 2006. 

(2) We have translated kronor into euro at the rate of €1.00=SEK 9.4735 (the exchange rate on December 31, 2007). We have provided 
this translation solely for your convenience. 
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS 

The following is a discussion of the results of operations and financial condition of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007. Prior to February 2006, the results of CMH, a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of Corral Petroleum Holdings, were consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings. The business of CMH is independent from that of Preem Petroleum. The discussions regarding the 
results of operations of Corral Petroleum Holdings are based on the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial 
information of Corral Petroleum Holdings for the year ended December 31, 2006 and the audited consolidated 
financial information of Corral Petroleum Holdings for the year ended December 31, 2007 as we believe that a 
discussion of the results of operations of Corral Petroleum Holdings as if the results of CMH had not been 
consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum Holdings in the year ended December 31, 2006 provides a more 
meaningful discussion of our business.  The balance sheet and cash flow data and related discussions are based 
on the audited consolidated financial statements of Corral Petroleum Holdings as it is not practicable to prepare 
this information on a similar pro forma basis. 

You should read this discussion in conjunction with the Corral Petroleum Holdings audited annual 
consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this annual report. Corral 
Petroleum Holdings has prepared its audited annual consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
Swedish GAAP. Swedish GAAP differs in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The principal 
differences between Swedish GAAP and U.S. GAAP and between Swedish GAAP and IFRS are set forth in 
“Selected Consolidated Financial Information of Corral Petroleum Holdings” included elsewhere in this annual 
report. The following analysis contains forward-looking statements about our future revenue, operating results 
and expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those 
anticipated in the forward-looking statements as a result of numerous factors, including the risks discussed in 
“Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this annual report. 

Overview of the Business 

We are one of Europe’s largest independent oil refining companies and the largest Swedish oil refining 
company, according to the Swedish Petroleum Institute. We conduct our business through our wholly-owned 
operating company, Preem Petroleum, which operates its business through two segments, a supply and refining 
segment and a marketing segment. We refine crude oil in Sweden and then market and sell refined products 
primarily in Sweden and other northern European markets, including Scandinavia, the United Kingdom, 
Germany, and the United States and, to a lesser extent, other markets. Our refineries represent approximately 
75% of the refining capacity in Sweden and approximately 30% of the refining capacity in Scandinavia, 
according to the Swedish Petroleum Institute. We sell more refined products in Sweden than any of our 
competitors. In Sweden, we had leading market shares in 2007 in terms of sales volume of approximately 29% 
in diesel, 36% in heating oil, and 59% in fuel oil, based on data from the Swedish Statistical Central Bureau. In 
addition, our marketing segment’s share of the Swedish gasoline market in terms of sales volume was 
approximately 11% in 2007, based on data from the Swedish Statistical Central Bureau. 

Our supply and refining segment purchases and refines crude oil and then sells refined products 
wholesale to our marketing segment and to third parties. We also own a network of storage depots in Sweden. 
Our marketing segment consists of two divisions: a business-to-business division and a station and consumer 
division. The marketing segment resells refined products, wholesale, primarily in Sweden. We also sell gasoline, 
diesel, lubricants, convenience store items and other products through approximately 475 Preem-branded 
service stations. In 2007, approximately 18% (by value) of the products made by our supply and refining 
segment was sold to our marketing segment, and the other 82% was sold to third parties. 

Refining Margins 

Oil refineries measure the financial performance of their operations by their margins. Prices for crude 
oil and refined products are subject to frequent and significant fluctuations. As a result, a refinery’s sales 
revenue and cost of goods sold can vary significantly from period to period, even when the volume of crude oil 
purchased and refined products sold remain relatively constant. A refinery’s sales revenue depends on refined 
product prices, currency fluctuations and throughput, which is a function of refining capacity and utilization. 
The cyclicality of refined product prices results in high volatility of sales revenue. Consequently, sales revenue, 
viewed alone, is not indicative of an oil refining company’s results. Earnings and cash flow from refining are 
largely driven by gross and net margins, and a successful refinery strives to maintain its profit margins from 
year to year, notwithstanding fluctuations in the prices of crude oil and refined products. See “Business—Supply 
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and Refining Operations—Raw Materials” and “—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market 
Risk— Commodity Price Risk” elsewhere in this annual report. 

“Gross refining margin” is the difference between the sales revenue received from the sale of refined 
products produced by a refinery and the cost of crude oil and (where relevant) other intermediate feedstocks 
processed by it. While crude oil costs in general are a function of supply and demand, there are many grades of 
crude oil and their relative prices vary. Like crude oil, different refined products vary in price. A refinery’s gross 
refining margin is a measure of both the sophistication of the plant’s design and its crude oil purchasing strategy 
(its ability to produce the most valuable refined product mix from the least costly crude oil). Thus, a refinery 
with a cracking facility, such as Preemraff Lysekil, that can produce a higher percentage of the lighter, higher-
value fractions, will generally have a higher gross refining margin than a less complex facility, such as 
Preemraff Gothenburg. “Refining margin” measures the ability of a refinery to cover the variable refining costs 
of its refining process in addition to the cost of crude oil purchases. Variable refining costs consist of volume-
related costs, such as the cost of energy. “Business margin” is the difference between the cost of crude oil 
valued at the actual crude purchase price, plus variable refining costs in a given month, and the average market 
prices for refined products. The difference between refining margin and business margin is “timing inventory 
effects.” The timing inventory effect occurs due to the fact that we buy crude oil in the spot market, while the 
refining margin corresponds to average market prices. “Net cash margin” is the business margin less the 
refinery’s fixed expenses plus “sales other,” excluding depreciation and other non-cash costs. Fixed expenses 
consist of, among others, maintenance, personnel, insurance and property costs. Net cash margin indicates the 
cash-generating capability of the refinery. “Net margin” is the net cash margin less depreciation and reflects the 
overall profitability of the refinery. 

Our refining margins are affected by numerous factors beyond our control, including the supply of and 
demand for crude oil and refined products, which, in turn, depend on a variety of factors, including the 
following: 

• changes in global economic conditions, including exchange rate fluctuations; 

• global demand for oil; 

• political stability in major oil-producing countries; 

• actions by OPEC and crude oil production levels; 

• the availability of crude oil and refined product imports; 

• worldwide inventory levels of crude oil and refined products; 

• the availability and suitability of competitive fuels; 

• the extent of government regulation, in particular, as it relates to environmental policy; 

• market imperfections caused by regional price differentials; 

• local market conditions and the level of operations of other refineries in Europe; 

• the ability of suppliers, transporters and purchasers to perform on a timely basis or at all under 
their agreements (including risks associated with physical delivery); 

• seasonal demand fluctuations; 

• expected and actual weather conditions; and 

• changes in technology. 

These and other factors beyond our control are likely to play an important role in refining industry 
economics. 
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The following table shows the calculation of margins for Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff Gothenburg 
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007. In accordance with industry practice, the margins are 
expressed in dollars per barrel. 

 Year ended December 31, 
 2006 2007 

 $ $ 
% 

Change 
Preemraff Lysekil    
Gross refining margin $/bbl ......................................................................................... 6.27 7.68 22% 
Variable refining costs $/bbl........................................................................................ (0.72) (0.91) 26% 
Refining margin $/bbl.................................................................................................. 5.55 6.77 22% 
Timing/inventory effects $/bbl .................................................................................... 0.47 0.03 (94)% 
Business margin $/bbl.................................................................................................. 6.02 6.81 13% 
Sales other $/bbl .......................................................................................................... 0.28 0.35 25% 
Fixed expenses excl. depr. $/bbl .................................................................................. (1.36) (1.62) 19% 
Net cash margin, $/bbl ................................................................................................. 4.94 5.53 12% 
Depreciation $/bbl ....................................................................................................... (0.79) (1.07) 35% 
Net margin, $/bbl ......................................................................................................... 4.15 4.46 7% 
Total production (1,000 barrels) .................................................................................. 68,192 59,497 (13)% 
    
Preemraff Gothenburg    
Gross refining margin $/bbl ......................................................................................... 3.05 1.88 (38)% 
Variable refining costs $/bbl........................................................................................ (0.41) (0.53) 29% 
Refining margin $/bbl.................................................................................................. 2.64 1.34 (49)% 
Timing/inventory effects $/bbl .................................................................................... 0.37 0.61 65% 
Business margin $/bbl.................................................................................................. 3.01 1.95 (35)% 
Sales other $/bbl .......................................................................................................... 0.23 0.22 (4)% 
Fixed expenses excl. depr $/bbl ................................................................................... (1.05) (1.22) 16% 
Net cash margin, $/bbl ................................................................................................. 2.19 0.96 (56)% 
Depreciation $/bbl ....................................................................................................... (0.84) (0.99) 18% 
Net margin, $/bbl ......................................................................................................... 1.35 (0.04) (103)% 
Total production (1,000 barrels) .................................................................................. 40,381 35,623 (12)% 
 

As noted above, the gross refining margin increased by 22% at Preemraff Lysekil, despite higher crude 
differentials, and decreased by 38% at Preemraff Gothenburg from 2006 to 2007. The increase in the gross 
refining margin at Preemraff Lysekil is mainly due to the isocracker, which became fully operational in fall 
2006. The decrease in gross refining margin at Preemraff Gothenburg is due to industry-wide factors, such as 
the higher differentials on North Sea and Russian crude oils. 

During 2007, the price of crude oil rose strongly, starting with a crude oil price of $59 per barrel and 
finishing with a price of $96 per barrel. The price increase was due to several factors: reduced production quotas 
from the OPEC countries, lower stock levels (primarily in the United States), geopolitical disturbances and an 
impact of speculative trading.  Product prices generally followed the price of crude oil. During the year, we 
carried out extensive turnaround maintenance both Preemraff Gothenburg and Preemraff Lysekil. This, in 
combination with maintenance work on other refineries in northern Europe, caused very high diesel prices 
during the third quarter of 2007. The trend towards an increased proportion of diesel is continuing in Europe, 
including in Sweden. The oil market in Sweden was characterized by a continued decline in heating oil volumes 
due to conversion to other sources of energy and the mild weather. The extensive price competition in the 
gasoline market continued during 2007, resulting in low profitability throughout the sector. The market for 
diesel continues to develop strongly with increasing volumes. 

Price Effect on Inventories 

We hold large inventories of crude oil and refined products and, as a result, our financial results are 
impacted by the effects of fluctuations in the market prices for crude oil and refined products. To the extent that 
crude oil and refined product prices rise in tandem, our gross profit would generally be positively affected, 
because we compute the gross profit as the excess of sales revenue (determined at the time of sale at the higher 
refined product prices) over the cost of goods sold (determined at the earlier time the crude oil is purchased at 
lower prices). Thus, a portion of the gross profit that we earn during a period of rising prices may be attributable 
solely to the increase in prices during the period after we buy the crude oil and prior to the time we finish 
refining it and sell it. In 2006, we had price losses of SEK 35 million.  Based on data from Platts, Dated Brent 
crude oil (free on board, Sullom Voe) during 2006, went from $58.21 per barrel at the beginning of 2006 to 
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$58.93 per barrel at the end of the year; during 2007, prices went from $58.93 per barrel at the beginning of the 
year to $96.02 per barrel at the end of the year.  In 2007, we had price gains on inventory of SEK 3,125 million. 

However, during periods of rising crude oil prices, the cost of replenishing our crude oil inventories 
and, thus, our working capital requirements similarly increase. Because changes in refined product prices tend to 
lag behind changes in crude oil prices, we generally experience the increased working capital requirements from 
higher crude oil prices sooner, and to a greater degree, than the benefits to our gross profit that may arise from 
selling products at higher refined product prices. 

Depending on the rate and the duration of the increase, and the degree to which crude oil prices move 
more than refined prices, our gross profit margins may actually decline during periods of rising crude oil prices. 
During periods of declining crude oil prices, we believe that we experience the opposite effects.  

We believe that, although the price effect on inventories may impact our results for a given period, over 
the long-term, the effects of rising and falling oil prices tend to offset each other.  In comparing our results from 
period to period, we believe that it is important to note that these price effects on inventories are unrelated to, 
and do not reflect, the underlying efficiency of the refineries. We employ several strategies to minimize the 
impact on our profitability of the volatility in feedstock costs and refined product prices. See “Business—Supply 
and Refining Operations—Raw Materials” and “—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market 
Risk—Commodity Price Risk” elsewhere in this annual report.  

Fluctuations in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates 

Our financial condition and results of operations are exposed to two types of risk related to foreign 
currency exchange rates, specifically translation risk and transaction risk. We are exposed to translation risk 
because a significant percentage of our sales and expenses are realized and incurred in currencies other than the 
krona, which is our reporting currency. We are also exposed to translation risk because certain of our assets and 
liabilities are denominated in currencies other than the krona. We are exposed to transaction risk because our 
revenues and costs are denominated in both the dollar and the krona. 

Translation Risk 

Revenues and Expenses.  Substantial portions of our revenues and expenses are recorded in dollars and 
then translated into kronor for inclusion in our financial statements. Thus, a decline in the value of the dollar 
against the krona will have a negative affect on our revenues as reported in kronor, that is, the krona-value of 
our dollar-denominated revenues will decline. Conversely, an increase in the value of the dollar against the 
krona will have a positive effect on our expenses as reported in kronor, that is, the krona value of our dollar-
denominated expenses will increase. 

Inventory.  In the course of our ordinary operations, we store significant amounts of crude oil and 
refined products, the value of which is denominated in dollars because market prices for crude oil and refined 
products are typically denominated in dollars. Our total inventories, which are accounted for as part of our 
current assets, were SEK 8,179 million as of December 31, 2007. A decrease in the value of the dollar against 
the kronor will result in a decrease in the value of our inventories, when expressed in kronor. Foreign exchange 
gains or losses on our inventory are included as part of cost of goods sold. 

Indebtedness.  As of December 31, 2007, approximately 29% of the debt of Corral Petroleum Holdings 
was denominated in dollars and 71% was denominated in kronor. As a result, a decrease in the value of the 
dollar against the kronor will result in a decrease in the kronor value of our dollar-denominated indebtedness. 
Conversely, an increase in the value of the dollar against the kronor will result in an increase in the kronor value 
of our dollar-denominated indebtedness. Foreign exchange gains or losses on our indebtedness are included as 
part of financial expense, net. 

Transaction risk 

We are exposed to transaction risk because our revenues and expenses are denominated in both kronor 
and dollars. Accordingly, the relative movements of the krona/dollar exchange rate can significantly affect our 
results of operations. For example, an appreciation of the krona against the dollar may adversely affect our 
margins to the extent that our krona-denominated revenues do not cover our krona-denominated expenses. This 
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risk is reduced by matching sales revenues and expenses in the same currency, which is generally the practice in 
our industry given the percentage of purchase and sales contracts that are denominated in dollars. 

In addition, we are exposed to transaction risk in connection with our accounts payable for crude oil 
purchases. If the dollar changes in value against the krona between the date of purchase and the date of payment, 
the difference in the krona value of our payment and the krona value of the account payable would be recorded 
as a foreign exchange gain or loss in our results of operations. We face a similar risk with respect to our 
accounts receivable for refined product sales. 

Trend Information 

Exchange rates.  The value of the dollar against both the krona and the euro decreased in 2006 and 
2007. In the first two months of 2008, the value of the dollar against the krona and the euro has continued to 
decrease. See “—Fluctuations in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates—Translation Risk” above. 

Strong crude oil prices. Crude oil prices at the end of 2006 were generally in line with those of the 
beginning of 2006. Prices declined in January 2007, although they remained above $50 per barrel. Prices 
increased to $96 per barrel by the end of 2007.  In the first part of 2008, crude oil prices have increased to above 
$100 per barrel. Prices are expected to remain volatile in the future. 

Ability to process lower-priced, high-sulphur heavy crude.  As a result of investments in and 
improvements of our Preemraff Lysekil refinery, particularly our new isocracker unit, we are able to process 
larger volumes of lower-priced, high-sulphur heavy crude, primarily sourced from Russia. When spreads widen 
between the cost of Brent crude and the lower-priced Russian crude, we can utilize our facility to refine higher-
sulphur, heavier Russian crude to reduce our cost of goods sold and our working capital requirements. We have 
been able to minimize costs of goods sold, and to improve our margins, because we can produce substantially 
similar refined products using lower-priced Russian crude, although yields of refined products from Russian 
crude are different. Also, given the proximity of Russian crude, we can receive shipments within a few days of 
order, which means we can refine it and deliver the refined products to market more quickly, sometimes before 
we are even required to make payment for the crude. This relatively short transportation time, and its positive 
effect on our use of capital, has a positive impact on our cash flow and reduces our working capital requirement 
compared to earlier periods. Since our new isocracker at Preemraff Lysekil became fully operational in October 
2006, our ability to process high-sulphur, heavy crude oil has been enhanced further in the last quarter of 2006 
and into 2007. 

Margin outlook.  Industry margins may be volatile in the future, depending primarily on price 
movements for crude oil and refined products, international political and economic developments, and other 
factors. In the short term, however, we believe our refining margins will continue to be supported by historically 
tight global refinery utilization levels, historic underinvestment in the sector and demand growth in excess of 
expected capacity additions, as well as other factors. 

Shift in refined product demand.  Legislation and regulations, including with respect to taxation of 
refined products, have been implemented in various countries in Europe, including in Sweden, the United 
Kingdom and Germany, which provide an incentive to us and other refining companies to produce gasoline and 
diesel with sulphur content below the minimum required by the EU’s 2005 specifications. The overall effect of 
such legislation has been to increase market demand for, among other products, low-sulphur diesel due to the 
tax and other benefits that suppliers can pass on to consumers. An increase in transit commercial traffic and a 
growing trend to switch from gasoline to diesel cars in Western Europe have also contributed to the increase in 
demand for diesel. The recent increase in demand for low-sulphur diesel has been complemented by a decrease 
in demand for heating oil in Sweden, where there has been a shift toward electricity as a preferred source for 
home heating. Accordingly, we expect that the demand for heating oil will continue to decrease and that 
ultimately the market for heating oil in homes may all but disappear. In addition, we have been required by 
Swedish legislation to produce gasoline containing certain amounts of ethanol. The requirement to produce 
gasoline and/or diesel containing ethanol or other biofuel is likely to continue due to the various benefits of such 
fuels. Since the isocracker unit at Preemraff Lysekil became operational in 2006, we have decreased our 
production of heating oil, a lower-margin product, and increased our production of virtually sulphur-free (10 
parts per million) diesel, a higher-margin product, which we expect will improve our overall refining margins. 

Restructuring of marketing segment to improve profitability.  In 2005 and 2006 we restructured our 
marketing segment in order to improve our efficiency, reduce the complexity of our operations and rationalize 
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our cost structure. The primary components of this restructuring were creating a network of independent dealers 
to handle sales to smaller commercial customers and retail customers and transferring the operations of 
company-operated service stations to independent operators. 

Our marketing segment, which consists of a business-to-business division and a station and consumer 
division, obtains all of its refined products from our supply and refining segment. Our marketing segment sells 
various products to a network of independent dealers, who in turn sell these products to end-users, and sells 
heating oil, diesel, and fuel oil directly to Swedish companies. We also sell gasoline, diesel, lubricants, 
convenience store items and other products through approximately 475 Preem-branded service stations. In 2007, 
our marketing segment had sales revenue of SEK 12,201 million (€1,288 million) and an operating loss of SEK 
74 million (€8 million). In 2007, our supply and refining segment sold approximately 82% (by value) of its 
products to third parties and 18% to our marketing segment. On a stand-alone basis, none of our customer sales 
contracts or customer relationships is material to our business. 

We previously sold refined products to a large number of commercial customers of varying size and to 
retail consumers. As part of the restructuring of our marketing segment, we no longer make such sales directly 
to small-size commercial consumers or retail customers. Instead, we now supply our products to a network of 
independent dealers, who in turn sell directly to these customers. Our business-to-business division now 
concentrates on sales to large- and medium-size commercial consumers. This shift in focus has enabled us to 
retain approximately 87% of our sales volume while focusing our efforts on only 2% of our previous customer 
base. Within the business-to-business division, total volumes for 2007 decreased by approximately 13% 
compared to the same period last year as a result of the decreasing demand for heating oil. 

In our station and consumer division, as part of the restructuring of the marketing segment, we 
completed the process of transferring the operations of our company-operated stations and convenience shops to 
independent operators in 2007. Transferring the operation of company-operated stores to independent operators 
is an important factor in the cost reductions achieved in connection with the restructuring of the marketing 
segment. We have introduced a new store layout at our company-operated full-service stations. We are 
continuing to roll-out the new design to company-operated stations and plan to introduce the new layout to 
dealer-managed and franchised stations in the future. 

Our competitors have continued to adopt very aggressive pricing strategies that have affected our 
stations nationwide. We have adjusted our pricing accordingly in order to remain competitive. The results of the 
station and consumer division have been negatively impacted by this price competition and could continue to be 
negatively affected should such aggressive pricing continue. 2007 was characterized by strong growth in diesel 
sales and increases in total fuel sales of approximately 12% as compared to the previous year. In 2007, gasoline 
sales decreased by approximately 2% compared to the same period last year. 

Refinancing of Indebtedness and Simplifying Group Structure 

We undertook extensive refinancing of our indebtedness in 2006 in order to reduce the cost of our 
interest payments. In conjunction with this refinancing, we also simplified our group structure. 

Bridge facility.  Corral Petroleum Holdings, Corral Investment AB (publ), Preem Holdings AB (publ) 
and Preem Petroleum entered into a $2.1 billion multi-currency term and revolving bridge credit facility (the 
“Bridge Facility”) on February 15, 2006. The purpose of the Bridge Facility was to provide, among other things, 
for the refinancing of outstanding debt, working capital capacity and other general corporate purposes. Funds 
drawn down under the Bridge Facility were used to optionally redeem the 2001 Notes and the 2005 Notes and to 
repurchase and legally defease the 2004 Notes. The Bridge Facility was fully repaid on June 22, 2006 with the 
use of proceeds drawn down under the 2006 Credit Facility. See “Description of Certain Indebtedness—2006 
Credit Facility.” 

The 2001 Notes were redeemed at a price of 105.313% of the principal amount of the outstanding 2001 
Notes. The 2001 Notes were optionally redeemed by Preem Holdings AB (publ) on April 4, 2006 in the 
principal aggregate amount of €305 million. Pursuant to a tender offer, which closed on March 30, 2006, Preem 
Petroleum purchased approximately 97% of the 2004 Notes in the principal aggregate amount of €97.3 million. 
Following the completion of the tender offer, approximately 3% of the 2004 Notes (€2.6 million) remained 
outstanding and were subsequently legally defeased. The 2004 Notes were delisted from the Luxembourg Stock 
Exchange on May 9, 2006. 
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The 2005 Notes were redeemed at a price of 100% of the principal amount of the outstanding 2005 
Notes. The 2005 Notes were optionally redeemed by Corral Investment AB (publ) on April 4, 2006, in the 
principal aggregate amount of €422 million for the Euro Notes and $154 million for the Dollar Notes. 

Merger of subsidiaries.  In 2006 Corral Investment AB (publ) was merged into its parent company, 
Corral Petroleum Holdings. Upon the Swedish Companies Registration Office’s permission to execute the 
merger plan, Corral Investment was dissolved and all its assets and liabilities were transferred to Corral 
Petroleum Holdings. 

In addition, Preem Holdings AB (publ), which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Corral Investment, 
merged into Preem Petroleum in 2006, its wholly-owned subsidiary. As consideration for the merger and all 
shares in Preem Holdings, all shares in Preem Petroleum were transferred to Corral Investment (or, following 
the above-mentioned merger, to Corral Petroleum Holdings). There was no further merger consideration. Upon 
the Swedish Companies Registration Office’s permission to execute the merger plan, Preem Holdings was 
dissolved and all its assets and liabilities (with the exception of possible claims according to sections 15:1-3 of 
the Swedish Companies Act (1975:1385), now sections 29:1-3 of the Swedish Companies Act (2005:551)), 
were taken over by Preem Petroleum. These transactions were completed on June 2, 2006, after which both 
Preem Holdings and Corral Investment ceased to exist and Preem Petroleum became a wholly-owned subsidiary 
of Corral Petroleum Holdings. 

We are currently contemplating merging Corral Petroleum Holdings and Preem Petroleum in order to 
facilitate making repayments and prepayments under the 2006 Credit Facility. We are permitted to do so under 
such facility and under the indenture pursuant to which the Notes were issued. On March 12, 2008, the boards of 
directors of Corral Petroleum Holdings and Preem Petroleum approved a merger plan whereby Corral Petroleum 
Holdings would be merged into Preem Petroleum, its wholly-owned subsidiary, with Preem Petroleum as the 
surviving entity. As consideration for the merger and all shares in Corral Petroleum Holdings, all shares in 
Preem Petroleum will be transferred to Corral Finans. There will be no further merger consideration. 

The merger plan, together with the requisite auditors’ certificate, was filed with the Swedish 
Companies Registration Office and registered on April 11, 2008. After the Swedish Companies Registration 
Office has granted authorization to implement the merger plan, the board of directors of Preem Petroleum must 
notify the merger for registration in the Swedish Companies Register. The notification must include a 
certification from the auditors that Corral Petroleum Holdings’s assets have been transferred to Preem 
Petroleum.  

Under Swedish GAAP, the difference between the carrying value of the shares Corral Petroleum 
Holdings holds in Preem Petroleum and the equity in Corral Petroleum Holdings is presented as a “merger 
difference” in the non-restricted equity (distributable earnings) of Preem Petroleum. The amount of non-
restricted equity in Preem Petroleum must exceed the merger difference; otherwise the merger could constitute 
an unlawful dividend by Preem Petroleum to Corral Petroleum Holdings. Furthermore, if non-restricted equity, 
after deducting the restricted equity, excluding share capital, is less than 50% of the share capital, Preem 
Petroleum would technically be in liquidation. Therefore, the board of Preem Petroleum must assess the latest 
financial results before the merger can be finalized.  

If the board of Preem Petroleum determines that the merger may go forward, we would expect the 
merger to take place in fall 2008. 
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Results of Operations 

Summary 

The following table shows certain items from the Corral Petroleum Holdings unaudited pro forma 
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006, giving effect to the deconsolidation 
of CMH, as well as the Corral Petroleum Holdings audited consolidated financial statement of operations for the 
year ended December 31, 2007. 

 

Pro Forma 
ex-CMH 
Corral 

Petroleum 
Holdings(1) 

Corral 
Petroleum 
Holdings  

 

(Unaudited) 
Year ended 

December 31, 
Year ended 

December 31,  

 
2006 
SEK 

2007 
SEK 

% 
Change 

 (in millions, except % change) 
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:    

Revenues ................................................................................. 75,459 71,652 (5) 
Excise duties ........................................................................... (8,024) (7,738) (4) 

Sales revenue ............................................................................ 67,435 63,914 (5) 
Cost of goods sold................................................................... (64,303) (59,402) (8) 

Gross profit .............................................................................. 3,132 4,512 44 
Selling and administrative expenses........................................ (1,250) (1,189) (5) 
Other operating income........................................................... 393 386 (2) 

Operating income..................................................................... 2,275 3,709 63 
Financial expense, net(1) .......................................................... (652) (595) (9) 

Income before taxes ................................................................. 1,623 3,114 92 
Income taxes ........................................................................... (503) (911) 81 
Minority interests .................................................................... (2) (2) — 

Net income ................................................................................ 1,118 2,201 97 
____________ 
 (1) Financial expense, net, consists of the share of dividends received, interest income and expense, foreign exchange gains or losses on 

our indebtedness and certain other items. 



 

 29 
 

The following table shows the sales revenue and operating income for the business segments of Preem 
Petroleum, our operating subsidiary, for each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007. 

 Year ended December 31, 
 2006 2007 

 SEK SEK 
% 

Change 
 (in millions, except % change) 

Sales Revenue:    
Supply and refining(1)(2) ........................................................... 66,407 63,167 (5)
Marketing(2)............................................................................. 13,525 12,201 (10)
Exchange rate differences(2) .................................................... (270) (63) 77
Group eliminations(2)............................................................... (12,227) (11,391) 7

Total Sales Revenue(3) .............................................................. 67,435 63,914 (5)
Operating Income:   

Supply and refining(2) .............................................................. 2,766 4,586 66
Marketing(2)............................................................................. (52) (74) (42)
Other non-allocated income (expense)(4)(5).............................. (439) (803) (82)

Total Operating Income(4) ........................................................ 2,275 3,709 63
____________ 
(1) Includes sales by our supply and refining segment to our marketing segment of SEK 12,156 million (€1,283 million) for 2006 and 

SEK 11,361 million (€1,199 million) for 2007. We have included inter-company sales revenue in the total for our supply and refining 
segment. These sales are made at market rates. Since refined products are commodities, these sales could have been made to third 
parties at similar prices. We believe that including these amounts in supply and refining segment sales revenue properly reflects the 
results of these segments for purposes of comparison. Such inter-company sales are eliminated in our audited annual consolidated 
financial statements. 

(2) These line items are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007. 

(3) Total sales revenue is our total revenue less excise duties, which are taxes collected at the point of sale by us and remitted to the 
governments of the countries in which we operate, primarily Sweden. 

(4) These line items for the year ended December 31, 2006 show Corral Petroleum Holdings’ pro forma results adjusted to deconsolidate 
the operation of CMH. See “Selected Consolidated Financial Information of Corral Petroleum Holdings.” 

(5) In order to evaluate the performance of our segments, we allocate certain items as “non-allocated income (expense).” Specifically, we 
include in non-allocated income (expense) our “corporate cost center” and foreign exchange gains or losses related to our inventory 
and our accounts payable/receivable. Our corporate cost center includes administrative and personnel-related expenses. 

 

Our revenues include excise duties, which are taxes on petroleum products that we collect at the point 
of sale and remit monthly, primarily to the Swedish government. The continuous collection of excise duties at 
the time of sale and the holding of such excise duties until we are obligated to remit them to the government 
enables us to use this cash to fund a significant portion of our working capital needs. Sales revenue represents 
our revenues less the excise duties. Sales revenue also includes foreign exchange gains or losses on our accounts 
receivable. In this discussion, we have provided sales revenue figures for our supply and refining segment and 
our marketing segment. The sales revenue of our supply and refining segment includes inter-company sales to 
the marketing segment and the sales revenue of our marketing segment includes the sales revenue received on 
the resale of such refined products. The inter-company sales between our supply and refining segment and our 
marketing segment are made at market rates. Since refined products are commodities, these sales could have 
been made to third parties at similar prices. We believe that the inclusion of these amounts in the sales revenue 
for our supply and refining segment properly reflects the results of these segments for purposes of comparison. 
These inter-company sales have been eliminated in our annual audited consolidated financial statements. 

Cost of goods sold consists of the cost of our crude oil purchases (including transportation costs) and 
direct production costs (including depreciation of equipment used in the refining process). Cost of goods sold 
also includes foreign exchange gains or losses on our inventory and our accounts payable. We have no supply 
contracts longer than 12 months in duration. We rely primarily on spot market purchases. We regularly monitor 
market conditions for various types of crude oil as well as demand for refined products. 

Gross profit is our sales revenue less the cost of goods sold. At times, due to market forces, the crude 
oil and/or refined product price curve is in “contango,” meaning that forward prices of crude oil or refined 
products exceed current spot market prices. While we do not speculate with inventory, as a result of our large 
storage capacity we are able to take advantage of the price curve being in contango by simultaneously entering 
into current spot market purchase and future sale agreements. When we take advantage of the price curve being 



 

 30 
 

in contango, our primary expense is that associated with storing the crude oil or refined products until their time 
of delivery under the future sale agreement. So long as our storage costs are less than the profit margin resulting 
from the price curve being in contango we are able to lock in a profit margin. By locking in our margin, we can 
realize significant profits by utilizing our substantial storage facilities to store crude oil and refined products at 
our existing facilities until the delivery date called for by the sale agreements. 

Selling expenses consist primarily of the costs of sales personnel, advertising and promotions. 
Administrative expenses consist primarily of the costs of administrative personnel. 

Other operating income consists of our sales of surplus heat, harbor fees, commission income, sales of 
storage certificates to other oil companies for their EU-imposed compulsory storage obligations, income from 
the rental of dealer-operated service stations and several other items, none of which is individually material. Our 
other operating income is largely attributable to our non-refining business. 

Operating income is gross profit net of the foregoing items and net of non-recurring items, if any. We 
have itemized the contributions to operating income of our supply and refining segment and our marketing 
segment. 

Financial expense, net, consists of interest income and expense, foreign exchange gains or losses on our 
indebtedness, and certain other items. 

We are subject to Swedish income tax of 28% on our taxable income. 

The minority interest represents the minorities’ interest in one of Preem Petroleum’s subsidiaries, 
Preem Gas. The minority shareholder holds 30% of the outstanding shares of Preem Gas. 

The comparison below of the year ended December 31, 2007 to the year ended December 31, 2006 is 
presented on a pro forma basis, other than segment information, to give effect to the deconsolidation of CMH 
for the years ended December 31, 2006. The segment information below is derived from Corral Petroleum 
Holdings’ audited consolidated financial statements. 

Year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 

Revenues.  Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007 were SEK 71,652 million, a decrease 
of SEK 3,807 million, or approximately 5%, from pro forma SEK 75,459 million for the year ended December 
31, 2006. This decrease is primarily attributable to lower sales volumes due to the planned shutdowns for 
turnaround and maintenance at both our refineries, which affected the total throughput, and the weakening of the 
U.S. dollar versus the Swedish krona. This effect was to some extent offset by higher market prices for refined 
products. 

Sales revenue.  Sales revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 was SEK 63,914 million, a 
decrease of SEK 3,521 million, or approximately 5%, from pro forma SEK 67,435 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2006. This decrease is primarily a result of the factors discussed above.  Sales revenue for our 
supply and refining segment decreased by 5% from SEK 66,407 million in 2006 to SEK 63,167 million in 2007. 
Sales revenue for our marketing segment decreased by 10% from SEK 13,525 million to SEK 12,201 million. 

Cost of goods sold.  Cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2007 was SEK 59,402 
million, a decrease of SEK 4,901 million, or approximately 8%, from pro forma SEK 64,303 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. The decrease was primarily attributable to lower purchase volumes of crude oil due 
to the planned shutdowns at both our refineries, which reduced the total throughput, and the weakening of the 
U.S. dollar versus the Swedish krona. The decrease was to some extent offset by higher average crude oil prices, 
which increased by approximately 11% (based on data from Bloomberg). 

Gross profit.  Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2007 was SEK 4,512 million, an increase 
of SEK 1,380 million, or approximately 44%, from pro forma SEK 3,132 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2006. This increase was primarily a result of higher price gains on inventories than in 2006. 

Selling and administrative expenses.  Selling expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were 
SEK 677 million, a decrease of SEK 33 million, or approximately 5%, from pro forma SEK 710 million for the 
year ended December 31, 2006. Administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were SEK 512 



 

 31 
 

million, a decrease of SEK 28 million, or approximately 5%, from pro forma SEK 540 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. The decrease in both selling and administrative expenses is primarily a result of our 
restructuring of our marketing segment. 

Other operating income.  Our other operating income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was SEK 
386 million, a decrease of SEK 7 million, or approximately 2%, from pro forma SEK 393 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. 

Operating income.  Operating income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was SEK 3,709 million, 
an increase of SEK 1,434 million, or approximately 63%, from pro forma SEK 2,275 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2006. The operating income of our supply and refining segment was SEK 4,586 million for the 
year ended December 31, 2007, an increase of SEK 1,820 million, or approximately 66%, from SEK 2,766 
million for the year ended December 31, 2006.  This increase was primarily a result of higher price gains on 
inventory than in 2006. Our marketing segment generated an operating loss of SEK 74 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2007, an increase of SEK 22 million, from an operating loss of SEK 52 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. The increase in the marketing segment’s operating loss was primarily a result of 
extensive price competition in the Swedish market in 2007. 

Financial expense, net.  Our financial expense, net, for the year ended December 31, 2007 was SEK 
595 million, a decrease of SEK 57 million, or approximately 9%, from pro forma SEK 652 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2006.  This decrease in 2007 was mainly attributable to redemption fees in connection with 
the redemption of the 2001 Notes and the 2005 Notes in April 2006. 

Income taxes.  Income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2007 were SEK 911 million, an increase 
of SEK 408 million, or approximately 40%, from pro forma SEK 503 million for the year ended December 31, 
2006. The increase is primarily attributable to higher taxable income in 2007. 

Minority interests.  Minority interests for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 were SEK 2 
million. 

Net income.  Net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was SEK 2,201 million, an increase of 
SEK 1,083 million, or approximately 97%, from pro forma SEK 1,118 million for the year ended December 31, 
2006, primarily as a result of the factors discussed above. 

Liquidity and capital resources 

Overview 

Our primary cash requirements include purchase of feedstocks, upgrade and maintenance projects, 
servicing indebtedness, funding construction and general working capital needs. Our primary sources of 
liquidity are available cash reserves, internal cash generation, long-term debt, short-term working capital 
financing and short-term use of excise duties collected. We operate in an environment in which liquidity and 
capital resources are impacted by changes in the prices for crude oil and refined products, and a variety of 
additional risks, including currency and regulatory risks. In particular, because we purchase crude oil on the spot 
market and prices can be volatile, the availability of cash or short-term credit is crucial to our business. 
Historically, our cash and short-term credit have been sufficient to finance such purchases. We believe that our 
working capital is sufficient for our present requirements. As of December 31, 2007, Corral Petroleum Holdings 
had cash and cash equivalents of SEK 591 million (€62 million) and approximately SEK 4,682 million (€494 
million) available under our unutilized credit facilities, and Corral Finans had cash and cash equivalents of SEK 
835 million (€88 million) on a consolidated basis. 

Cash flow 

The table below shows a summary of our audited cash flow statements as of December 31, 2006 and 
2007, respectively. The cash flow figures in the table below are taken from the consolidated annual audited 
financial statements of Corral Petroleum Holdings, and include the cash flows of CMH. It has not been possible 
to prepare full pro forma cash flow statements reflecting the deconsolidation of CMH. 
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 2006 2007 
 (SEK in millions) 

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital.................................. 2,743 2,742 
Cash flow in working capital ..................................................................................................   

Decrease (increase) in inventories........................................................................................ 1,884 (1,187) 
Decrease (increase) in current receivables ........................................................................... (194) (1,469) 
(Decrease) increase in liabilities........................................................................................... 4 1,267 

Cash flow from operating activities..................................................................................... 4,437 1,353 
Cash flow used in investment activities .................................................................................. (1,716) (1,527) 
Cash flow (used in)/provided by financing activities.............................................................. (2,777) (520) 
Cash flow of the year ............................................................................................................ (56) (694) 
 

There was a negligible decrease in Corral Petroleum Holdings’ cash flow from operating activities 
before changes in working capital from 2006 to 2007. Preem Petroleum had cash flows from operating activities 
before changes in working capital of SEK 3,086 million in 2006 and SEK 3,693 million in 2007. 

Cash flow from operating activities decreased by 70% from 2006 to 2007 despite only a negligible 
decrease in cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital. This decrease in cash flow 
from operating activities was primarily due to an increase in inventories and current receivables, partially offset 
by an increase in liabilities. Preem Petroleum had cash flows from operating activities of SEK 4,971 million in 
2006 and SEK 2,319 million in 2007. 

Cash flow used in investment activities decreased by 11% from 2006 to 2007. The decrease in cash 
flows used in investment activities in 2007 is attributable primarily to the disposal of CMH in 2006, partially 
offset by an increase in acquisition of tangible fixed assets in 2007. Cash flows used in investing activities for 
Preem Petroleum were SEK 1,049 million in 2006 and SEK 1,527 million in 2007. 

Cash flow used in financing activities was SEK 520 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, 
compared to SEK 2,777 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease in cash flows used in 
financing activities in 2007 as compared to 2006 is primarily attributable to the payment of a loan from our 
ultimate shareholder, Mr. Al-Amoudi in 2006. 

In Sweden, we collect government excise duties imposed on petroleum products at the time of retail 
sale and subsequently remit them on a monthly basis to the Swedish government. Excise duties were SEK 7,738 
million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to SEK 8,024 million for the year ended December 31, 
2006. The delay between the time we collect these funds and the time we are required to remit them to the 
government enables us to use the cash to finance a significant portion of our working capital needs.  

Future capital needs and resources and capital expenditures 

As of December 31, 2007, Corral Petroleum Holdings had approximately SEK 614 million in operating 
lease obligations. We continue to review opportunities for improving our refineries where returns on investment 
would justify these improvements. Any such investments could require considerable capital investment. We 
intend to fund these expenditures from available cash reserves, internally generated cash flow from operating 
activities and amounts available under our unutilized credit facilities. 

Preem Petroleum made capital expenditures of SEK 1,562 million (€165 million) for the year ended 
December 31, 2007 and SEK 831 million (€88 million) for the year ended December 31, 2006. These 
expenditures were funded from available cash reserves, internally generated cash flow from operating activities 
and long-term debt. Most of Preem Petroleum’s capital expenditures in these years related to major turnaround 
maintenance that occurred at Preemraff Gothenburg in the second quarter of 2007 and at Preemraff Lysekil in 
the third quarter of 2007. Preem Petroleum spent approximately SEK 608 million for costs associated with the 
turnaround maintenance. 

In 2005 we began examining the different options for upgrading fuel oil at our refineries. Following a 
number of studies, we decided that the optimal structure would be a heavy fuel upgrade project, including a 
coker unit, a new hydrotreating unit and a revamping of the existing visbreaker unit, at Preemraff Lysekil. This 
structure is aimed at converting almost all fuel oil, produced at both Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff 
Gothenburg, to higher-margin transportation fuel, such as virtually sulphur-free diesel and gasoline. If we decide 
to undertake this “heavy fuel oil upgrade project,” under our current timetable, we would expect to incur the 
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majority of the capital expenditures associated with the project in 2010 and 2011 and anticipate completing the 
project in 2012. 

We have initiated the environmental permit process for this project and the application to the 
Environmental Court in Sweden was made in January 2007. The main proceedings were held in September 2007 
and the Environmental Court has approved the license application; however, the judgment has been appealed to 
the Environmental Court of Appeal by local residents and members of a Swedish conservation group. The main 
proceedings in the Environmental Court of Appeal will start in June 2008. The board of directors of Preem 
Petroleum is expected to determine whether to proceed with the heavy fuel upgrade project in November 2008. 

We originally estimated that total capital expenditure for this project would be approximately SEK 5–7 
billion (€552–773 million), with a majority of such expenditures expected to occur in 2010 and 2011. A total of 
approximately SEK 170 million was spent on the project in 2007.  Due to recent increases in the prices of 
materials, the total cost of the project is now expected to exceed the original estimate.  Capital expenditures in 
relation to the heavy fuel upgrade project are permitted under the covenants under the 2006 Credit Facility and 
the Indenture, but we must comply with certain restrictions on our ability to incur or secure debt.  See “Risk 
Factors—Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our operations or financial results and prevent us 
from fulfilling our debt obligations” and “Description of Certain Indebtedness.” 

Description of Indebtedness 

Indebtedness.  As of December 31, 2007, Corral Petroleum Holdings had total consolidated debt of 
SEK 12,480 million. The long-term debt of Corral Petroleum Holdings amounted to SEK 9,642 million as of 
December 31, 2007. Corral Petroleum Holdings also had current debt of SEK 2,838 million, which included the 
current portion of the long-term debt of Corral Petroleum Holdings of SEK 2,038 million. These loans and 
facilities are provided by various international banks. As of December 31, 2007, the indebtedness of Corral 
Petroleum Holdings bore interest at a weighted average annual rate of 6.2%. 

In connection with the Corral Petroleum Holdings Acquisition, pursuant to which we acquired all of 
the issued and outstanding share capital of Corral Petroleum Holdings from Moroncha Holdings, we issued and 
delivered a promissory note to Moroncha Holdings in the amount of SEK 6,500 million. On April 5, 2007, 
Corral Finans issued €355 million aggregate principal amount of its Floating Rate Split Coupon Notes due 2010 
and $350 million aggregate principal amount of its Floating Rate Split Coupon Notes due 2010. We used 
proceeds from the offering of the Notes to partially repay the Moroncha Note (the remainder of which 
(approximately SEK 1,407 million) was set off entirely at the closing of the offering of the Notes against an 
unconditional shareholder’s contribution to Corral Finans by Moroncha Holdings). 

Preem Petroleum and Corral Petroleum Holdings entered into the 2006 Credit Facility pursuant to a 
Facilities Agreement dated June 16, 2006, among Preem Petroleum as borrower, Corral Petroleum Holdings, as 
borrower and guarantor, Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) and Svenska Handelsbanken (AB) (publ), 
as mandated lead arrangers, certain financial institutions, as lenders, and SEB Merchant Banking, Skandinaviska 
Enskilda Banken AB (publ), as facility agent. The 2006 Credit Facility provides Corral Petroleum Holdings with 
a SEK 7,130 million single-currency term loan facility and provides Preem Petroleum with $1,150 million (or 
the equivalent thereof in other currencies) of revolving credit and term loan facilities comprised of a $500 
million multi-currency term loan facility and a $650 million multi-currency revolving credit loan. Loans under 
the revolving credit facility may be used for repayment of pre-existing debt or for general corporate purposes. 
The proceeds of the loans under the term loan facility were used to repay outstanding debt. 

We have received waivers to avoid technical non-compliance with certain ratios and financial tests 
under the 2006 Credit Facility. We have paid a customary fee in connection with seeking the waivers. On 
December 21, 2007, Preem Petroleum and Corral Petroleum Holdings entered into a supplemental agreement to 
the 2006 Credit Facility. See “Description of Certain Indebtedness—2006 Credit Facility.” 
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Ranking of our indebtedness.  The following table shows the breakdown of the total indebtedness of 
Corral Finans as of December 31, 2007. 

 December 31, 2007 
 As adjusted (1) 

Borrower Current debt 
Long-term 

debt Total debt 
 (SEK in millions) 

Corral Finans .................................................................................. — 5,729 5,729 
Structurally senior debt................................................................    
Corral Petroleum Holdings ............................................................. 1,576 4,109 5,685 
Preem Petroleum............................................................................. 800 5,533 6,333 
Subsidiaries of Preem Petroleum .................................................... 462 — 462 
Total ............................................................................................... 2,838 15,371 18,209 
 

Long-Term Financial Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments 

The following table summarizes contractual principal maturities of Corral Finans’ long-term debt, 
including its current portion, and our minimum payments required under our lease obligations and purchase 
obligations, each as of December 31, 2007. 

 Payments due by period 
Contractual Obligations 

Total 
Less than 

1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 
More than 

5 years 
 (SEK in millions) 
Other long-term debt obligations ............................... 1,053 462 591 — — 
Operating lease obligations........................................ 614 116 325 163 10 
2006 Credit Facility ................................................... 10,613 1,576 — 5,284 — 
Notes.......................................................................... 5,729 — 5,729 — — 
Total .......................................................................... 12,280 2,154 10,398 5,447 10 
 

Restrictions on transfers of funds 

Corral Finans is a holding company. As a holding company, to meet its debt service and other 
obligations, Corral Finans is dependent upon dividends, permitted repayment of intercompany debt, if any, and 
other transfers of funds from Corral Petroleum Holdings or equity contributions from its parent company, 
Moroncha Holdings. Substantially all of Corral Finans’ present assets consists of 100% of the share capital of 
Corral Petroleum Holdings. The funds in these accounts are currently expected to be adequate to pay cash 
interest on the Notes during the 12-month period following the issue of the Notes assuming an average 
EURIBOR and U.S. LIBOR of approximately 4.15% and 5.23%, respectively, during such period. This account 
is not an escrow account, however, and therefore such funds will not be insulated from other creditors of Corral 
Finans. Payments on the Notes in excess of this amount will require funding from other sources. 

Because the cash component of the interest payable on the Notes is based on a margin above 
EURIBOR with respect to the euro-denominated Notes and U.S. LIBOR with respect to dollar-denominated 
Notes, the amounts required for each cash interest payment will be variable and will rise in the event that 
EURIBOR and U.S. LIBOR rise. For this reason, there is less certainty as to the ability of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings and Preem Petroleum to generate adequate net income to ensure that a sufficient amount of cash can 
be distributed or otherwise transferred from Preem Petroleum to Corral Petroleum Holdings, and from Corral 
Petroleum Holdings to Corral Finans in order for Corral Finans to service the required cash component of the 
interest on the Notes. 

Until Corral Petroleum Holdings is able to repay or prepay specified amounts under the 2006 Credit 
Facility, it may not expend any cash, declare any dividends or otherwise transfer any funds to Corral Finans. In 
addition, Corral Petroleum Holdings may not expend any cash, declare any dividends or otherwise transfer any 
funds to Corral Finans unless it can maintain certain financial ratios and is otherwise not in default under the 
2006 Credit Facility. See “Description of Certain Indebtedness— 2006 Credit Facility.” Furthermore, even if 
Preem Petroleum or Corral Petroleum Holdings are otherwise able to dividend moneys upstream, we may 
nevertheless choose to pay down amounts outstanding under the 2006 Credit Facility for tax optimization 
reasons. In other words, Preem Petroleum or Corral Petroleum Holdings may choose not to pay the maximum 
dividend allowable under these restrictions. 
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Additional restrictions on the distribution of cash to Corral Finans arise from, among other things, 
applicable corporate and other laws and regulations and by the terms of other agreements to which Corral 
Petroleum Holdings is or may become subject. Under Swedish law, Corral Petroleum Holdings may only pay a 
dividend to the extent that it has positive net equity according to its adopted balance sheet in its latest annual 
report; provided, however, that the distribution of profits may not be made in any amount which, given due 
consideration to the financing needs of Corral Petroleum Holdings or the group, including the liquidity or 
financial position of Corral Petroleum Holdings and the group, would contravene sound business principles. 

As a result of the above, Corral Finans’ ability to service cash interest payments or other cash needs is 
considerably restricted. Currently, Corral Petroleum Holdings would not be permitted to pay a dividend. Given 
our current business and tax planning, it is unlikely that this situation will change significantly.   

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

Our primary market risk exposures are commodity price risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate 
risk. 

Commodity Price Risk 

Changes in the price of commodities, such as crude oil, can affect our cost of goods sold and the price 
of our refined products. Commodity price changes can trigger a price effect on inventory, which can affect our 
revenues, gross profit and operating income. Our inventory management strategies include the purchase and sale 
of exchange-traded, oil-related futures and options with a duration of twelve months or less. To a lesser extent, 
we also use oil swap agreements similar to those traded on international exchanges such as the Intercontinental 
Exchange, including “crack” spreads (which are intercommodity spreads based on the difference between the 
price of a refined product and crude oil) or intercommodity spreads, and options that, because they contain 
certain terms, such as point of delivery, customized to the market in which we sell, are better suited to hedge 
against the specific price movements in our markets. The number of barrels of crude oil and refined products 
covered by such contracts varies from time to time. We hedge amounts of crude oil and refined products above 
and below optimal inventory levels, which represent the volumes in stock and in transit within our system. 
These strategies are designed to minimize, on a short-term basis, our exposure to the risk of fluctuations in crude 
oil prices and refined product margins. This hedging activity is closely managed and subject to internally 
established risk standards. The results of these hedging activities are recognized in our financial statements as 
adjustments to the refining costs of sales and inventory costs. 

Fluctuations in the crude oil price were significant during 2007. Based on data from Platts, the price of 
Dated Brent crude oil (free on board, Sullom Voe) was $58.93 per barrel at the start of the year and ended at 
$96.02 per barrel. Crude oil prices have increased significantly (with some volatility) since the beginning of 
2005, although prices at the end of 2006 were generally in line with those at the beginning of 2006. Prices 
declined in January 2007 although they remained above $50 per barrel and have since increased to above $60 
per barrel. We expect prices to remain volatile in the future. 

Our revenues and cash flows, as well as estimates of future cash flows are sensitive to changes in 
energy prices. Major shifts in the cost of crude oil and the price of refined products can result in significant 
changes in the operating margin from refining operations. Energy prices also determine the carrying value of our 
inventory. 

We enter into commodity derivative contracts from time to time to manage our price exposure to our 
inventory positions and our purchases of crude oil in the refining process, and to fix margins on certain future 
production. The commodity derivative contracts may take the form of futures contracts or price swaps and are 
entered into with reputable counter-parties. Gains and losses on futures contracts, realized and unrealized, are 
recognized in cost of goods sold at the time the contract is bought or sold (marked to market). 

Hedging activities/Hedge of inventory 

We enter into certain derivatives transactions in order to keep price risk exposure and volume 
exposures within limits set out in our risk policy, including a value-at-risk limit on total exposure of $5 million 
for hedging activities and trading activities. See “—Trading activities.” For example, if we have a long physical 
exposure (i.e., we have more volume priced oil than the normal position) we can offset most of the price risk of 
this long physical exposure by going equally short on derivative contracts with the same (or similar) underlying 
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commodity. As of December 31, 2007, we had a net short position on crude oil and refined products derivative 
contracts of 161,000 cubic meters. The unrealized loss on these contracts was SEK 36 million as of December 
31, 2007. 

Trading activities 

We also enter into derivative transactions which are unrelated to physical exposure and are therefore 
classified as “speculative.” These transactions are monitored against profit and loss limits set out in our risk 
policy which do not permit trading risk greater than $0.5 million per trade. The risk amount limit for the total 
exposure (based on volumetric deviation from the normal position distributions) is set at $5 million. To measure 
the risk amount on our total exposure, we use a value-at-risk model that is updated on a daily basis. As of 
December 31, 2007, the following commodity derivative contract was not treated as a hedge: a long gasoline 
crack of 8,000 cubic meters and a long crude oil futures position of 500 cubic meters. The unrealized loss on our 
trading activities was SEK 0.2 million as of December 31, 2007. 

Foreign Currency Risk 

We primarily use forward exchange contracts and, to a lesser extent, currency options and currency 
swaps to manage our foreign currency risk. See “—Fluctuations in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates” for a 
discussion of our exposure to changes in the dollar-krona and euro-krona exchange rates. 

As of December 31, 2007, the krona-denominated, fixed-rate indebtedness of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings totaled SEK 235 million and the krona-denominated, variable-rate indebtedness of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings totaled SEK 7,985 million. As of December 31, 2007, the dollar-denominated, fixed-rate indebtedness 
of Corral Petroleum Holdings totaled $55 million and the dollar-denominated, variable-rate indebtedness of 
Corral Petroleum Holdings totaled $478 million. 
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The table below presents, as of December 31, 2007, a summary of our financial instruments by 
functional currency and expected maturity dates, which are derived from the audited consolidated financial 
statements of Corral Petroleum Holdings. 

 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013+ 
Total 

Value(1) 

% of 
Total 
Long 
Term 
Debt 

 SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK % 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 
 (in millions, except percentages) 

Krona-denominated 
indebtedness as of  

December 31, 2007: 

      

Fixed rate debt – amount due ....... — — 235 — — — 235 2% 243 
Variable rate debt – amount due... 1,876 1,876 1,876 2,357 — — 7,985 69% 7,985 

Dollar denominated 
indebtedness as of  

December 31, 2007: 

      

Fixed rate debt – amount due ....... — — 356 — — — 356 3% 374 
Variable rate debt – amount due... 162 — — 2,927 — — 3,089 26% 3,089 

____________ 
(1)  Includes current portion of long-term debt. 

Corral Petroleum Holdings had, as of December 31, 2007, cash and cash equivalents in foreign 
currencies amounting to SEK 51 million, of which none was denominated in dollars, the equivalent of SEK 27 
million was denominated in euro and the equivalent of SEK 24 million was denominated in British pounds. 

 Variable Rate Fixed Rate 
Krona ........................................................................................................... SEK 7,985 million SEK 235 million 
Dollar........................................................................................................... $478 million $55 million 
Euro ............................................................................................................. — — 
 



 

 38 
 

The table below presents, as of December 31, 2006, a summary of our financial instruments by 
functional currency and expected maturity dates, which are derived from the audited consolidated financial 
statements of Corral Petroleum Holdings. 

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012+ 
Total 

Value (1) 

% of 
Total 
Long 
Term 
Debt 

 SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK % 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 
 (in millions, except percentages) 

Krona-denominated 
indebtedness as of  

December 31, 2006: 

         

Fixed rate debt – amount due ..... — — — 235 — — 235 2% 251 
Variable rate debt – amount due. 300 — — — 8,540 — 8,840 68% 8,840 

Dollar denominated 
indebtedness as of  

December 31, 2006: 

         

Fixed rate debt – amount due ..... — — — 378 — — 378 3% 389 
Variable rate debt – amount due. 172 — — — 3,393 — 3,565 27% 3,565 

____________ 
(1)  Includes current portion of long-term debt. 

Corral Petroleum Holdings had, as of December 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents in foreign 
currencies amounting to SEK 129 million, of which the equivalent of SEK 92 million was denominated in 
dollars and the equivalent of SEK 37 million was denominated in euro. 

 Variable Rate Fixed Rate 
Krona ........................................................................................................ SEK 8,840 million SEK 235 million 
Dollar........................................................................................................ $519 million $55 million 
Euro .......................................................................................................... — — 
 

Interest Rate Risk 

In the normal course of our business, we hold various financial instruments that expose us to the risk of 
loss arising from changes in the market interest rates. 

We use interest rate swaps to manage our interest rate risk. On December 31, 2007, Corral Petroleum 
Holdings had an open interest rate swap position, with a negative amount of SEK 29 million. On December 31, 
2006, Corral Petroleum Holdings had an open positive interest rate swap position, with net accrued income of 
$0.2 million. 
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As of December 31, 2007, SEK 591 million of the indebtedness of Corral Petroleum Holdings required 
payment at fixed rates and SEK 11,074 million required payment at variable rates. The table below presents, as 
of December 31, 2007, principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity 
dates, which are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Corral Petroleum Holdings. 

 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013+ 
Total 

Value(1) 

% of 
Total 
Long-
Term 
Debt 

 SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK % 
Estimated 
Fair Value 

 (in millions, except percentages) 
As of December 31, 2007          

Fixed rate debt-amount due....... — — 591 — — — 591 5% 617 
Weighted average interest rate .. — — 6.10% — — — 6.10% — — 
Variable rate debt-amount due .. 2,038 1,876 1,876 5,284 — — 11,074 95% 11,074 
Weighted average interest rate .. 6.54% 6.96% 6.96% 6.53% — — 6.68% — — 

____________ 
(1)  Includes current portion of long-term debt 

As of December 31, 2006, SEK 613 million of the indebtedness of Corral Petroleum Holdings required 
payment at fixed rates and SEK 12,405 million required payment at variable rates. The table below presents, as 
of December 31, 2006, principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity 
dates, which are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of Corral Petroleum Holdings. 

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012+ 
Total 

Value(1) 

% of 
Total 
Long-
Term 
Debt 

 SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK SEK % 
Estimated 
Fair Value 

 (in millions, except percentages) 
As of December 31, 2006          

Fixed rate debt-amount due....... — — — 613 — — 613 5% 640 
Weighted average interest rate .. — — — 6.1% — — 6.1% — — 
Variable rate debt-amount due .. 472 — — — 11,933 — 12,405 95% 12,405 
Weighted average interest rate .. 4.6% — — — 5.9% — 5.9% — — 

____________ 
(1)  Includes current portion of long-term debt 

Recently issued accounting standards 

There are no new Swedish GAAP accounting standards with which we have had to comply. Corral 
Petroleum Holdings adopted IFRS as from January 1, 2008. See “—Adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)” and “Selected Consolidated Financial Information of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings— Principal Differences between Swedish GAAP and IFRS.” 

Critical accounting policies 

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Swedish GAAP, which differs in 
certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. The principal differences between Swedish GAAP and U.S. 
GAAP are discussed in “Selected Consolidated Financial Information of Corral Petroleum Holdings” included 
elsewhere in this annual report. 

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires the use of estimates, judgments and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and provisions at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. We have identified 
the accounting policies discussed below as the most critical policies upon which our financial status depends. 
We believe that these critical accounting policies involve management’s most complex or subjective judgments 
and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements that could impact our financial 
results. 
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Impairment of long-lived assets 

We review long-lived assets used in our business on an annual basis for impairment, or whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or a group of assets may not be 
recoverable. An impaired asset or a group of assets may not be recoverable. An impaired asset is written down 
to its estimated fair value. We estimate fair value based on independent appraisals and projected cash flows 
discounted at a rate determined by management to be commensurate with our business risk. The estimation of 
fair value using these methods is subject to numerous uncertainties, which require our significant judgment 
when making assumptions of revenues, operating costs, selling and administrative expenses, interest rates and 
general economic business conditions, among other factors. 

Inventory 

Our inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. We use the FIFO (“first in, first out”) method 
to determine the cost of our crude oil and refined product inventories. The carrying value of these inventories is 
sensitive to volatile market prices.  

If refined product prices decline compared to the acquisition value at the end of a period, then we may 
be required to write down the value of our inventories in future periods. 

Contingencies 

We record an estimated loss from a loss contingency when information available prior to issuance of 
our financial statements indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been 
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
Accounting for contingencies such as environmental, legal and income tax matters requires us to use our 
judgment. While we believe that our accruals for these matters are adequate, if the actual loss from a loss 
contingency is significantly different than the estimated loss, our results of operations may be over- or 
understated. 
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BUSINESS 

Overview 

Our operating subsidiary, Preem Petroleum, is one of Europe’s largest independent oil refining 
companies and the largest Swedish oil refining company, according to the Swedish Petroleum Institute. We 
conduct our business through our wholly-owned operating company, Preem Petroleum, which operates its 
business through two segments, a supply and refining segment and a marketing segment. We refine crude oil in 
Sweden and then market and sell refined products primarily in Sweden and other northern European markets, 
including Scandinavia, the United Kingdom, Germany, and the United States and, to a lesser extent, other 
markets. Our refineries represent approximately 75% of the refining capacity in Sweden and approximately 30% 
of the refining capacity in Scandinavia, according to the Swedish Petroleum Institute. We sell more refined 
products in Sweden than any of our competitors. In Sweden, we had leading market shares in 2007 in terms of 
sales volume of approximately 29% in diesel, 36% in heating oil and 59% in fuel oil, based on data from the 
Swedish Statistical Central Bureau. In addition, our marketing segment’s share of the Swedish gasoline market 
in terms of sales volume was approximately 11% in 2007, based on data from the Swedish Statistical Central 
Bureau. 

Our supply and refining segment purchases and refines crude oil and then sells refined products 
wholesale to our marketing segment and to third parties. We also own an extensive network of storage depots in 
Sweden. Our marketing segment consists of two divisions: a business-to-business division and a station and 
consumer division. The marketing segment resells refined products, wholesale, primarily in Sweden. We also 
sell gasoline, diesel, lubricants, convenience store items and other products through approximately 475 Preem-
branded service stations. In 2007, approximately 18% (by value) of the products made by our supply and 
refining segment was sold to our marketing segment and the other 82% was sold to third parties. 

The following table shows the sales revenue and operating income for the business segments of Preem 
Petroleum, our operating subsidiary, for each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007. 

 Years ended December 31 
 2006 2007 
 SEK SEK €(1) 
 (in millions) 

Sales Revenue:    
Supply and refining(2)(3) ................................................................  66,407 63,167 6,668 
Marketing(3) .................................................................................  13,525 12,201 1,288 
Exchange rate differences(3) ........................................................  (270) (63) (7) 
Group eliminations(3) ...................................................................  12,227 (11,391) (1,202) 

Total Sales Revenue(4)(5) ...............................................................  67,435 63,914 6,747 
Operating Income:     

Supply and refining(3) ..................................................................  2,766 4,586 484 
Marketing(3) .................................................................................  (52) (74) (8) 
Other non-allocated income (expense)(5)(6) ..................................  (439) (803) (84) 

Total Operating Income(5) ............................................................  2,275 3,709 392 
____________ 
 (1) We have translated kronor into euro at the rate of €1.00=SEK 9.4735 (the exchange rate on December 31, 2007). We have provided 

this translation solely for your convenience. The exchange rate on March 31, 2008 was €1.00=SEK 9.3920. 

(2) Includes sales by our supply and refining segment to our marketing segment of SEK 12,156 million (€1,283 million) for 2006 and 
SEK 11,361 million (€1,199 million) for 2007. We have included inter-company sales revenue in the total for our supply and refining 
segment. These sales are made at market rates. Since refined products are commodities, these sales could have been made to third 
parties at similar prices. We believe that including these amounts in supply and refining segment sales revenue properly reflects the 
results of these segments for purposes of comparison. Such inter-company sales are eliminated in our audited annual consolidated 
financial statements. 

(3) These line items are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007. 

(4) Total sales revenue is our total revenue less excise duties, which are taxes collected at the point of sale by us and remitted to the 
governments of the countries in which we operate, primarily Sweden. 

(5) These line items for the year ended December 31, 2006 show Corral Petroleum Holdings’ pro forma results adjusted to deconsolidate 
the operation of CMH. See “Selected Consolidated Financial Information of Corral Petroleum Holdings.” 

(6) In order to evaluate the performance of our segments, we allocate certain items as “non-allocated income (expense).” Specifically, we 
include in non-allocated income (expense) our “corporate cost center” and foreign exchange gains or losses related to our inventory 
and our accounts payable/receivable. Our corporate cost center includes administrative and personnel-related expenses. 
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Supply and Refining Operations 

Our supply and refining segment purchases and refines crude oil and then sells refined products 
wholesale to our marketing segment and to third parties. Our supply and refining segment operates our wholly-
owned Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff Gothenburg refineries. Through these two refineries, we have an 
aggregate capacity of approximately 335,000 barrels of crude oil per calendar day. These refineries produced 
approximately 95 million barrels of refined products in 2007 and 109 million barrels in 2006. The refining 
margins at Preemraff Lysekil were $6.77 per barrel in 2007 and $5.55 per barrel in 2006. The refining margins 
at Preemraff Gothenburg were $1.34 per barrel in 2007 and $2.64 per barrel in 2006. We also own an extensive 
network of storage depots in Sweden. In 2007, our supply and refining segment had sales revenue of SEK 
63,167 million (€6,668 million) and operating income of SEK 4,586 million (€484 million). 

The operations of our two refineries are combined, and they have been operated by one management 
team since January 2007. This has enabled us to reduce our combined operating costs, consolidate our 
management and administrative infrastructure, and optimize investments in upgrading our refining capabilities. 

Preemraff Lysekil 

Preemraff Lysekil is the largest oil refinery in Sweden, representing approximately 50% of Swedish 
refining capacity, based on data from the Swedish Petroleum Institute. Preemraff Lysekil is a complex, large-
scale refinery with a strong market position producing a full range of refined products. The refinery has 
visbreaker, catalytic cracker and mild hydrocracker upgrading units geared towards converting a significant 
portion of our residual fuel oil to lighter, higher-value products. In February 2006, we commissioned our new 
isocracker unit at Preemraff Lysekil, which has enhanced these capabilities. In addition, Preemraff Lysekil has a 
total storage capacity of approximately 15 million barrels, which provides it with additional operating 
flexibility. The refinery is located on a 470-acre site on the west coast of Sweden, north of the city of 
Gothenburg. The refinery is situated on a peninsula providing direct jetty access to oil tankers for both the 
import of crude oil and the distribution of refined products. The refinery has a total refining capacity of 
approximately 210,000 barrels of crude oil per calendar day. The aggregate production of refined products at 
Preemraff Lysekil was approximately 59.5 million barrels in 2007 and 68.2 million barrels in 2006. 
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Preemraff Lysekil’s facilities have been upgraded several times through large capital investments. As a 
result of these improvements, we believe that Preemraff Lysekil is one of the most sophisticated and flexible 
refineries in Europe. The following table summarizes the upgrades to Preemraff Lysekil: 

Upgrade at Preemraff Lysekil Function Year 
Visbreaker..................................................... Reduces the viscosity of the fuel oil and increases the yield of 

heating oil and gasoline 
1982 

Catalytic Cracker .......................................... Converts vacuum gasoil, a semi-finished product, into gasoline, 
heating oil and fuel oil 

1984 

Mild Hydrocracker........................................ Desulphurizes and converts vacuum gasoil into lighter products 
and feedstock for the catalytic cracker 

1988 

Isomerization Unit ........................................ Converts light naphtha into high-octane, low-benzene gasoline 
components 

1991 

Desulphurization/ 
Dearomatization Unit....................................

Converts conventional heating oil or diesel into virtually 
sulphur-free, low-aromatic diesel 

1994 

Tailgas Treatment Sulphur Recovery Unit ... Removes hydrogen sulphide and nitrogen oxides from refinery 
gases and recovers liquid sulphur 

1994 

Prefractionater .............................................. Reduces benzene formation in the platformer unit 1999 

Propylene Recovery Unit.............................. Removes propylene from polygasoline production and refinery 
fuel gas and recovers propylene 

2002 

Petrol Gas Recovery Unit ............................. Recovers petrol gas in connection with the loading of products 
onto tankers 

2003 

Isocracker Unit ............................................. Converts vacuum gas oil to lighter, higher-value products 2006 

 
Imported crude oil arrives at Preemraff Lysekil by way of a single jetty that can accommodate tankers 

of up to 500,000 dead weight tons. Approximately 100 vessels carrying crude oil arrive at Preemraff Lysekil 
each year. Crude oil can be unloaded at a rate of approximately 113,000 barrels per hour through steel pipes 
leading into five underground crude oil storage caverns. These caverns have been blasted out of solid rock and 
have an aggregate capacity of approximately 8 million barrels. They have sophisticated equipment designed to 
ensure efficient and environmentally safe storage. 

Crude oil is pumped from the underground caverns into three above-ground crude “day tanks” with a 
total capacity of approximately 800,000 barrels and from there into the crude distillation unit. In a typical full 
day of operations, crude oil from one “day tank” is pumped into the crude distillation unit, while the depleted 
tank from the previous day’s refining is refilled from the underground caverns. 

Preemraff Lysekil operates a single crude distillation unit. During distillation, crude oil is heated until it 
separates into different fractions. A fraction is a mixture of liquid hydrocarbons, all of which have 
approximately the same boiling range. The heaviest fraction is further processed in the vacuum distillation unit 
to achieve the maximum volume of distillates. After the distillation, Preemraff Lysekil further refines, upgrades 
and processes the distillates as follows: 

• Visbreaker, Catalytic Cracker and Mild Hydrocracker.  Fuel oil can be upgraded into higher-value 
products in several ways. Preemraff Lysekil has invested in three upgrading units for this purpose. 
First, in 1982, Preemraff Lysekil invested in a visbreaker, which reduces the viscosity of the fuel 
oil and increases the yield of heating oil and gasoline. Second, in 1984, Preemraff Lysekil added a 
catalytic cracker, which, by means of a catalyst, converts vacuum gasoil, a semi-finished product, 
into gasoline, heating oil and fuel oil. Third, in 1988, Preemraff Lysekil invested in a mild 
hydrocracker, which desulphurizes vacuum gasoil and converts it into lighter products and 
feedstock for the catalytic converter. 

• Isomerization Unit.  The naphtha fraction (after desulphurization) is processed in a reformer unit to 
increase octane. Since 1991, Preemraff Lysekil has operated an isomerization unit in which the 
lightest part of the naphtha is processed into high-octane and low-benzene gasoline components. 
“Benzene” is an aromatic compound, the presence of which in refined products is often regulated 
by environmental laws. 
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• Desulphurization/Dearomatization Unit.  Preemraff Lysekil has a highly sophisticated heating 
oil/diesel desulphurization/dearomatization unit that was completed in 1994. This unit enables 
Preemraff Lysekil to produce virtually sulphur-free (10 parts per million) diesel fuel with an 
aromatic content of 5%, which exceeds current specifications in the EU of 50 parts per million for 
sulphur. 

• Tailgas Treatment Sulphur Recovery Unit.  Preemraff Lysekil has a sulphur recovery unit 
combined with a tailgas-treating unit, which removes hydrogen sulphide and nitrogen oxides from 
refining gases. 

• Prefractionater.  Preemraff Lysekil added a prefractionater to its platformer unit in 1999, which 
reduces benzene formation in the platformer. 

• Propylene Recovery Unit.  Preemraff Lysekil has a propylene recovery unit, which removes and 
recovers propylene from polygasoline production and refinery fuel gas. 

• Petrol Gas Recovery Unit.  Preemraff Lysekil installed a petrol gas recovery unit in 2003, which 
recovers petrol gas in connection with the loading of products onto tankers. 

• Isocracker Unit.  Preemraff Lysekil commissioned an isocracker unit in 2006, which converts 
vacuum gas oil to lighter, higher-value products. 

After processing, Preemraff Lysekil pumps the various refined products to the refinery’s 49 
intermediate and finished product tanks and six additional refined product storage caverns with an aggregate 
capacity of approximately 6.3 million barrels. From the intermediate tanks, Preemraff Lysekil pumps 
components to one of four blending stations for final product mix, one station for gasoline, two for diesel, and 
one for fuel oil. Preemraff Lysekil stores the final products in product tanks. To the extent practicable, 
intermediate products are blended “online,” as required, and loaded directly onto product tanker vessels, thus 
reducing the need for blended product storage. Preemraff Lysekil has two separate product jetties with a total of 
five berths at which tankers dock as many as 1,500 times per year for loading of refined products. Preemraff 
Lysekil distributes almost all of its products by sea for domestic and international use. Given the sheltered 
position of Preemraff Lysekil’s berths, weather conditions over the last six years have not caused any significant 
delay or disruption in either unloading crude oil or loading refined products. 

Historically, every four years, Preemraff Lysekil has been completely shut down for turnaround 
maintenance, which includes inspection of all processing units. The total shut-down period typically lasts six 
weeks, which includes two weeks for shut-down and start-up activities. We received permission from the 
Swedish authorities to perform the major turnaround maintenance at Preemraff Lysekil every five years, instead 
of every four, with the most recent in the third quarter of 2007. From September 3, 2007 through November 5, 
2007, Preemraff Lysekil was shut down for the planned turnaround, which included all units in the refinery and 
lasted nearly eight weeks, which is approximately two weeks longer than anticipated. The extension of the 
turnaround was attributable to severe weather conditions during the first two weeks and the fact that certain key 
units needed a larger overhaul than anticipated. In addition, certain key improvement projects have been carried 
out to further improve the performance of the refinery. This included modernization of the 
desulphurization/dearomatization unit and of the catalytic cracker for improved capacity and yields.  All units at 
Preemraff Lysekil have been fully operational since completion of the turnaround in November 2007. 
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The following table shows our share of Preemraff Lysekil’s feedstocks and production for the years 
2006 and 2007. 

 2006 2007 

 
Thousand 

bbls % 
Thousand 

bbls % 
Feedstocks    

Sweet Crude Oil ..............................................................  14,196 20 14,045 23 
Sour Crude Oil ................................................................  54,482 78 45,564 75 
Unfinished and Blend Stocks ..........................................  1,265 2 1,056 2 

Total Feedstock 69,943 100 60,666 100 
   
Utilization Rate(1) 91(3) 79(3) 
   
Production   

Liquefied Petroleum Gas.................................................  1,288 2 1,113 2 
Gasoline ..........................................................................  21,960 32 19,966 34 
Diesel ..............................................................................  23,393 34 24,496 41 
Heating Oil......................................................................  4,056 6 430 1 
Vacuum Gas Oil..............................................................  3,674 5 857 1 
Heavy Fuel Oil ................................................................  13,008 19 11,616 20 
Other ...............................................................................  813 1 1,019 2 

Total Production 68,192 100 59,457 100 
____________ 
(1) Total crude feedstock expressed as a percentage of the total refining capacity of 210,000 barrels crude per calendar day. 

(2) During 2006 there were planned turnarounds on the fluid catalytic cracker and the mild hydrocracker which affected the total 
throughput. There were also production losses during the first three quarters of 2006 during the commissioning of the isocracker  unit. 

(3) The lower utilization rate in 2007 reflects the planned turnaround and the subsequent delayed start-up. 

As the table above shows, Preemraff Lysekil’s reliance on specific feedstocks varies from year to year. 
However, because Preemraff Lysekil is a highly sophisticated cracking facility, its production levels for refined 
products remained relatively constant across this time period. Preemraff Lysekil uses linear programming 
technology to determine the most profitable product mix for its market given the available crude oil supply. 
Preemraff Lysekil is able to process a high proportion of sour crude oil, which is higher in sulphur and typically 
lower in price compared to sweet crude oil. 

Preemraff Gothenburg 

We believe that Preemraff Gothenburg (previously named Preemraff) is one of the most sophisticated 
hydroskimming refineries in Europe and that it represents approximately 25% of Swedish refining capacity, 
based on data from the Swedish Petroleum Institute. The refinery has a highly sophisticated 
desulphurization/dearomatization unit, which permits it to manufacture virtually sulphur-free (10 parts per 
million) diesel. In addition, the refinery uses its catalytic reformer and isomerization unit to convert naphtha, a 
portion of which is received from Preemraff Lysekil, into higher-value gasoline. The refinery is located on a 
340-acre site near the harbor of Torshamnen, Sweden’s largest harbor, in Gothenburg. Preemraff Gothenburg’s 
proximity to this harbor helps it to maintain low crude oil transportation costs and its proximity to Gothenburg, 
the second largest city in Sweden, helps it to minimize distribution costs. Preemraff Gothenburg has a total 
refining capacity of approximately 125,000 barrels of crude oil per calendar day. Aggregate production of 
refined products at Preemraff Gothenburg was approximately 35.6 million barrels in 2007 and 40.3 million 
barrels in 2006. 

Preemraff Gothenburg has been upgraded several times through large capital investments. As a result 
of these improvements, we believe that Preemraff Gothenburg is one of the best-performing hydroskimming 
refineries in Europe. The following chart summarizes upgrades to Preemraff Gothenburg: 
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Upgrade at Preemraff Lysekil Function Year 
Isomerization Unit ................................................... Produces an additional low-benzene gasoline 

component 
1993 

Desulphurization/ 
  Dearomatization Unit.............................................

 
Converts conventional heating oil or diesel into 
virtually sulphur-free, low aromatic fuel 

 
1997 

Heavy Gasoil Upgrading Unit ................................. Upgrades heavy gasoil into heating oil for commercial 
use 

1997 

Sulphur Recovery Units........................................... Converts hydrogen sulphide into liquid sulphur 1997 
Molex Unit............................................................... Increases the octane of the gasoline component 

isomerate 
2002 

Mild Hydrocracker Unit........................................... Upgrades heavy oil production to environmentally 
classified diesel 

2003 

 
Imported crude oil arrives by ship at the harbor of Torshamnen, which is capable of receiving crude oil 

carriers in excess of 200,000 dead weight tons, and is then transported to Preemraff Gothenburg by pipeline. 
Between 50 and 60 crude oil carriers arrive at Torshamnen each year. At Preemraff Gothenburg, the crude oil is 
discharged into seven above-ground storage tanks and two underground caverns with a combined storage 
capacity of approximately 5.6 million barrels. 

Preemraff Gothenburg operates two identical crude distillation units. During distillation, the crude oil is 
heated until it separates into different fractions. After distillation, Preemraff Gothenburg further refines, 
upgrades and processes the fractions as follows: 

• Liquefied Petroleum Gas Unit.  In the liquefied petroleum gas unit, installed in 1967, Preemraff 
Gothenburg separates the gas fractions (butane and propane) by distillation from the high-octane 
component. 

• Isomerization Unit.  The naphtha fraction (after desulphurization) is processed in a reformer unit to 
increase octane. In Preemraff Gothenburg’s isomerization unit, completed in 1993, an additional, 
low-benzene component for blending gasoline is produced. 

• Desulphurization/Dearomatization Unit.  Preemraff Gothenburg’s highly sophisticated heating 
oil/diesel desulphurization/dearomatization unit was completed in 1997. This unit enables 
Preemraff Gothenburg to produce virtually sulphur-free (10 parts per million) and low-aromatic 
diesel from crude oil with high sulphur, which is typically lower in price than crude oil with low-
sulphur content. 

• Heavy Gasoil Upgrading Unit.  In 1997, Preemraff Gothenburg installed a heavy gasoil-upgrading 
unit, which upgrades heavy gasoil into heating oil for commercial use. 

• Sulphur Recovery Units.  The hydrogen sulphide formed during the various desulphurization 
reactions is fed to Preemraff Gothenburg’s sulphur recovery units, which were installed in 1997, 
and converted to liquid sulphur for resale as a feedstock to chemical companies. 

• Molex Unit.  In 2002, Preemraff Gothenburg installed a molex unit, which increases the octane of 
the gasoline component isomerate. 

• Mild Hydrocracker Unit.  In 2003, Preemraff Gothenburg completed construction of a mild 
hydrocracker unit, which enables Preemraff Gothenburg to upgrade part of its heavy oil production 
to higher-margin, environmentally classified diesel. 

After processing, refined products are stored in the facility’s 70 storage tanks and three underground 
caverns with a total capacity of approximately 6.5 million barrels. The products are pumped by pipeline from 
the refinery to an oil terminal in the harbor of Skarvik, two kilometers south of Preemraff Gothenburg. From 
there, we distribute the product to the market by ship, rail and truck. 

Preemraff Gothenburg has two integrated systems for the utilization of waste or surplus heat with a 
total capacity in excess of 100 megawatts. The system enables selling surplus heat, which would otherwise be 
wasted, corresponding to approximately 184,000 barrels of fuel oil per year to the district heating system of the 
city of Gothenburg and approximately 113,000 barrels of fuel oil per year to AB Volvo. Preemraff Gothenburg 
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generated additional operating income from these activities of SEK 65 million (€7 million) in 2007 with 
relatively little additional operating cost. 

Every four years, Preemraff Gothenburg is completely shut down for turnaround maintenance, which 
includes inspection of all processing units. The maintenance period typically lasts four to six weeks. The most 
recent major turnaround maintenance was in the second quarter of 2007. During the start-up of the refinery, a 
fire erupted at one of the crude units, causing a delay in re-starting the unit. Other units were also indirectly 
affected due to lack of feed components and hydrogen. The loss due to the fire is estimated at approximate SEK 
80 million (€8 million). Since mid-June 2007, the units affected by the fire have been running according to plan. 

The following table shows Preemraff Gothenburg’s feedstocks and production for the years 2006 and 
2007. 

 2006 2007 

 
Thousand 

bbls % 
Thousand 

bbls % 
Feedstocks     
Sweet Crude Oil.................................................................  38,585 92 34,240 92 
Sour Crude Oil...................................................................  269 — 0 0 
Unfinished and Blend Stocks.............................................  3,275 8 2,809 8 
Total Feedstock ................................................................  42,130 100 37,049 100 
     
Utilization Rate(1)  92  81(2) 
     
Production     
Liquefied Petroleum Gas ...................................................  1,022 3 969 3 
Gasoline.............................................................................  11,013 27 9,268 26 
Diesel.................................................................................  11,828 29 9,888 28 
Heating Oil ........................................................................  4,273 11 4,181 12 
Heavy Fuel Oil...................................................................  12,085 30 10,519 30 
Other ..................................................................................  160 — 799 2 
Total Production ..............................................................  40,381 100 35,623 100 
____________ 
(1) Total crude feedstock expressed as a percentage of the total refining capacity of 125,000 barrels crude per calendar day. 

(2) The lower utilization rate in 2007 reflects the planned turnaround and the subsequent delayed start-up. 

Distribution 

Both Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff Gothenburg are well situated for the efficient distribution of 
products to market. Transportation costs are a significant cost component of refined products. Given this, we 
believe that the location of our refineries on harbors in western Sweden provides us with a competitive 
advantage in our target markets. Preemraff Lysekil ships almost all of its production, and Preemraff Gothenburg 
ships approximately 75% of its production, by sea to domestic and international markets. Preemraff 
Gothenburg’s location near Gothenburg, Sweden’s second largest city, also provides excellent access to rail and 
truck transport. We own an extensive network of storage depots in Sweden in which we store refined products 
from both Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff Gothenburg for distribution throughout the country. In addition, we 
generate additional revenue from third parties in the form of depot throughput fees and we cooperate with other 
oil companies to optimize depot use and cost. 

Products 

Our two refineries produce liquefied petroleum gas, gasoline, diesel, heating oil and fuel oil. In 
addition, Preemraff Gothenburg produces jet fuel and kerosene. There are, from time to time, substantial 
transfers of intermediates and components between the refineries in order to optimize the profitability of the 
refinery system. The volume of these transfers varies considerably from month to month and from year to year 
depending on the market prices of the components. 

Sales 

Our supply and refining segment exports over one half of its products each year (67% in 2007 and 65% 
in 2006). Our exports are primarily to northwestern Europe, including to other countries in Scandinavia, the 
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United Kingdom and Germany. In 2007, our supply and refining segment sold approximately 82% (by value) of 
its products to third parties and 18% to our marketing segment. With respect to third-party sales, we sell our 
refined products on the spot market and pursuant to sales agreements with terms generally not exceeding 12 
months. Our third-party customers are predominantly other oil companies, including Svenska Statoil AB, OK-
Q8 AB, AB Svenska Shell, Norsk Hydro ASA and Conoco Jet Nordic. We sometimes sell liquefied petroleum 
gas and naphtha to petrochemical companies. All third-party sales of gasoline, jet fuel and diesel are sales to 
other oil companies or traders. Approximately 90% of our third-party sales of heavy fuel oil are sales to oil 
companies and traders, with the remaining 10% sold directly to industrial customers. 

Raw Materials 

Supply.  We purchase crude oil for both refineries from suppliers located in several different regions 
around the world. We purchase crude oil from North Sea suppliers (approximately 51% in 2007 and 48% in 
2006) and Russia (approximately 47% in 2007 and 50% in 2006). We have no supply contracts longer than 12 
months in duration. Over the last three years, we have purchased 75% to 90% of our crude oil on the spot 
market. This permits us to take advantage of the rapid price fluctuations in the crude oil supply market through 
our crude oil purchasing strategy. This strategy involves regularly monitoring market conditions for various 
types of crude oil as well as demand for refined products. Our objective is to minimize production costs (cost of 
crude oil, transportation and refining) and maximize sales revenue from the sale of the refined products that are 
most in demand. We supplement this purchasing strategy with various hedging instruments and forward sales 
contracts on refined products designed to lessen the risk of fluctuations in crude or refined product prices. 

Price Effect on Inventories.  We hold large inventories of crude oil and refined products and, as a 
result, our financial results are impacted by the effects of fluctuations in the market prices for crude oil and 
refined products. To the extent that crude oil and refined product prices rise in tandem, our gross profit would 
generally be positively affected because we compute the gross profit as the excess of sales revenue (determined 
at the time of sale at the higher refined product prices) over the cost of goods sold (determined at the earlier time 
the crude oil is purchased at lower prices). Thus, a portion of the gross profit that we earn during a period of 
rising prices may be attributable solely to the increase in prices during the period after we buy the crude oil and 
prior to the time we finish refining it and sell it. 

However, during periods of rising crude oil prices, the cost of replenishing our crude oil inventories 
and, thus, our working capital requirements, are similarly rising. Because changes in refined product prices tend 
to lag behind changes in crude oil prices, we generally experience the increased working capital requirements 
from higher crude oil prices sooner, and to a greater degree, than the benefits to our gross profit that may arise 
from selling products at higher refined product prices. Moreover, depending on the rate and the duration of the 
increase, and the degree to which crude oil prices move more than refined prices, our gross profit margins may 
actually decline during periods of rising crude oil prices. During periods of declining crude oil prices, we 
believe that we experience the opposite effects. 

We believe that, although the price effect on inventories may impact our results for a given period, over 
the long term, the effects of rising and falling oil prices tend to offset each other. In addition we believe that, 
from a cash flow perspective, the effects of rising and falling oil prices on gross profit and working capital tend 
to offset each other. Therefore, in comparing our results from period to period, we believe that it is important to 
note that these price effects on inventories are unrelated to, and do not reflect, the underlying efficiency of the 
refineries. See also “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures 
about Market Risk— Commodity Price Risk”. 

Inventory Management.  We employ several strategies to minimize the impact on our profitability of 
the volatility in feedstock costs and refined product prices. Our inventory management strategies include the 
purchase and sale of exchange-related, oil-related futures and options with a duration of 12 months or less. To a 
lesser extent, we also use oil swap agreements similar to those traded on international exchanges such as the 
International Petroleum Exchange, including crack spreads and crude oil options that, because they contain 
certain terms customized to the market in which we sell, such as point of delivery, are better suited to hedge 
against the specific price movements in our markets. The number of barrels of crude oil and refined products 
covered by such contracts varies from time to time. We hedge amounts of crude oil and refined products above 
and below optimal inventory levels, which represent the volumes in stock and in transit within our system. 
These strategies are designed to minimize, on a short-term basis, our exposure to the risk of fluctuations in crude 
oil prices and refined product margins. This hedging activity is closely managed and subject to internally 
established risk standards. The results of these hedging activities are recognized in our financial statements as 
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adjustments to the refining costs of sales and inventory costs. In addition, we are required to keep compulsory 
storage at our refineries and depots. Our substantial storage capacity also enables us to earn rental income by 
selling storage certificates to other oil companies for their EU-imposed compulsory storage obligations. 

Marketing Operations 

Our marketing segment, which consists of a business-to-business division and a station and consumer 
division, obtains all of its refined products from our supply and refining segment. Our marketing segment sells 
refined products to a network of independent dealers, who in turn sell these products to end-users, and sells 
diesel and fuel oil directly to Swedish companies. We also sell gasoline, diesel, lubricants, convenience store 
items and other products through approximately 475 Preem-branded service stations. In 2007, our marketing 
segment had sales revenue of SEK 12,201 million (€1,288 million) and an operating loss of SEK 74 million (€8 
million). On a stand-alone basis, none of our customer sales contracts or customer relationships is material to 
our business. 

Business-to-Business Division 

We previously sold refined products to a large number of commercial customers of varying size and to 
retail consumers. As part of the restructuring of our marketing segment, we no longer sell refined products 
directly to small-size commercial consumers or retail customers. Instead, we now supply our products to a 
network of independent dealers, who in turn sell directly to these customers. The dealers are contractually 
required to use us as their primary supplier, and are responsible for sales and delivery to the end-user. We have 
also outsourced route planning and transportation of products to the dealers, which has helped reduce our costs. 

Our business-to-business division now concentrates on sales to large- and medium-size commercial 
consumers. Through this division, we supply diesel and fuel oil to the industrial sector of Sweden, as well as to 
the transport and agricultural sectors and to the majority of the Swedish municipalities. Our customers include 
Saab Automobile AB, AB Volvo, Scania CV AB, Arizona Chemical AB, Södra Cell AB, Swebus AB, Viking 
Line AB, Stena Oil AB, Iggesund Paperboard AB, Fortum AB, Stora Enso AB, and SCA AB. 

Creating this network of independent dealers to handle sales to smaller commercial customers and 
retail consumers and focusing our sales and marketing efforts on larger commercial consumers has enabled us to 
reduce the size of our sales force and simplify our support functions. 

Station and Consumer Division 

Our station and consumer division consists of a network of Preem-branded service stations throughout 
Sweden, with a concentration in the more heavily populated south and west. We have a network of 
approximately 475 service stations in Sweden that operate under the Preem brand name. We also have a 
network of unmanned diesel stations that operate under the brand name “Såifa.” Our network consists of both 
full-service stations, offering a variety of products through integrated convenience stores aimed at consumers 
who prefer “one-stop shopping,” and low-cost unmanned self-service stations that simply sell gasoline and 
diesel at reduced prices for the price-sensitive customer. The following table shows a breakdown of Preem 
Petroleum’s manned and unmanned stations as of December 31, 2007. 

Type of Station Preem(1) Såifa Other(2) 
Manned ......................................................................................... 210 — 2 
Unmanned..................................................................................... 265 205 — 
Total ............................................................................................. 475 205 2 
____________ 
(1) All ten of our Preem-branded stations are boat stations, nine of which are manned and one of which is unmanned. 

(2) “Other” includes unbranded, stand-alone gasoline pumps. 

Our competitors have continued to adopt very aggressive pricing strategies that have affected our 
stations nationwide. We have adjusted our pricing accordingly in order to remain competitive. The results of the 
station and consumer division have been negatively impacted by this price competition and could continue to be 
negatively affected should such aggressive pricing continue. 



 

 50 
 

We conducted a retail strategy study in 2004 to seek to improve overall profitability of such operations. 
The study revealed that we had a good network with acceptable site locations, but our service stations lacked a 
unified profile. Accordingly, we are implementing a retail strategy designed to reduce our cost base, increase 
sales of fuels and convenience goods and improve our strength of brand. Part of this strategy involved working 
with partners and leveraging their marketing skills and brands on the Preem sites and customer base. Our new 
convenience shop concept has been well received among our customers. 

A key component of this strategy is to outsource the operation and management of our company-
operated stations and convenience shops to independent operators. This process is ongoing, and as of December 
31, 2007 we had two company-operated service stations as compared to 49 as of December 31, 2006. We aim to 
complete this process in 2008. The following table shows the number of owned and franchised service stations 
in our Preem and Såifa networks, as of December 31, 2007. It also shows the breakdown between those owned 
stores that are company-operated and those where management is outsourced. 

Type of Station Preem Såifa Other(1) 
Owned........................................................................................... 244 181 — 
Company-operated(2) .................................................................... 213 — — 
Outsourced.................................................................................... 31 — — 
Franchised..................................................................................... 233 24 2 
Total ............................................................................................. 475 205 2 
____________ 
(1) “Other” includes unbranded, stand-alone, unmanned gasoline pumps. 

(2) Includes 211 unmanned stations that we do not intend to transfer to independent operators. 

Transferring the operation of company-operated stores to independent operators is an important factor 
in the cost reductions achieved in connection with the restructuring of the marketing segment. In addition, we 
are standardizing relations with these independent operators, including with respect to site maintenance and 
category management, which helps us present a unified profile across our service stations. 

We are also attempting to strengthen our brand and unify our profile by introducing a new store layout 
at our company-operated full-service stations. This new layout has been implemented at approximately 40 
company-operated stations. We are continuing to roll out the new design to company-operated stations and plan 
to introduce the new layout to dealer-managed and franchised stations in the future. We are also working with 
various partners to further improve our shop appearance, prioritize customer segments and improve product 
management to improve turnover and margins. 

Through a subsidiary of Preem Petroleum, we also provide card facilities to our customers. Preem 
Finans AB (“Preem Finans”) is a credit market company (kreditmarknadsbolag) under the supervision of the 
Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority (“SFSA”). As such, Preem Finans provides various financing services 
to Preem Petroleum’s customers, including providing card facilities for financing purchases of fuel at our 
service stations. The boards of directors of Preem Finans and Preem Petroleum have resolved that Preem Finans 
shall cease its financing activities and dispose of this part of its business to an external credit institution. 
Following such disposal, and Preem Finans’ deregistration as a credit market company with the SFSA, we 
merged Preem Finans into Preem Petroleum on March 27, 2008. 

Competition 

Our supply and refining segment competes primarily with AB Svenska Shell, which owns and operates 
the only other competing oil refinery in Sweden and, to a lesser degree, with Neste Oil Corporation (Fortum Oil) 
and Statoil AS. Outside Sweden, we compete with all of the refineries in northwestern Europe that can serve our 
target markets in northwestern Europe, which include Scandinavia, the United Kingdom and Germany. The 
principal competitive factors affecting our refining operations are the price and availability of crude oil and 
other feedstock, refinery efficiency, the refined product mix, and product distribution and transportation costs. 
Our marketing segment competes primarily with AB Svenska Shell, OK-Q8 AB SV and Svenska Statoil AB. 
The principal competitive factors affecting our marketing segment are market volume, station throughput, 
product price, locations of service stations and brand identification. 

In Sweden, we had leading market shares in 2007 in terms of sales volume of approximately 29% in 
diesel, 36% in heating oil and 59% in fuel oil, based on data from the Swedish Statistical Central Bureau. In 
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addition, our marketing segment’s share of the Swedish gasoline market in terms of sales volume was 
approximately 11% in 2007, based on data from the Swedish Statistical Central Bureau. This ranked fifth, 
behind OK-Q8 AB, with approximately 28% market share, Statoil AB, with approximately 22% market share, 
Conoco Jet Nordic AB, with approximately 14% market share, and AB Svenska Shell, with approximately 13% 
market share, based on data from the Swedish Statistical Central Bureau. 

Regulatory and Environmental Matters 

We are subject to both Swedish and EU regulation on the production, storage, transportation and sale of 
petroleum products. Sweden was one of the first European countries to introduce strict environmental 
legislation, which required the Swedish petroleum industry to upgrade existing infrastructure earlier than other 
European refiners. Sweden has among the strictest environmental specifications in the EU. Current EU 
regulations allow a maximum sulphur content of 50 parts per million for gasoline and diesel and an aromatic 
content in gasoline of 35%. Under a voluntary agreement, the Swedish petroleum industry has undertaken to 
keep the maximum sulphur content at 10 parts per million for diesel in exchange for beneficial tax levels. The 
EU will restrict the sulphur content of gasoline and diesel to 10 parts per million, commencing in 2009. In 
addition, certain legislation and regulations, including with respect to taxation of refined products, that have 
been implemented in various countries in Europe, including in the United Kingdom and Germany, provide an 
incentive to us and other refining companies to produce gasoline and diesel with sulphur content below the 
minimum required by the EU’s 2005 specifications. The overall effect of such legislation is to increase market 
demand for products with lower sulphur content due to the tax and other benefits that suppliers can pass on to 
consumers. 

Our existing desulphurization capability enables us to produce products that meet the EU’s 2005 
sulphur specifications for gasoline and diesel at both refineries. Both of our refineries also produce certain 
quantities of virtually sulphur-free (10 parts per million) diesel. To meet the EU’s 2005 aromatic specification 
for gasoline, the isomerization unit at Preemraff Gothenburg was upgraded. In 2006, we commissioned the 
isocracker unit at Preemraff Lysekil, which has enhanced Preemraff Lysekil’s strong market position.  

The new isocracker unit has enabled Preemraff Lysekil to increase its throughput by approximately 
14% and produce more virtually sulphur-free (10 parts per million) diesel, a product for which there is 
increasing demand in Europe.  

After the isocracker unit became operational, we decreased our production of heating oil, a lower 
margin product, and increased our production of diesel, a higher-margin product, which we expect will improve 
our overall refining margins. Although we have made the necessary investments to meet the future EU 
specifications, our intention is to make additional investments to further upgrade our refineries. We are currently 
considering a heavy fuel upgrade project at Preemraff Lysekil. 

Intellectual Property 

Preem Petroleum holds the word and combined word and device trade mark registrations for Preem and 
the Preem bear logo in the EU, Sweden, Norway, Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania and Poland. Preem Petroleum also 
holds other Swedish trade mark registrations including “Renofin” and “Minima.” 

Preem Petroleum, directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries, also holds the following domain 
names: “preem.com,” “preem.net,” “preem.org” and “preem.se” (Sweden). 

Employees 

Excluding CMH, we employed an average of 1,486 persons in 2007 and 1,697 persons in 2006. All of 
our employees are subject to collective bargaining arrangements. We believe that our relations with our 
employees are good. We have not been involved in any material labor disputes or experienced any disruptions in 
production as a result of union activities of our employees in the last five years. 

Organizational structure 

Preem Petroleum is wholly-owned by Corral Petroleum Holdings. Corral Petroleum Holdings is 
wholly-owned by Corral Finans which is wholly-owned by Moroncha Holdings, which, in turn, is wholly-
owned by Mr. Mohammed Hussein Al-Amoudi. Mr. Al-Amoudi acquired all of the outstanding shares of Preem 
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Petroleum, then called OK Petroleum, in 1994 and its name was changed to Preem Petroleum in 1996. See 
“Operating and Financial Review Prospects—Refinancing of Indebtedness and Simplifying Group Structure—Merger 
of subsidiaries.” 

Legal Proceedings 

We have been and are involved in various legal proceedings incidental to the conduct of our business; 
however, we are not involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings that have had significant 
effects on our financial position or profitability. 

There has been a dispute in relation to our trademark “BioMil” on one of our diesel products.  The 
district court dismissed the counterparty’s claim for annulment of the trademark “BioMil,” together with the 
claimed damages of approximately SEK 163 million. Preem Petroleum was awarded compensation of its cost. 
The judgment will come into force if it is not appealed by May 15, 2008. 

Insurance 

Our operations are subject to all of the risks normally associated with oil refining and transportation 
that could result in damage to or loss of property, suspension of operations or injury or death to personnel or 
third parties. We insure our assets at levels that management believes reflect their current market value. Such 
assets include all capital items, such as chartered vessels, major equipment and land-based property. We own 
Preem Insurance Company Limited, a wholly-owned Irish insurance company, through which we insure our 
property and crude oil products. Preem Insurance Company Limited then reinsures on the international 
reinsurance market. 

We also carry public and products liability insurance for legal liability for personal and property 
damage to third parties. Our refineries and businesses also are covered by business interruption insurance for 
interruptions beyond 40 days, on average. We also carry insurance against loss of cargo, the destruction of, or 
damage to, chartered vessels and equipment in amounts, generally equal to replacement value. From time to 
time, however, we may not be able to obtain insurance against all risks or for equipment located in some 
geographic areas. This insurance is subject to deductibles and does not include liabilities or costs and expenses 
related to cargo carried on ship. Our property and liability insurance does not cover gradual environmental and 
other damage that was not the result of a sudden, unintended and unexpected insurable accident. 

Our operations are conducted in hazardous environments where accidents involving catastrophic 
damage or loss of life could result. Litigation arising from such an event may result in our being named a 
defendant in lawsuits asserting material claims. We insure ourselves for liability arising from our operations, 
including loss of or damage to third-party property, death or injury to third parties, statutory workers, 
compensation protection, and pollution caused by a sudden and accidental occurrence. Although there can be no 
assurance that the amount of insurance carried by us is sufficient to protect us fully in all events, all such 
insurance is carried at levels of coverage and deductibles that we consider financially prudent. A successful 
liability claim for which we are underinsured or uninsured could have a material adverse effect on us. 

Property, plant and equipment 

We own the Preemraff Gothenburg refinery and the site near Gothenburg on which it is located, which 
consists of 340 acres, and have easements that ensure the refinery’s access to the harbors of Torshamnen and 
Skarvik by way of pipelines. We also own the Preemraff Lysekil refinery and the 470 acres on which the 
refinery is located, as well as the harbors at Lysekil and Skarvik. Our main storage facilities, which consist of a 
total of approximately 37 acres, are also located in Sweden. All other properties that we use are leased in 
accordance with normal market conditions. 
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MANAGEMENT 

The following tables set forth certain information with respect to the directors and executive officers of 
Corral Finans, Corral Petroleum Holdings and Preem Petroleum as of April 29, 2008. 

Corral Finans 

Name Age Position(s) 
John P. Oswald ................................................ 48 Director, Chairman of the Board 
Richard Öhman................................................ 56 Director, Managing Director 
Bassam Aburdene ............................................ 59 Director 
Karim Karaman ............................................... 41 Director 
 
Corral Petroleum Holdings 

Name Age Position(s) 
Mohammed Hussein Al-Amoudi ..................... 61 Director, Chairman of the Board 
Richard Öhman................................................ 56 Director, Managing Director 
Ghazi Habib..................................................... 58 Director 
John P. Oswald ................................................ 48 Director 
Lennart Wikström............................................ 69 Director 
Karim Karaman ............................................... 41 Director 
 
Preem Petroleum 

Name Age Position(s) 
Michael G:son Löw ......................................... 56 Director, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 
Mohammed Hussein Al-Amoudi ..................... 61 Director, Chairman of the Board 
Sven-Erik Zachrisson....................................... 58 Director, First Vice-Chairman of the Board 
Ghazi Habib..................................................... 58 Director 
Cristian Mattsson ............................................. 39 Director—Employee Representative 
Lars Nelson......................................................  66 Director 
Carl Johan Ǻberg ............................................. 77 Director, Second Vice-Chairman of the Board 
John P. Oswald ................................................ 48 Director 
Richard Öhman................................................ 56 Director 
Karim Karaman ............................................... 41 Director 
Bassam Aburdene ............................................ 59 Director 
Lennart Sundén................................................ 55 Director 
Jan Henricsson................................................. 44 Director—Employee Representative 
Sofia Sundström............................................... 34 Deputy Director—Employee Representative 
Per Höjgård...................................................... 59 Director 
Magnus Heimburg ........................................... 40 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Andreas Viefhaus............................................. 44 Senior Vice-President, Sales and Marketing 
Martina Smedman............................................ 44 Senior Vice-President, Human Resources(3) 
Per Olsson........................................................ 57 Executive Vice-President, Refining 
Ingrid Bodin..................................................... 43 Executive Vice-President, Supply and Trading 
Johan Jervehed................................................. 42 Senior Vice-President, Services 
   

The business address of each director is Sandhamnsgatan 51, 115 90 Stockholm, Sweden. 

Mohammed Hussein Al-Amoudi was appointed director and Chairman of the Board of Preem Petroleum 
in March 2005. Mr. Al-Amoudi is also a director and Chairman of the Board of Corral Petroleum Holdings and 
is the sole shareholder of Moroncha Holdings (the sole shareholder of Corral Finans and our parent company). 
See “Related Party Transactions”. 

John P. Oswald has been a director and Chairman of the Board of Corral Finans since 2007. Mr. 
Oswald has also been a director of Corral Petroleum Holdings since 1999 and a director of Preem Petroleum 
since 1999. Mr. Oswald devotes approximately 25% of his time to Corral Petroleum Holdings and Preem 
Petroleum. Since 1994, he has been a principal shareholder of the Capital Trust Group, which, through its 
subsidiaries, has provided international merchant and investment banking services to Corral Petroleum 
Holdings, Preem Petroleum, Corral Finans and companies related to Mr. Al-Amoudi. See “Related Party 
Transactions”. Since 1997, Mr. Oswald has been a general partner and Chief Executive Officer of Bridge East 
Capital, a private equity fund. Mr. Oswald is also a director of a number of publicly and privately held 
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companies, including Societe Anonyme Marocaine de l’Industrie du Raffinage (“SAMIR”) in which Mr. Al-
Amoudi has a majority interest. 

Richard Öhman has been a director of Corral Finans since 2007. Mr. Öhman has also been a director of 
Preem Petroleum since 1994. Mr. Öhman has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Corral 
Petroleum Holdings since April 1999 and has been a director of that company since 1994. From 1996 to 1999, 
he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Midroc Scandinavia AB, in which Mr. Al-Amoudi has a 
majority interest. Since 1993, Mr. Öhman has been Director of Business Development at International 
Construction Management Consultants (UK) Limited. From 1991 to 1992, Mr. Öhman was in charge of 
Management and Business Development at ABV Rock Group KB, based in Riyadh. From 1983 to 1991, he was 
involved in international project financing at ABV AB/NCC AB, Stockholm. Mr. Öhman is a director of M2 
Engineering AB, Synoco Scandinavia AB and International Construction Management Consultant (UK) 
Limited. 

Karim Karaman has been a director of Preem Petroleum since 2000, of Corral Petroleum Holdings 
since 2006 and of Corral Finans since May 2007. Mr. Karaman has been a director of both Midroc Scandinavia 
AB, in which Mr. Al-Amoudi has a majority interest, and Svenska Petroleum Exploration AB, which Mr. Al-
Amoudi indirectly wholly owns, since 2000. He also has been a director of Britannic Hotels since 2004. From 
1993 to 1999, Mr. Karaman served as Vice President of Private Banking for ABN AMRO in Amsterdam, Paris 
and Geneva, specializing in the Middle East. 

Lars Nelson has been a director of Preem Petroleum since 1996. He was President and Chief Executive 
Officer of Preem Petroleum from 1996 to 2003. From 1981 to 1996, he was President of Skandinaviska 
Raffinaderi AB Scanraff. Preem Petroleum has employed Mr. Nelson in various capacities since 1974. He also 
has been a director of SAMIR and Midroc Industries AB, a subsidiary of Midroc Scandinavia AB. See “Related 
Party Transactions.” 

Per Höjgård has been a director of Preem Petroleum since March 2007. Mr. Höjgård had been Chief 
Financial Officer of Preem Petroleum since 1990 and retired from his position as of March 31, 2007.  He was 
succeeded by Mr. Heimburg. Mr. Höjgård has served in similar positions in several public industrial companies. 
Before his employment with Preem Petroleum, he was a partner in a management consultancy company from 
1985 to 1990. 

Michael G:son Löw has been Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer, and a director of Preem 
Petroleum since January 2003. Mr. Löw also is a director of SPI Services AB and KFO-Service AB. Before 
joining Preem Petroleum, Mr. Löw worked for almost 27 years for the American oil company Conoco Inc. He 
has held a number of top management positions in Europe, Asia and the United States, covering, for example, 
marketing, supply and trading, refining and finance. He was a member of Conoco’s European and Asian 
leadership teams, a director of several local affiliates and Chairman of Conoco’s Nordic operations. 

Sven-Erik Zachrisson has been First Vice-Chairman of the Board of Preem Petroleum since March 
2005. From 1996 to March 2005, Mr. Zachrisson was Chairman of the Board of Preem Petroleum. From 1992 to 
1996, Mr. Zachrisson was President and Chief Executive Officer of Preem Petroleum. Mr. Zachrisson devotes 
approximately 15-20% of his time to Preem Petroleum. He has been President and Chief Executive Officer of 
Svenska Petroleum Exploration since 1996 and also serves as Chairman of the Board of Independent 
Pharmaceutica AB. From 1987 to 1992, he was Manager of Group Development at Preem Petroleum. Mr. 
Zachrisson has been active in the petroleum business since 1976. 

Ghazi Habib has been a director of Preem Petroleum since 1994. He was President of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings from 1994 to 1999 and was a director of that company from 1994 to March 2005. He is also a director 
of SAMIR, and Svenska Petroleum Exploration. From 1992 to 1993, Mr. Habib served as Senior Vice President 
of corporate engineering for Saudi Arabian Marketing and Refining Company. Dr. Habib is the Chairman of the 
Board of Fortuna Co. in Lebanon and a director of Naft Services Co. in Saudi Arabia. 

Cristian Mattsson has served as an employee representative on the Board of Preem Petroleum since 
2003. Mr. Mattsson has been employed as a technician at Preemraff Lysekil since 1988. 

Carl Johan Ǻberg has been Chairman and, later, Second Vice-Chairman of Preem Petroleum since 
1994. Mr Ǻberg was Secretary of State for Foreign Affairs from 1982 to 1989 and was the chairman of the 
board of the Stockholm School of Economics. He is also the vice-chairman and the chairman of the board of a 
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number of other companies. He was Chairman of the Board of the Stockholm Stock Exchange in 1990. Mr. 
Ǻberg was the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Swedish National Pension Fund from 1991 to 1996. 

Bassam Aburdene has been a director of Corral Finans since 2007. Mr. Aburdene has also been a 
director of Preem Petroleum since 2001. Mr. Aburdene also has been a director of SAMIR since 1996 and of 
Fortuna Holdings Company, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Moroncha Holdings, which, in turn, is 
wholly-owned by Mr. Al-Amoudi, since 1995. Mr. Aburdene was also a director of Midroc Scandinavia AB 
until 2002. Since 1985, he has been a principal shareholder of the Capital Trust Group, which, through its 
subsidiaries, has provided international merchant and investment banking services to Corral Petroleum 
Holdings, Preem Petroleum, and other companies related to Mr. Al-Amoudi. See “Related Party Transactions” 
elsewhere in this annual report. Mr. Aburdene is also a director of a number of publicly and privately held 
companies, including SAMIR and Corral Morocco. 

Andreas Viefhaus has been Executive Vice President, Marketing and Sales of Preem Petroleum since 
January 2008.  He joined the company in May 2005 as head of the retail division.  Before joining Preem 
Petroleum, Mr. Viefhaus held several senior management positions as marketing director at Schwarzkopf & 
Henkel and Henkel KGaA. Mr Viefhaus is a member of the Swedish-German Chamber of Commerce in 
Stockholm. 

Martina Smedman has been Senior Vice-President, Human Resources of Preem Petroleum since 2007.  
Ms. Smedman has been part of management teams in several large international corporations since 1989, mainly 
in human resources, but also including management positions in sales and marketing. 

Lennart Sundén has been a director of Preem Petroleum since 2005. Mr. Sundén is presently a director 
of Aleris AB. He was the President and Chief Executive Officer of Sonitec Corporation from 2005 to 2006, the 
President and Chief Executive Officer of Swedish Match AB from 1998 to 2004, and was employed in a number 
of positions with AB Electrolux from 1977 to 1998. 

Per Olsson has been Executive Vice President Refining since 2006. Since 1981 Mr. Olsson has held 
various positions at Preemraff Gothenburg and was Managing Director of Preemraff Gothenburg from 1992 to 
2001 and Managing Director of Preemraff Lysekil from 2001 until 2007. 

Lennart Wikström has been a director of Corral Petroleum Holdings since 1994. He has also been a 
director in a number of companies controlled by Mr. Al-Amoudi, including SAMIR. Mr. Wikström also 
currently serves as Chairman of the Board of Svenska Petroleum AB Sweden and Petro Swede AB. 

Jan Henricsson has served as an employee representative on the Board of Preem Petroleum since 2006. 
Mr. Henricsson has been working in the credit department of Preem Petroleum since 1988. 

Magnus Heimburg has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Preem Petroleum 
since April 30, 2007.  Magnus Heimburg was the Vice President, Corporate Control and Treasury, for Swedish 
Match from October 4, 1999 through April 30, 2007.  

Ingrid Bodin joined Preem Petroleum in 1988 and has served as Manager of Production Planning and 
Manager of Business Development. Since 2006, she has served as Senior Executive President, Supply & 
Trading. Ms. Bodin is also director and Chairman of Preem Gas AB, a company in which Preem Petroleum has 
a 70% interest. 

Johan Jervehed has been Senior Vice-President, Services in Preem Petroleum since September 2006. 
Mr. Jervehed has been part of the management teams of several listed public companies since 1997, including 
management positions in marketing, public relations and human resources. 

Sofia Sundström has been employed as a technician at Preemraff since 1998 and has served as an 
employee representative on the board of Preem Petroleum since 2006. 

Board of Directors of Corral Finans, Corral Petroleum Holdings and Preem Petroleum 

The board of directors of Corral Finans currently has four members: Richard Öhman, Bassam 
Aburdene, John P. Oswald and Karim Karaman. Under its articles of association, Corral Finans is required to 
have a minimum of three directors and a majority of the directors must be present for there to be a quorum. 
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Directors are appointed at each annual general shareholders’ meeting and serve until the end of the next annual 
general shareholders’ meeting, unless they retire or are replaced during that period.  The current directors of 
Corral Finans are designees of its parent company, Moroncha Holdings and were elected on March 12, 2008 in 
accordance with the memorandum of association (stiftelseurkund) of the company and will serve until the end of 
the Corral Finans 2009 annual general shareholders’ meeting.  Directors may be removed without cause by a 
resolution of the shareholders. The directors of Corral Finans have the power to manage the business and to use 
all of the powers of the company not inconsistent with the Swedish Companies Act. Corral Finans has not 
entered into any service contracts with any of its directors or any directors of its subsidiaries providing for 
benefits upon termination of employment. 

The board of directors of Corral Petroleum Holdings currently has six members. Under its articles of 
association, Corral Petroleum Holdings is required to have a minimum of three and a maximum of eight 
directors and may have five deputy directors. A majority of the directors must be present for there to be a 
quorum. Directors are appointed at each annual general shareholders’ meeting and serve until the end of the next 
annual general shareholders’ meeting, unless they retire or are replaced during that period.  The current directors 
of Corral Petroleum Holdings are designees of its ultimate parent company, Moroncha Holdings, and were 
elected at the annual general shareholders’ meeting on March 12, 2008.  The directors will serve until the end of 
the Corral Petroleum Holdings 2009 annual general shareholders’ meeting. Directors may be removed without 
cause by a resolution of the shareholders. The directors of Corral Petroleum Holdings have the power to manage 
the business and to use all of the powers of the company not inconsistent with the Swedish Companies Act. 
Corral Petroleum Holdings has not entered into any service contracts with any of its directors or any directors of 
its subsidiaries providing for benefits upon termination of employment. 

The board of directors of Preem Petroleum currently has 15 members, including one deputy member 
who is an employee representative. Under its articles of association, the board of directors must have a 
minimum of three directors and not more than fifteen directors, with not more than eight deputy directors. A 
majority of the directors must be present for there to be a quorum. All directors except for two employee 
representatives are designees of Corral Petroleum Holdings and are appointed at each annual general 
shareholders’ meeting and serve until the end of the next annual general shareholders’ meeting, unless they 
retire or are replaced during that period. The two directors and the deputy director who are employee 
representatives are appointed by the labor unions that represent Preem Petroleum’s employees and serve until 
the labor unions appoint new representatives. The current directors of Preem Petroleum were appointed in on 
March 12, 2008 and will serve until the end of the Preem Petroleum 2009 annual general shareholders’ meeting.  
Directors elected at a shareholders’ meeting may be removed without cause by a resolution of the shareholders. 
The directors of Preem Petroleum have the power to manage the business and to use all of the powers of the 
company not inconsistent with the Swedish Companies Act. Other than as described in “—Executive 
Compensation” below, Preem Petroleum has not entered into any service contracts with any of its directors or 
any directors of its subsidiaries providing for benefits upon termination of employment. Its board of directors 
has established an audit committee and a compensation committee. The members of the audit committee 
currently are Richard Öhman (Chairman), Lars Nelson and Bassam Aburdene. The members of the 
compensation committee currently are Sven-Erik Zachrisson, Richard Öhman, John Oswald and Lennart 
Sundén. 

Under the Swedish Companies Act, a director may not take part in decisions relating to agreements 
between the company and each of the following: 

• that director; 

• a third party, if that director has a material interest that may conflict with the interest of the 
company; and 

• a legal entity that is represented by that director. 

If the director directly or indirectly owns all shares in the company, however, the above restrictions do 
not apply. Moreover, the third restriction does not apply if the counterparty to the company is a member of the 
same corporate group. 

Compensation for the directors of Corral Finans, Corral Petroleum Holdings and Preem Petroleum is 
determined at their respective annual general shareholders meetings. Corral Finans, Corral Petroleum Holdings 
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and Preem Petroleum also pay for all travel, hotel and other expenses incurred by their respective directors in 
connection with their attendance at board meetings or otherwise in relation to the discharge of their duties. 

Executive Compensation 

Corral Petroleum Holdings paid no compensation to its directors and executive officers in 2007. Corral 
Finans was incorporated on March 22, 2007, and has not paid any compensation to its directors or officers to 
date.  Preem Petroleum paid to its directors and executive officers aggregate compensation of SEK 19 million, 
including bonuses of SEK 2.0 million, in 2007 and SEK 20 million, including bonuses of SEK 1.7 million, in 
2006. Bonuses were determined by the board of directors of Preem Petroleum pursuant to provisions of 
employment agreements between Preem Petroleum and the individual executive officers. 

Employment Agreements 

Messrs. Löw, Viefhaus, Ohlsson, Heimburg, Jervehed and Ms. Smedman and Ms. Bodin are each party 
to an employment agreement with Preem Petroleum. Each of these agreements provides compensation for 
employment services including a fixed annual salary as specified in the agreement, an annual bonus, certain 
insurance and (except in the case of Ms. Smedman) pension benefits. 

Under the terms of the agreements for Messrs. Löw, Heimburg, Viefhaus and Olsson, Preem Petroleum 
may terminate employment on 24-months’ notice. Upon termination of employment by Preem Petroleum, each 
of Messrs. Löw and Olsson would be entitled to a payment of his full salary during such 24-month notice 
period. Mr. Jervehed has a notice period of three months, and Mr. Heimburg and Ms. Bodin each have a notice 
period of 12 months. In addition to the payment of his salary during the 12-month notice period, Mr. Heimburg 
is also entitled to a severance allowance equal to 12 months’ salary. However, if termination is based on gross 
negligence or serious breach of contract on the part of the respective employee, no termination payment is due. 

In addition, the employment agreements of Messrs. Löw, Olsson, Heimburg and Ms. Bodin provide 
that any other compensation that each of them may receive while they are entitled to the termination payment 
would reduce their respective entitlement to the termination payment by the amount of the compensation 
received. Mr. Löw’s employment agreement contains a non-competition clause, pursuant to which Mr. Löw 
may not work for a competitor for six months following the end of his employment with Preem Petroleum. 

Loans to Management 

As of the date of this annual report, none of Corral Finans, Corral Petroleum Holdings or Preem 
Petroleum had any loans outstanding with its management. 

Management’s Interests 

None of the directors or executive officers of Corral Finans, Corral Petroleum Holdings or Preem 
Petroleum (other than Mr. Al-Amoudi who is a director and Chairman of Preem Petroleum and indirectly holds 
the shares in Preem Petroleum) hold any shares in any of these companies, and none of these companies have 
granted any option rights to any of their respective directors, executive officers or employees. 
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Capital Trust Group 

Capital Trust Group, through its subsidiaries, provides international merchant and investment banking 
services. Capital Trust has acted as our advisor in connection with the offering of the Notes, for which we paid a 
fee equal to 1% of the gross proceeds of the offering. Corral Petroleum Holdings also paid Capital Trust Group 
a fee of $21 million in connection with the arrangement of the 2006 Credit Facility. 

In addition, Capital Trust Group, through its subsidiaries, provided certain technical and advisory 
services to Corral Petroleum Holdings and its subsidiaries. The existing contract governing these services 
expired in September 2005. This contract automatically renews on an annual basis unless terminated by either 
party and provides for an annual fee of $2.5 million. 

The agreement has not been terminated. Mr. John P. Oswald, a director of Preem Petroleum, Corral 
Petroleum Holdings and Corral Finans, is a principal shareholder of Capital Trust. Mr. Bassam Aburdene, a 
director of Preem Petroleum and Corral Finans, is also a principal shareholder of Capital Trust. Corral 
Petroleum Holdings believes that the foregoing transactions were entered into on terms no less favorable to us 
than those that could have been obtained from an unrelated third party. 

Midroc Scandinavia AB 

Midroc Scandinavia AB, a company in which Mr. Al-Amoudi has a majority interest, has provided and 
continues to provide maintenance and construction services, through its subsidiaries, to Preem Petroleum (of 
which Mr. Al-Amoudi is also Chairman and director). For these services, we paid SEK 329 million (€35 
million) in 2007 and SEK 182 million (€19 million) in 2006. Many of these services are provided on an as-
needed basis. Accordingly, the amounts paid for these services may vary from year to year depending on the 
amount of services provided. We believe that the foregoing transactions were entered into on terms no less 
favorable to us than those that could have been obtained from an unrelated third party. 

Payments to ultimate shareholder 

In April 2006, Corral Petroleum Holdings repaid a loan of SEK 2,374 million (€251 million) to its 
ultimate shareholder, Mr. Mohammed Hussein Al-Amoudi. Part of the repayment consisted of the assignment of 
a promissory note in the amount of SEK 103 million issued by a subsidiary of Midroc Real Estate AB, a 
company of which Mr. Al-Amoudi is the sole shareholder. Corral Petroleum Holdings also effected dividend 
payments of SEK 1,680 million (€177 million) in April 2006 and SEK 620 million (€65 million) in May 2006 to 
Mr. Al-Amoudi. 

Corral Petroleum Holdings Acquisition 

Corral Finans purchased all of the issued and outstanding shares of Corral Petroleum Holdings from 
Moroncha Holdings on March 29, 2007, in exchange for SEK 6,500 million paid by delivery of the Moroncha 
Note to Moroncha Holdings in the amount of SEK 6,500 million. After paying costs related to the offering of 
the Notes and depositing approximately €20 million and approximately $30 million of the net proceeds of the 
offering of the Notes in segregated accounts of Corral Finans to be reserved for paying cash interest on the 
Notes, Corral Finans used the remaining net proceeds of the offering of the Notes to repay a portion of the 
Moroncha Note (the remainder of which (SEK 1,407) was set off entirely at the closing of the offering of the 
Notes against an unconditional shareholder’s contribution to Corral Finans by Moroncha Holdings). 

Corral Morocco Holdings 

Prior to February 2006, the results of CMH, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Corral Petroleum Holdings, 
were consolidated with those of Corral Petroleum Holdings. The business of CMH is independent from that of 
Preem Petroleum. In February 2006, Corral Petroleum Holdings sold all of the shares of CMH to Corral 
Morocco Gas & Oil, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Moroncha Holdings, in exchange for a promissory note from 
Corral Morocco Gas & Oil in the amount of SEK 3,136 million (€331 million). Corral Petroleum Holdings no 
longer owns CMH and has no liabilities relating to CMH’s business or its disposition. 
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Under the current terms of the note, Corral Petroleum Holdings will not receive cash interest on the 
note from Corral Morocco Gas & Oil for at least seven years from the date of issuance of the note. The note 
cannot be accelerated and is not expected to be repaid for at least seven years from the date of issuance. 

SAMIR 

We occasionally sell liquefied petroleum gas to Société Anonyme Marocaine de l’Industrie du 
Raffinage (SAMIR), a company in which CMH has a majority interest. We received SEK 4 million 
(€0.4 million) in 2007 for such sales and SEK 310 million (€33 million) in 2006. The sales were made at market 
prices. 

Conflicts of Interest 

Except as described above, and in the sections “Risk Factors—We are controlled by one shareholder 
whose interests as they relate to us may conflict with your interests” and “Management,” as at the date of this 
annual report, our directors and principal executive officers do not have any potential conflicts of interest 
between any duties to us and their private interests or other duties. 
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DESCRIPTION OF CERTAIN INDEBTEDNESS 

As of December 31, 2007, Corral Finans had total consolidated indebtedness (consisting of total long-
term debt and total current debt) of SEK 18,209 million (€1,922 million). We also had amounts available under 
our unutilized credit facilities of SEK 4,682 million (€494 million). As of December 31, 2007, our indebtedness 
bore interest at a weighted average annual rate of 7.6%. 

Long-term debt 

As of December 31, 2007, we had long-term debt (including drawings under our bank overdraft 
facility, but excluding SEK 2,038 million of the current portion of long-term debt loan) of SEK 15,371 million. 
The following credit facilities relate to long-term debt owed to a variety of banks: 

• the €355 million aggregate principal amount and $350 million aggregate principal amount Floating 
Rate Split Coupon Notes of Corral Finans (the “Notes”) (of which €361 million and $356 million 
was outstanding as of December 31, 2007). The Notes mature on April 15, 2010. See “—The 
Corral Finans Notes.” 

• the $1,150 million syndicated, multi-currency term loan facility to Preem Petroleum (of which 
$453 million and SEK 2,000 million was outstanding as of December 31, 2007) under the 2006 
Credit Facility. The loan matures on June 16, 2011. See “—2006 Credit Facility.” 

• the SEK 7,130 million term loan facility to Corral Petroleum Holdings (of which SEK 5,685 
million was outstanding as of December 31, 2007) under the 2006 Credit Facility. The loan 
matures on June 16, 2011. See “—2006 Credit Facility.” 

• a $55 million term loan facility to Preem Petroleum (of which $55 million was outstanding as of 
December 31, 2007). The loan matures on June 28, 2010. 

• a SEK 235 million term loan facility to Preem Petroleum (of which SEK 235 million was 
outstanding as of December 31, 2007). The loan matures on March 1, 2010. 

The Corral Finans Notes 

The Notes, of which €361 million and $356 million was outstanding as of December 31, 2007, will 
mature on April 15, 2010 and constitute a secured debt of Corral Finans.  The Notes are senior debt of Corral 
Finans and are secured by a pledge of all the shares of Corral Finans by Moroncha Holdings. 

The Indenture relating to the Notes (the “Indenture”) contains a restricted payments covenant which 
sets forth the conditions under which Corral Finans and its restricted subsidiaries (as defined in the Indenture) 
may make restricted payments. Restricted payments include, among other things, cash dividends and other 
distributions by Corral Finans to its shareholders. Generally, the Indenture permits Corral Finans and any of its 
restricted subsidiaries to make aggregate restricted payments up to an amount equal to the sum of (i) 50% of 
consolidated net income (or 100% of any net loss) of Corral Finans from the date of the Indenture to the end of 
the most recent fiscal quarter ending prior to the date of the restricted payment as to which internal financial 
statements are available, (ii) net cash proceeds from the sale of capital stock or from capital contributions, (iii) 
the amount of indebtedness converted into capital stock, (iv) the net reduction in restricted investments, and (v) 
€10 million. A restricted payment may only be made during periods in which (a) no default under the Indenture 
has occurred and is continued, (b) Corral Finans has the ability to make restricted payment after applying the 
formula described in the previous sentence, and (c) Corral Finans may incur an addition €1.00 of indebtedness 
under a consolidated coverage ratio test set forth in the Indenture after giving effect to the restricted payment. 

2006 Credit Facility 

Preem Petroleum and Corral Petroleum Holdings are borrowers, and Corral Petroleum Holdings is the 
guarantor under the 2006 Credit Facility. The 2006 Credit Facility provides Preem Petroleum with $1,150 
million (or the equivalent thereof in other currencies) of revolving credit and term loan facilities comprised of a 
$500 million multi-currency term loan facility and a $650 million multi-currency revolving loan facility. The 
2006 Credit Facility further provides Corral Petroleum Holdings with an SEK 7,130 million single currency 
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term loan facility. Preem Petroleum and Corral Petroleum Holdings must repay any loans outstanding under 
their term loan facilities by June 16, 2011. All loans outstanding under the multi-currency revolving credit 
facility must be repaid by Preem Petroleum by June 16, 2011. Loans under the revolving credit facility may be 
used for repayment of pre-existing debt or for general corporate purposes including, without limitation, the 
making of any dividend payments permitted under the terms of the 2006 Credit Facility. The proceeds of the 
loans under the term loan facilities were used to repay outstanding debt. 

The interest rate for each loan facility varies based on the applicable margin, which is an agreed 
percentage determined by reference to the ratio of adjusted net debt of Corral Petroleum Holdings and all of its 
subsidiaries (the “Preem group”) to the consolidated net pre-taxation profits of the Preem group for a 
measurement period. 

On December 21, 2007, Preem Petroleum and Corral Petroleum Holdings entered into a supplemental 
agreement to the 2006 Credit Facility (the “Supplemental Agreement”).  

Financial Covenants 

Under the 2006 Credit Facility, Corral Petroleum Holdings was obliged to maintain certain agreed 
financial ratios, such as adjusted net debt to consolidated EBITDA, as well as equity and debt service cover 
ratios as set forth below: 

(a) Adjusted Net Debt to Consolidated EBITDA 

Corral Petroleum Holdings must ensure that its ratio of adjusted net debt to consolidated EBITDA does 
not exceed: 

(i) for each measurement period ending on or before December 31, 2006, 4.00:1; 

(ii) for each measurement period ending after December 31, 2006 and on or before December 31, 
2007, 3.50:1; 

(iii) for each measurement period ending after December 31, 2007 and on or before December 31, 
2008, 3.00:1; or 

(iv) for each measurement period ending after December 31, 2008, 2.50:1. 

During the first half of 2007, we built inventories in preparation for planned shutdowns for turnaround 
maintenance at both Preemraff Gothenburg and Preemraff Lysekil in order to ensure adequate supplies 
to our customers. This excess inventory increased our net debt and working capital as measured at the 
end of each of the first two quarters of 2007.  

In 2006 we experienced price gains in the first two quarters of approximately SEK 1,410 million on 
inventory due to increases in oil prices. This resulted in lower EBITDA in the first quarter of 2007 
relative to the first quarter of 2006. These gains were reversed in the second half of 2006 as oil prices 
and product prices declined. As a result, the ratio of net debt to consolidated EBITDA measured on a 
rolling 12-month basis at the end of the first quarter of 2007 and the second quarter of 2007, would 
have excluded the EBITDA gains of the first quarter of 2006 and the first two quarters of 2006, 
respectively, but would have included the increased net debt and working capital of the first quarter of 
2007 and the first two quarters of 2007, respectively. Consequently, we could have been in default on 
our obligation to maintain a ratio of net debt to consolidated EBITDA of 3.50:1 or less as measured on 
both March 31, 2007 and June 30, 2007. On April 2, 2007, we received a waiver (the “Original 
Waiver”) to resolve this issue and paid a customary fee in connection with seeking the Original 
Waiver. 

The Original Waiver provided for the following amendments of the ratio of adjusted net debt to 
consolidated EBITDA (as set forth above): 

(i) for the three months ending March 31, 2007, 5.00:1; 

(ii) for the three months ending June 30, 2007, 5.25:1; 
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(iii) for the three months ending September 30, 2007, 4.50:1; and 

(iv) for the three months ending December 31, 2007, 3.50:1. 

Under the Supplemental Agreement, the covenant has been modified such that Corral Petroleum 
Holdings must ensure that its ratio of adjusted net debt to annualized consolidated EBITDA does not 
exceed 5.00:1 at any time for any measurement period ending in the period from the date of the 
Supplemental Agreement until and including June 30, 2009 (the “Amendment Period”). 

Whereas prior to the Supplemental Agreement consolidated EBITDA was calculated based on the 12 
months preceding the quarter date, annualized consolidated EBITDA means consolidated EBITDA for 
the preceding six financial quarters divided by six and multiplied by four to give an annualized figure. 

Furthermore, with respect to one measurement period only during the Amendment Period, it shall not 
be a default under the 2006 Credit Facility if Corral Petroleum Holdings fails to comply with the 
adjusted net debt to annualized consolidated EBITDA ratio provided that (i) the failure to comply is a 
consequence of oil price market volatility having affected the group’s financial results during the 
measurement period and (ii) at the end of the next measurement period, Corral Petroleum Holdings is 
able to comply with the adjusted net debt to annualized consolidated EBITDA ratio. 

(b) Equity 

Prior to the Supplemental Agreement, Corral Petroleum Holdings was obliged to ensure that the value 
of equity of the Preem group (as adjusted) after including any amount attributable to minority interests 
and excluding the effect of any revaluation of fixed assets on or following January 1, 2006 did not fall 
below: 

(i) SEK 1,400 million at any time before January 1, 2007; 

(ii) SEK 2,000 million at any time on or after January 1, 2007 but before January 1, 2008; or 

(iii) SEK 3,000 million at any time on or after January 1, 2008. 

The original 2006 Credit Facility could have been interpreted to require us to meet a new, higher level 
of aggregate equity on January 1, 2007. Under our December 31, 2006 balance sheet, we would not 
technically have been in compliance with this covenant. The Original Waiver postponed the testing 
times by three months, from January 1, 2007, to March 31, 2007, and from January 1, 2008, to March 
31, 2008. We paid a customary fee in connection with seeking the Original Waiver. 

(c) Debt Service Cover Ratio 

Prior to the Supplemental Agreement, Corral Petroleum Holdings was obliged to ensure under the 2006 
Credit Facility that the ratio of adjusted consolidated net pre-tax profits of the Preem group to all loans, 
interest and other charges due under the 2006 Credit Facility during a measurement period was not less 
than: 

(i) for a measurement period ending on or before December 31, 2008, 1.15:1; or 

(ii) for a measurement period ending after December 31, 2008, 1.20:1. 

Due to oil price market volatility, we were not in compliance with the debt service cover ratio for the 
measurement period ending September 30, 2007. Under the Supplemental Agreement, the covenant has 
been modified such that Corral Petroleum Holdings must ensure that the ratio of annualized cash 
generated for financing for each measurement period ending during the Amendment Period to debt 
service for that measurement period is not less than 1:15:1. 

Annualized cash generated for financing means cash generated for financing for a given measurement 
period divided by six and multiplied by four to give an annualized figure. 
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Furthermore, with respect to any measurement period, or non-consecutive measurement periods, during 
the Amendment Period, it shall not be a default under the 2006 Credit Facility if Corral Petroleum 
Holdings fails to comply with the ratio of annualized cash generated for financing to debt service 
provided that (i) the failure to comply is a consequence of oil price market volatility having affected the 
group’s financial results during the measurement period and (ii) at the end of the next measurement 
period, Corral Petroleum Holdings is able to comply with the ratio of annualized cash generated for 
financing to debt service. 

Certain General Covenants 

The 2006 Credit Facility also includes a negative pledge, prohibitions on the disposal or acquisition of 
assets by the Preem group, restrictions on incurring financial indebtedness, and other restrictions typical of 
transactions of this nature, including, without limitation, restrictions on capital expenditures, whereby no 
member of the Preem group may incur any capital expenditures which when aggregated with the capital 
expenditures incurred by any other member of the Preem group, exceeds: 

(i) SEK 1,500 million in the financial year ending December 31, 2006; 

(ii) SEK 1,300 million in the financial year ending December 31, 2007; and 

(iii) SEK 1,000 million in financial years ending after December 31, 2007. 

Any unutilized balance of permitted capital expenditure in any financial year may be carried forward 
for one financial year only. The above-referenced restrictions do not apply to any capital expenditure that may 
be incurred in relation to the coker project. See “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects—Liquidity and 
capital resources—Future capital needs and resources and capital expenditures.” 

The 2006 Credit Facility also contains other restrictions and prohibitions that could limit both Preem 
Petroleum’s and Corral Petroleum Holdings’ ability to distribute cash. The 2006 Credit Facility contains various 
standard events of default, including, without limitation, default for non-payment and for any breach of the 
financial or other covenants. 

Requirement to Prepay 2006 Credit Facility 

In addition to mandatory prepayment upon a change of control, sale of assets or illegality, which are 
typical provisions in an agreement of this nature, Corral Petroleum Holdings must, in each of its financial years 
and to the extent available, use all amounts received by it from Preem Petroleum by way of dividend and/or 
other distribution in that financial year (less amounts used to repay its term loan under the 2006 Credit Facility), 
to prepay Corral Petroleum Holding’s term loan in such amount that would result in the aggregate amount of 
such term loan repaid or prepaid being equal to the following aggregate excess amounts (in each case, in that 
financial year) (the “Excess Amount”): 

Financial Year Excess Amount (SEK) 
Ending December 31, 2006        637,967,500 
Ending December 31, 2007       1,501,100,000 
Ending December 31, 2007       1,876,375,000 
Ending December 31, 2009       1,876,375,000 
Ending December 31, 2010       1,238,407,500 
Ending December 21, 2011       0 
 

Any part of an Excess Amount not repaid or prepaid in any financial year of Corral Petroleum 
Holdings shall be added to the Excess Amount for the next succeeding financial year. 

Restriction of use of Cash 

Corral Petroleum Holdings may not expend any cash or make any distribution whatsoever, other than 
for general expenditures or to meet its obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, save as follows: 
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(a) If, before January 1, 2008: 

(i) Corral Petroleum Holdings has repaid and prepaid its term loan under the 2006 Credit 
Facility in an amount equal to or in excess of the aggregate of the Excess Amount for each 
of the financial years of Corral Petroleum Holdings ending on December 31, 2006 and 
December 31, 2007 (as may be adjusted); and 

(ii) the ratio of adjusted cash generated for financing to debt service as tested for the measurement 
period ending immediately prior to the payment of any dividend is not less than 1.15:1, 

then Corral Petroleum Holdings may declare and pay dividends with respect to the financial years 
ending December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007. 

(b) If, for a financial year of Corral Petroleum Holdings ending after January 1, 2008: 

(i) Corral Petroleum Holdings has repaid and prepaid its term loan under the 2006 Credit 
Facility in an amount equal to or in excess of the Excess Amount for that financial year (as 
may be adjusted); and 

(ii) the ratio of adjusted cash generated for financing to debt service immediately prior to the 
payment of these dividends is not less than 1.15:1 for any measurement period ending during 
the financial year ending on December 31, 2008 and 1.20:1 for any measurement period ending 
after December 31, 2008, 

then Corral Petroleum Holdings may declare and pay dividends with respect to that financial year.  The 
Supplemental Agreement provided that if Corral Petroleum Holdings wishes to declare and pay 
dividends during the Amendment Period, then it must comply with the original ratios specified in the 
2006 Credit Facility (not the amended ratios specified in the Supplemental Agreement) for adjusted net 
debt to consolidated EBITDA and debt service cover for the most recently ended measurement period.  
If Corral Petroleum Holdings pays a dividend during the Amendment Period, then the 2006 Credit 
Facility will revert to its original wording prior to the execution of the Supplemental Agreement. 

In 2007, Corral Petroleum Holdings paid no Excess Amount, as compared to SEK 590 million in 2006. 

On June 22, 2006, Corral Petroleum Holdings drew down SEK 7,130 million, the full amount of its 
term loan facility. On June 22, 2006, Preem Petroleum drew down $500 million, the full amount of its term loan 
facility. On that same day, Preem Petroleum drew down SEK 2,500 million under its multi-currency revolving 
credit facility. 

As of December 31, 2007, Corral Petroleum Holdings had drawn down SEK 2,000 million from 
Tranche C of the 2006 Credit Facility. 

Security 

Corral Petroleum Holdings has granted a pledge over the shares of Preem Petroleum. 

Bank overdraft 

As of December 31, 2007, we had drawings of SEK 15 million under an overdraft facility of SEK 255 
million. 

Current debt 

As of December 31, 2007, we had current debt of SEK 2,838 million (including SEK 2,038 million of 
the current portion of long-term debt), and SEK 1,931 million available under our unutilized short-term credit 
facilities. 

Our other current debt bore interest at a weighted-average rate per year of 4.5% as of December 31, 
2007. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

The consolidated financial statements and financial statements included in the annual report have been 
audited by KPMG Bohlins AB, independent auditors, as stated in their reports appearing herein. The auditors’ 
address is P.O. Box 16106, 10323 Stockholm, Sweden. KPMG Bohlins AB are members of FAR, the Swedish 
Institute of Authorized Public Accountants. KPMG Bohlins AB has given and not withdrawn its written consent 
to the inclusion of its reports appearing herein, in the form and context in which they are included, and has 
authorized the contents of those parts of this annual report. 

As the Notes have not been and will not he registered under the Securities Act, KPMG Bohlins AB has 
not filed or given a consent under the Securities Act. 

LEGAL INFORMATION 

Corral Finans is a corporation incorporated under the laws of Sweden on March 22, 2007. Its share 
capital currently amounts to SEK 500,000, divided into 5,000 fully paid ordinary shares. 

The registered office of Corral Finans is SE-11590, Stockholm, Sweden. Corral Finans is registered 
with the Swedish Companies Registration Office under the registration number 556726-8569. Corral Finans’ 
telephone number is +46 10 4501000. 

Pursuant to its articles of association, the corporate purpose of Corral Finans is to, directly or indirectly, 
conduct business within the petroleum industry such as exploitation, development, production, transport, 
refinement, marketing and sales and to own shares in companies conducting such aforesaid business and to 
conduct other business consistent therewith. 

Our corporate governance principles are based on those recommended by the laws of the Kingdom of 
Sweden. We comply with the corporate governance regime in Sweden. 
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CERTAIN INDUSTRY TERMS 

Aromatics Hydrocarbon compounds produced in the distillation process, the 
content of which in refined products is often regulated by applicable 
environmental laws. 

Benzene An aromatic compound, the presence of which in refined products is 
often regulated by applicable environmental laws. 

Bunker fuel Fuel oil used as transportation fuel for ships. 

Diesel A refined product from the middle range of the distillation process, used 
primarily as a fuel source for vehicles. 

Fuel oil A refined product from the lower range of the distillation process, used 
primarily by industrial customers, like electric utilities, for steam and 
power generation. 

Gasoline A refined product from the middle range of the distillation process, used 
primarily as a fuel for vehicles. 

Gross refining margin The difference between the sales revenue received from the sale of 
refined products produced by a refinery and the cost of crude oil and 
(where relevant) other immediate feedstocks processed by it. See 
“Operating and Financial Review and Prospects” for further discussion. 

Heating oil A refined product from the lower range of the distillation process, used 
as a heating fuel or a fuel for combustion engines in industrial, 
residential, agricultural and commercial sectors. 

Hydrocracking Sophisticated refinery process that converts residual products into lighter 
hydrocarbons under conditions of high temperature and pressure. 

Hydroskimming  A basic refining process with some limited ability to produce gasoline. 

Kerosene A refined product from the middle range of the distillation process, used 
either as a fuel for aviation turbines (jet engines) or as a heating fuel in 
smaller residential, agricultural or commercial sectors. 

Liquefied petroleum gas  Liquefied petroleum gas (butane and propane or a mixture of both) used 
as a fuel for heating, cooking and lighting. 

Middle distillates A refined product from the middle range of the distillation process. 
Middle distillates include diesel, heating oil and jet/kerosene. 

Naphtha A refined product from the higher range of the distillation process, used 
as a solvent and as an additive for the manufacture of ethylene and other 
petrochemicals. 

Net cash margin Refining margin less the refinery’s fixed operating costs, excluding 
depreciation and other non-cash costs. See “Operating and Financial 
Review and Prospects” for further discussion. 

Net margin Net cash margin less depreciation. See “Operating and Financial Review 
and Prospects” for further discussion. 

Refining margin Gross refining margin less variable refining costs, which consist of 
volume-related costs, such as the cost of energy. See “Operating and 
Financial Review and Prospects” for further discussion. 

Vacuum gasoil A refining feedstock, upgraded for end-user consumption by further 
processing. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

F-2 

The Board of Directors and shareholders, 
 
Corral Finans AB (publ) 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Corral Finans AB (publ) and subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statement of income and cash flows for the financial period 
March 13 to December 31, 2007 and the related consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for 
the financial period ended December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statement based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain high but not absolute assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Corral Finans AB (publ) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for the financial period March 13 to December 31, 2007 and the related 
consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for the financial period March 13 to December 31, 
2007 in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as approved by the EU. 

Stockholm, Sweden  
April 29, 2008  
 

KPMG Bohlins AB  

 
 

Cronie Wallquist 
Authorized Public Accountant 
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March 13– 

December 31, 2007
Revenues.......................................................................................................................................... 55,828 
Excise duties (note 3) ...................................................................................................................... (5,817) 
Sales revenue (notes 1 and 7) ........................................................................................................ 50,011 
Cost of goods sold ........................................................................................................................... (46,195) 
Gross profit (notes 2, 3) ................................................................................................................. 3,816 
Other operating income (note 4)...................................................................................................... 295 
Selling expenses .............................................................................................................................. (521) 
Administrative expenses.................................................................................................................. (292) 
Operating income (notes 1, 2, 7, 10 and 32–37)........................................................................... 3,298 
Financial income (notes 5 and 7)..................................................................................................... 140 
Financial expenses (notes 5 and 7) .................................................................................................. (845) 
Income before taxes ....................................................................................................................... 2,593 
Income taxes (note 6) ...................................................................................................................... (820) 
Net income ...................................................................................................................................... 1,773 
Attributable to:  
Parent Company shareholders ......................................................................................................... 1,772 
Minority shareholding ..................................................................................................................... 1 
 1,773 
Earnings per share attributable to Parent Company owners during the year in SEK  
There is no dilutive effect  
Earnings per share before and after dilution: (note 8) ..................................................................... 354,457 
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 As of  

December 31,  
2007 

Assets  
Non-current assets  
Intangible non-current assets  
Goodwill (note 9).............................................................................................................................. 308 
 308 
Tangible fixed assets  
Land and buildings (note 10) ............................................................................................................ 964 
Plant and machinery (note 10) .......................................................................................................... 7,616 
Capitalized turn-around costs (note 10) ............................................................................................ 615 
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings (note 10)............................................................................... 503 
Constructions in progress (note 10) .................................................................................................. 546 
 10,244 
Financial non-current assets  
Participations in associated companies (note 12).............................................................................. 5 
Receivables from associated companies ........................................................................................... 0 
Loans to related parties (note 13)...................................................................................................... 3,136 
Available-for-sale financial assets (note 14)..................................................................................... 3 
Other non-current receivables........................................................................................................... 29 
 3,173 
Total non-current assets .................................................................................................................... 13,725 
Current assets..................................................................................................................................  
Inventories (note 15) ......................................................................................................................... 8,179 
Accounts receivable—trade (note 16)............................................................................................... 4,945 
Receivables from associated companies ........................................................................................... 0 
Derivative instruments (note 17)....................................................................................................... 36 
Other receivables .............................................................................................................................. 461 
Prepaid expenses and accrued income .............................................................................................. 394 
 14,015 
Cash and cash equivalents................................................................................................................ 835 
Total current assets ........................................................................................................................... 14,850 
Total Assets...................................................................................................................................... 28,575 
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 As of  

December 31,  
2007 

Equity and Liabilities  
Capital and reserves attributable to Parent Company’s shareholders  
Share capital ...................................................................................................................................... 0 
Other paid-in capital .......................................................................................................................... 1,407 
Translation difference........................................................................................................................ (1) 
Retained loss...................................................................................................................................... (2,657) 
 (1,251) 
Minority shareholding ....................................................................................................................... 9 
Total equity ...................................................................................................................................... (1,242) 

Liabilities  

Long-term liabilities  
Provision for pensions (note 18)........................................................................................................ 160 
Deferred taxes (note 19) .................................................................................................................... 1,600 
Other provisions (note 20) ................................................................................................................. 155 
Borrowing (notes 21, 23)................................................................................................................... 14,913 
Derivative instruments (note 17) ....................................................................................................... 29 
Bank overdraft facility (note 22) ....................................................................................................... 15 
Other long-term liabilities ................................................................................................................. 0 
 16,872 
Current liabilities  
Borrowing (note 23) .......................................................................................................................... 2,838 
Advance payments from customers................................................................................................... 4 
Accounts payables ............................................................................................................................. 5,268 
Liabilities to associated companies.................................................................................................... 1 
Income tax payable............................................................................................................................ 785 
Derivative instruments (note 17) ....................................................................................................... 62 
Other liabilities (note 24)................................................................................................................... 1,367 
Accrued expenses and deferred income (note 25) ............................................................................. 2,620 
 12,945 
Total equity and liabilities (notes 26, 27) ....................................................................................... 28,575 
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 Attributable to Parent Company shareholders   

 

Share 
capital(1) 

Other 
paid-in 
capital 

Translation 
difference 

Retained 
loss Total 

Minority 
interest 

Total 
Equity 

Equity March 13, 2007 ............ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Translation difference..............   (1)  (1)  (1) 
Total transactions accounted 

directly in equity .................. 0 0 (1) 0 (1)  (1) 
Net profit for the period...........    1,772 1,772 1 1,773 
Total accounted income and 

expenses for 2007 0 0 (1) 1,772 1,771 1 1,772 
Acquisition of subsidiaries 

(note 30)...............................    (4,429) (4,429) 8 (4,421) 
Shareholders’ contribution.......  1,407   1,407  1,407 
Equity December 31, 2007(2).... 0 1,407 (1) (2,657) (1,251) 9 (1,242) 
 
_____________________________ 

(1) The share capital amount to 500 TSEK. 
(2) See also note 28 for further information. 

 
The company was founded on March 13, 2007. The Board of Directors has not proposed any dividend 

for the financial year. Corral Finans received an unconditional shareholders contribution on April 12, 2007, in 
connection with the issuance of the € 355 million and USD 350 million bonds. 
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 March 13– 

December 31, 
2007 

Operating activities  
Income before taxes......................................................................................................................... 2,593 
Adjustment for items not included in the cash flow (note 29)......................................................... 534 
 3,127 
Income taxes paid ............................................................................................................................ (894) 
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital .......................................... 2,233 
Cash flow from changes in working capital  
Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in inventories............................................................................................. (188) 
Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in operating receivables ............................................................................ (853) 
Increase(+)/Decrease(-) in operating liabilities ............................................................................... 1,003 
Cash flows from operating activities ............................................................................................ 2,195 
Investing activities  
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30) ............................................................................................... (4,786) 
Acquisition of tangible non-current assets....................................................................................... (1,408) 
Sales of tangible non-current assets................................................................................................. 33 
Increase in financial receivables ...................................................................................................... (189) 
Cash flows from investing activities ............................................................................................. (6,350) 
Financing activities  
Proceeds from borrowings............................................................................................................... 6,710 
Repayment of loans ......................................................................................................................... (1,720) 
Cash flows from financing activities ............................................................................................ 4,990 
Cash flow for the year ................................................................................................................... 835 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .............................................................................. 0 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (note 31) ............................................................. 835 
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General Information 

Corral Finans AB (publ) (Parent Company) (org. no 556477-1284) with subsidiaries is Sweden’s 
largest oil company and is through its two refineries in Gothenburg and Lysekil, is responsible for 
approximately 80 percent of the Swedish refinery capacity and approximately 30 percent of that of the Nordic 
countries. The Group conducts extensive refinement of crude oil and sale of oil petroleum products to oil 
companies operating in Sweden and on the international markets, foremost in north-western Europe. The sale of 
petrol, diesel, fuel heating oil and lubricating oil on the Swedish markets to private clients, as well as to small 
and large companies is done through the Company’s own marketing channels, Preem Partners and petrol 
stations. Approximately 2/3 of the production is exported, which implies that the Group is among the largest 
exporters in Sweden. 

The Parent Company is a limited company registered and headquartered in Sweden. The head office is 
located at Sandhamnsgatan 51, 115 90 Stockholm. The Parent Company was founded on March 13, 2007. 

The Parent Company has debt instruments listed on the official list on the Irish stock exchange, Irish 
Stock Exchange (“ISE”). 

Corral Finans AB (publ) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Moroncha Holdings Co. Limited registered in 
Cyprys. 

The Board of Directors has as of April 29, 2008, approved the consolidated financial statements for 
publication and will present them to the general shareholders meeting for adoption as well on April 29, 2008. 

Summary of Important Accounting Principles 

The most important accounting principles applied in preparation of the consolidated accounts are 
provided below. These principles are applied consistently, unless otherwise stated. 

Basis for the preparation of the reports 

The consolidated financial statements of the Corral Finans AB Group have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU. Furthermore, the 
Accounting Council’s recommendation RR30:06 “Kompletterande redovisningsregler för koncerner” has been 
applied. The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost 
convention, except in the case of financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) valued at fair 
value in the income statement. 

The preparation of reports in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. Moreover, it is required that management makes certain assessments in connection with the 
application of the Group’s accounting principles. Those areas involving a great deal of assessments or 
complexity or areas where assumptions and assessment are of essential importance for the consolidated financial 
statements are stated on Page F-23. 

Standards, changes and interpretations which came into force in 2007 

IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, and the supplementary change of IAS 1, Presentation of 
financial statement – Disclosures regarding capital, introduce new disclosures regarding financial instruments. 
IFRS 7 has no effect on the classification and valuation of the Group’s financial instruments. 

IFRIC 10, “Interim financial reporting and impairment”, does not allow those impairment losses 
recorded in previous interim period regarding goodwill or investments in either equity instruments or financial 
assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date. This interpretation does not have any 
impact on the Group’s financial reports. 
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Standards, changes and interpretations which came into effect in 2007 but which are not relevant to the 
Group 

The following standards, changes and interpretations of published standards are mandatory for 
financial years beginning January 1, 2007 or later but are not relevant for the Group: 

IFRIC 7, Application of the restatement approach under IAS 29, Financial reporting in 
hyperinflationary economies, 

IFRIC 8, “Scope of IFRS 2”, stipulates that transactions involving the issuance of equity instruments, 
where the compensation received is less than the fair value on issued equity instruments, shall be tested to 
determine if they fall within the scope of IFRS 2. 

IFRIC 9, Reassessment of embedded derivatives. 

Standards, amendments and interpretations of existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been 
early adopted by the Group 

The following new standards, as well as changes and interpretations of existing standards have been 
published and are mandatory for the Group’s reporting for the financial year beginning January 1, 2008 or later, 
but have not been early adopted by the Group: 

IAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of financial statements (effective as of January 1, 2009). The 
amendment of the standards is still under review in the EU’s endorsement process. First and foremost these 
amendments involve changes in the layout and names of the financial reports. Consequently, the Group’s future 
financial reports will be affected by the introduction of this standard. 

IAS 23 (Amendment), Borrowing costs (effective as of January 1, 2009). This amendment to the 
standard is subject to endorsement by the EU. The amendment requires that companies capitalise borrowing 
costs which are directly attributable to purchases, construction or production of qualifying assets that require a 
significant amount of time to complete for use or sale, as part of the acquisition cost of the asset. The alternative 
to immediately expense these costs will be removed. The Group will apply IAS (Amendment) as of January 1, 
2009. 

IAS 27 (Amendment), Consolidated financial statements and separate financial reports (are effective as 
of July 1, 2009). This amendment to the standard is still subject to endorsement by the EU. The amendment 
involves among other things, that income attributable to minority shareholders always be reported, even if it the 
minority share is negative, that transactions with minority shareholders shall always be reported in equity, and 
should the Parent Company lose its controlling influence, the potential remaining share shall be translated at fair 
value. The amendment to the standard will affect the accounting of future transactions. 

IFRS 3 (Amendment), Business combination (effective as of July 1, 2009). This amendment to the 
standard is subject to endorsement by the EU. The amendment begins to affect acquisitions from the date when 
it comes into force. The application involves an adjustment to the way future acquisitions will be reported, 
among other things concerning reporting of transaction costs, potential conditional purchase-sums and gradual 
acquisitions. The Group will begin to apply the standard as of the financial year starting January 1, 2010. The 
amendment to the standard will not have an effect on previous acquisitions but will affect the reporting of future 
transactions. 

IFRS 8, Operating segments (effective as of January 1, 2009). IFRS 8 is replacing IAS 14 and aligns 
segment reporting with the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131, Disclosures about segments of an 
enterprise and related information. The new standard requires that segment information is presented from 
management’s perspective, which means that it presented in the manner in which it is used in internal reporting. 
The Group will apply IFRS 8 as of January 1, 2009. Management is still analysing the impact of the standard, 
however it appears that in all likelihood, both the number of segments for which information is to be provided 
and the manner in which the reporting is done as far as the segments are concerned, will be adjusted in a manner 
which corresponds to the internal reports presented to the Chief Operating Decision-maker. 
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IFRIC 14, ‘IAS 19 – The Limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their 
interaction” (effective as of January 1, 2008). This interpretation is still subject to the EU endorsement process. 
IFRIC 14 provides guidance in connection with the assessment of the limitations of IAS 19 of the amount of 
surplus which can be reported as an asset. It also explains how the pension asset or liability can be affected by a 
legislated or stipulated requirement of minimum financing. The Group will apply IFRIC 14 as of January 1, 
2008 but this is not expected to result in any effect on the Group’s accounts. 

Interpretations of existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant to the Group 

The following interpretations of existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the 
Group for the financial year starting January 1, 2008 or later but are not relevant to the Group: 

IFRS 2 Share based payment (Amendments)—Vesting conditions and cancellations (effective as of 
January 1, 2009). This amendment of standards is still subject to endorsement by the EU. The amendment 
affects the definition of the terms and conditions of earnings and introduces a new concept, “non-vesting 
conditions” (terms and conditions not defined as terms and conditions of earnings). The standard states that 
“non-vesting conditions” shall be considered when assessing the fair value of the equity instrument. Goods and 
services received by a counter party which meet all other terms and conditions of earnings, shall be reported 
irrespective of whether “non-vesting conditions” are met or not. This amendment has no effect on the Group’s 
financial reports. 

IFRIC 11, “IFRS 2—Group and treasury share transactions”. IFRIC 11 deals with share related 
transactions which involves treasury shares or which comprise Group Company’s (for instance options 
regarding a Parent Company’s shares.) IFRIC 11 provides guidance as to whether these transactions shall be 
reported as equity-settled or cash settled share-based payment transactions in the stand alone accounts of the 
parent and group companies. This interpretation does not affect the Group’s financial reports. 

IFRIC 12, Service concession arrangements (effective as of January 1, 2008). The amendment to the 
standard is still subject to endorsement by the EU. IFRIC 12 holds for arrangements regulated by negotiation 
where an operator within the private sector takes part in development, financing, operation and maintenance 
regarding infrastructure for services in the public sector. IFRIC 12 is not relevant for the Group since no Group 
company provides services to the public sector. 

IFRIC 13, Customer loyalty programmes (effective as of July 1, 2008). The amendment to the standard 
is still subject to endorsement by the EU. IFRIC 13 makes clear that when goods and services are bundled 
together with some form of incentive to promote customer loyalty (for instance loyalty points or free products), 
this becomes an agreement with multiple elements (multiple elements arrangements). The remuneration 
received from the client is divided among the different parts of the agreement from each element’s fair value 
respectively. IFRIC 13 is irrelevant to the Group as no Group company has a loyalty program. 

2. 2 Consolidated accounts 

Classifications 

Non-current assets and long-term liabilities include in all material aspects amounts or benefits that will 
be received or paid 12 months after the balance sheet date. Current assets and current liabilities include in all 
material aspects amounts or benefits that will be received or paid within 12 months from the balance sheet date. 

Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are all companies (including companies for specific purposes) where the Group has the 
power to govern financial and operational strategies in a way which commonly follows a shareholding of more 
than half of all the voting rights. Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated accounts as of the day when the 
controlling influence is transferred to the Group. 

They are excluded from the consolidated accounts from the date the decision regarding influence 
expires. 
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The purchase method of accounting is used for the reporting of the Group’s acquisition of subsidiaries. 
The acquisition cost is comprised of the asset’s fair value of assets left as compensation, issued equity 
instruments and arisen or assumed liabilities per the transfer date, plus expenditures directly attributable to the 
acquisition. Identifiable acquired assets and assumed liabilities and contingent liabilities in an acquisition are 
initially valued at fair value as of the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of potential minority interest. 
The surplus which is comprised of the difference between the acquisition cost and the fair value of the Group’s 
share of identifiable acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is reported as goodwill. 

Intra-Group transactions and balance sheet items as well as unrealised gains on transactions between 
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated, but potential losses are treated as an 
impairment indication of the acquired asset. The accounting principles for subsidiaries have been adjusted where 
appropriate in order to guarantee a consistent application of the Group’s principles. 

Transactions under joint controlling influence 

Corral Finans is a newly formed company which during 2007 acquired underlying subsidiaries. This 
implies that acquisitions of subsidiaries have been made by companies under joint controlling influence; 
accordingly no third party has been involved to determine a fair value of assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities. The Company has therefore decided to report this acquisition at historical cost and no new goodwill 
arises as a result of the transaction. Instead, shares in subsidiaries are eliminated directly against equity which, 
in the case of the Group, will result in a negative equity. 

Transactions with minority shareholders 

The Group applies the principle in order to report transactions conducted with minority shareholders as 
transactions with third parties. Sales to minority shareholders result in gains and losses for the Group, which are 
then reported in the income statement. In connection with the acquisition of minority shares where the received 
purchase sum exceeds the acquired share of the reported value of the subsidiary’s net assets, the difference is 
recorded as goodwill. In sales to minority shareholders where the received purchase price deviates from the 
reported value of a share of the net assets being sold, a gain or loss will result. This gain or loss is reported in the 
income statement. 

Associated companies 

Associated companies are all companies where the Group has a significant but not controlling 
influence, which generally applies to shareholdings which comprise between 20 – 50 percent of the voting 
rights. Holdings in associated companies are reported according to the equity method and are initially reported 
at acquisition cost. The Group’s carrying amount of holdings in associated companies includes goodwill 
identified at the time of the acquisition less any impairment charges. 

The Group’s share of income which has accumulated in the associated companies after the acquisition 
is reported in the income statement and its share of changes in equity after the acquisition is reported under the 
item equity. Accumulated changes after the acquisition are reported as changes of the holdings’ carrying 
amount. When the Group’s share of an associated company’s losses amounts to or exceeds its holding in the 
associated company, including any receivables without security, the Group does not report any additional losses, 
unless the Group has assumed liabilities or payments made on behalf of the associated company. 

Unrealised gains on transactions among the Group and its associated companies are eliminated in 
relation to the Group’s holding in the associated company. Unrealised losses are also eliminated, unless the 
transaction is proof that the transferred asset is in need of impairment. Applied accounting principles in 
associated companies have when applicable been adjusted in order to guarantee a consistent application of the 
Group’s principles. 



Corral Finans AB (publ) 

Notes with accounting policy and comments on notes to the financial statements 

(Amount in MSEK unless otherwise specified) 

 F-12 

Foreign currency translation 

Functional currency and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial reports of the different units within the Group are valued in the currency 
used in the economic environment in which each company is principally operating (functional currency). The 
consolidated accounts are presented in Swedish kronor (SEK), which is also the functional and the presentation 
currency of the Parent Company. 

Transactions and balance sheet items 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to functional currency in accordance with the 
exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date. Exchange gains and losses arising from the payment of such 
transactions and in the translation of monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the closing rate of 
exchange are reported in the income statement. The Company does not hedge transactions or investments in 
foreign currency. 

Group companies 

The income and financial position for all Group companies with functional currencies other than the 
presentation currency are translated to the Group’s presentation currency as follows: 

a) assets and liabilities for each of the balance sheets are translated to the closing day rate, 
b) revenues and expenses for each of the income statements are translated to the average exchange rate, 

and 
c) all exchange rate differences which arise are reported as a separate item in equity. 

In connection with the consolidation the exchange rate difference, which arises as a result of translation 
of net investments in foreign operations, is transferred to equity. In sale of foreign operations, entirely or 
partially, the exchange rate differences are transferred from equity and onto the income statement and are 
accounted for as part of the realised gain/ loss. 

Goodwill and adjustments of fair value which arise in connection with acquisition of a foreign 
operation is treated as assets and liabilities with this operation and are translated at the closing day rate. 

Segment reporting 

A business segment is group assets and operations providing products or services which are exposed to 
risks and opportunities that differ from that of other business segments. Geographical areas provide products 
and services within a particular economic environment exposed to risks and opportunities that differ from that of 
other economic environments. The primary basis of division for the Group’s segment is business segments. 

Tangible fixed assets 

All tangible fixed assets are reported at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and any write-
downs, except in the case of land, as well as platina and palladium which are reported under Plant and 
machinery, as they function as catalysts in reforms and isometric facilities and are not consumed. Tangible fixed 
assets comprised of different parts with different useful lifetimes are treated as separate components of tangible 
fixed assets. The acquisition cost includes expenditures which can be directly attributable to the acquired asset. 

Additional expenditures are added to the assets’ reported value or are reported as a separate asset, 
depending on which is appropriate, only when it is probable that benefits expected to be received from the asset 
will balance in the favour of the Group and the asset’s acquisition cost can be estimated in a reliable manner. 
Reported carrying amount for the reimbursed portion is removed from the balance sheet. All other forms of 
repairs and maintenance are reported as costs in the income statement in the period in which they arise. 
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Depreciation of other assets, in order to allocate their acquisition cost down to the estimated residual 
value over the estimated useful lifetime, is made on a straight line basis as follows: 

Buildings and underground rock cavity.......................................................................................... 20-50 years 
Land improvements ........................................................................................................................ 20 years 
Plant and machinery ....................................................................................................................... 10-30 years 
Capitalized turn-around costs ......................................................................................................... 4-5 years 
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings............................................................................................ 3-8 years 
 

Refinery facilities are comprised of a number of components with different useful lifetimes. The main 
division is Plant and machinery. However, there are many components included whose useful lifetimes vary 
within this main division. The following main divisions of components have been identified and are the basis for 
depreciation of refinery facilities.  

Electricity and Instruments ................................................................................................................... 15 years 
Heat exchanger ..................................................................................................................................... 15 years 
Boiler .................................................................................................................................................... 20 years 
Steel structure ....................................................................................................................................... 30 years 
Pressure chamber.................................................................................................................................. 30 years 
 

The asset’s residual value and useful lifetime is reviewed on each balance sheet date and is adjusted if 
needed. An asset’s carrying amount is written-down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. This is tested when indicated. 

The reported value of a tangible fixed asset is removed from the balance sheet in conjunction with 
disposal or sale or when no future economic benefits are expected from the use or disposal/sale of the asset. 
Gains and losses at sale are established through a comparison between the sales revenue and the reported value 
and are recorded in net in the income statement depending on which function the asset is associated with. 

Intangible assets 

Goodwill 

Goodwill comprises the amount by which the acquisition cost exceeds the fair value of the Group’s 
participation in the acquired subsidiary/associated company’s identifiable net assets at the point at the time of 
acquisition. Goodwill on the acquisition of subsidiaries is recorded as an intangible asset. Goodwill which is 
reported separately is tested annually for any potential impairment requirement and is recorded at acquisition 
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses of goodwill are not reversed. Profit or loss on the 
sale of a unit includes the remaining carrying value of goodwill referring to the unit sold. 

Goodwill is allocated among cash generating units in connection with testing of any impairment 
requirement. The allocation is made among the cash generating units or groups of cash generating units 
expected to benefit from the operational acquisition which gave rise to the goodwill item. Corral Finans AB 
Group allocates goodwill among business segments. 

Other intangible assets 

Corral Finans has no other intangible assets which can be capitalised, consequently, expenditures of 
goodwill and trademarks generated in-house are expensed in the income statement as they arise. 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets with an indefinite useful lifetime such as goodwill are not amortized but are instead tested on an 
annual basis for any impairment requirement. Assets which are amortized are assessed with regards to 
impairment whenever an event or change in the circumstances indicates that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment is made to the amount at which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The write-down is reported in the income statement. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s 
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fair value less selling expenses and its useful value. In conjunction with assessment of impairment needs, the 
assets are grouped at the lowest level where there are separate identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 
For assets other than financial assets and goodwill, which have been previously impaired, an impairment test is 
done on each balance sheet date to establish if reversal is appropriate. The book value after a reversal of write-
down may not exceed the book value that should have been reported excluding any write-downs. 

Inventories 

Inventories are reported to the lowest of the acquisition value and the net realisable value. Acquisition 
value is determined by the use of the first in, first out method (FIFO). Acquisition value for petroleum products 
that are made in USD is reported at the exchange rate of the day for “bill of lading”. Acquisition value for 
finished products and work in progress consists of raw materials, direct salaries, and other direct costs which are 
attributable to indirect manufacturing costs (based on normal manufacturing capacity). 

Net realisable value is the estimated sales price in daily operations. 

In regards to crude oil, the replacement cost is used as the best available measurement for net realisable 
value. Since crude oil is held in order to be used in manufacturing, the value of crude oil is not written-down 
under acquisition value in the case that finished products concurrently are expected to be sold at a price 
exceeding the product’s acquisition value. 

Borrowed inventories are not included in the inventory value, and correspondingly, lent inventories are 
included in the inventory value when material risks and rewards have not been transferred. See also note 15. 

Current and deferred tax 

Current income tax expenses are calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or enacted in practice at 
the balance sheet date in those countries where the Parent Company’s subsidiaries and associated companies 
operate and generate taxable income. Management evaluates positions taken on tax returns on a regular basis 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions, where appropriate, for amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. Income tax is reported in 
the income statement, except when underlying transactions are reported directly against equity. In such cases, 
associated tax effects are reported in equity. Current tax is tax which is to be paid or received regarding the 
current year, and adjustments of current taxes attributable to previous periods. 

Deferred income tax is reported in its entirety, according to the liability method, on all temporary 
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated 
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not reported if it arises from a transaction which 
constitutes the first initial accounting of an asset or liability which is not a business combination and which, at 
the time of the transaction affects neither the results nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or announced by the balance sheet date and are 
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is 
settled. 

Deferred income tax assets are accounted for to the extent that it is probable that a future taxable 
surplus will be available, against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

Provisions 

Provisions for environmental restoration measures and legal claims are accounted for when the Group 
has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been estimated in a reliable manner. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be required to settle the 
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time-dependent value of 
money and the risks associated with the provision. The rise in the provision due to the passage of time is 
reported as an interest expense. 
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Contingent liabilities 

A contingent liability is reported when there is a possible obligation which refers to actions that are 
confirmed but it is not probable that a liability exists or it is not possible to estimate the liability. 

Employee benefits 

The Group has mostly defined benefit pension plans but also has defined contribution pension plans. A 
defined contribution pension plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to a separate 
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if this legal entity does 
not hold sufficient assets to pay all benefits to employees relating to employee service during the current or prior 
periods. A defined benefit pension plan is a pension plan that is not based on defined contribution. 
Characteristically, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive after 
retirement, based on years of service and salary at the time of retirement. The pension plans are generally 
funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic 
actuarial calculations. The pension commitments are secured on the basis of occupational pension insurance, 
through payment of pension premiums to an account for pension provisions (FPG/PRI) or payment to a pension 
foundation (KP foundation) according to the regulations in the Swedish law on safeguarding pensions. The 
defined benefit plans are both funded and unfunded. Where the plans are funded, assets have been placed in a 
pension foundation (KP foundation). These plan assets can only be used to pay pensions according to the 
pension agreements and are valued at fair value as of the measurement date. 

The liability recorded in the balance sheet regarding defined benefit pension plans is the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with 
adjustments for unaccounted actuarial gains and losses as well as unaccounted service costs for previous 
periods. The defined benefit pension obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting 
the estimated future cash flows using interest rates for first-class corporate bonds that are issued in the same 
currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have duration periods comparable to the terms of the related 
pension liability. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience-based adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions in excess of the higher end of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit 
obligation is charged or credited to income over the employees’ expected average remaining period of service. 

Past service costs are accounted for directly in the income statement, unless the changes to the pension 
plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In 
such cases, the costs for past service are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. 

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered 
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment 
obligations once the contributions have been paid. 

The profit/loss of the Group is charged with costs as the benefits are earned. Prepaid fees are recorded 
as assets to the extent that repayments or reduction of future payments will be of benefit to the Group. 

Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal 
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary resignation in exchange for these benefits. The 
Group reports termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the employment of 
current employees according to a detailed formal plan without the possibility of withdrawal; or providing 
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary resignation. 
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Profit-sharing plans 

The Group reports a liability and an expense for profit-sharing, on the basis of the return on capital 
employed. The Group reports a provision where legally obliged to do so or where there is a past practice that has 
led to a constructive obligation. 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprises the fair value of that which is received or will be received for goods sold in the 
Group’s continuing operations. Revenue is recorded excluding value-added tax, returns and discounts and after 
eliminating inter-group sales. 

The Group reports revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the Company and when specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Group’s activities. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies 
relating to the sale have been fulfilled or matured. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into 
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specific circumstances of each arrangement. 

Interest income 

Interest income is reported as revenue distributed over its lifetime using the effective interest method. 
When the value of a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable value, 
determined by the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, 
and continues to resolve the discount effect as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is accounted 
for using the original effective interest rate. 

Interest expense 

Interest expense is reported in the income statement based on the effective interest method except for 
the part that is capitalised as part of an asset’s cost value. 

Leasing 

Lessee 

Leasing in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor 
are classified as operational leases. Payments made during the period of the lease (after discounts for any 
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease. The Group has only operational leasing agreements. 

Lessor 

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee, in exchange for a payment or a series 
of payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time. When assets are leased out under an 
operational lease agreement, the asset is recorded in the balance sheet as an asset in the Corral Finans Group. 
The Group has only operational lease agreements. 

Dividends 

Dividends to the Parent Company’s shareholders are reported as a liability in the Group’s financial 
statements under the period in which the dividends are approved by the Parent Company’s shareholders. 
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Emission rights 

Preem Petroleum’s refineries Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff Gothenburg have been allotted 
emissions rights for carbon dioxide equivalent to a total of 6,682,224 tonnes over a three-year period, 2005–
2007. Therefore, the allocation and consumption have affected neither the reported results nor the Company’s 
position. The sale of emission rights is recorded under the heading Net sales in the income statement at an 
amount corresponding to the purchase price received. 

 Lysekil Gothenburg 
Total number of allotted rights for the three-year period.........................................  4,923,834 1,758,390 
Number of utilised rights during 2005–2006...........................................................  (2,880,638) (1,114,644) 
Number of sold rights 2006 .....................................................................................  (165,000) — 
Number of utilised rights 2007 ................................................................................  (1,610,108) (474,995) 
Number sold rights 2007 .........................................................................................  (155,000) — 
Total number of remaining rights ............................................................................  113,088 168,751 
 

During 2007 the present year, 155,000 emission rights were sold for a total of SEK 4.million Preem 
Petroleum AB (publ) has decided not to utilise all of the granted rights. Remaining emission rights as shown in 
the table above will be nullified by the Swedish Energy Agency. 

Financial assets and liabilities 

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss, derivatives at fair value through profit and loss, loans and receivables at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method, and available-for-sale financial assets valued at fair value through equity. 
The classification is dependent on what purpose the financial asset was acquired. Management determines the 
classification of the financial assets at initial recognition. 

Financial liabilities in the Group refer to: Derivatives, accounts payable, and borrowing including 
cheque account. Derivatives are valued at fair value at fair value through profit and loss and accounts payable 
and borrowing (including bank overdraft facilities) at amortized cost by applying the effective interest method. 

Purchases and sales of financial assets are reported on the trade date - the date when the Group 
commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets and liabilities are initially reported at fair value plus 
transaction costs; this applies to all financial assets and liabilities not reported at fair value in the income 
statement. Financial assets and liabilities valued at fair value in the income statement and are initially reported at 
fair value, while related transaction costs are reported in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised 
from the balance sheet as the right to receive cash flows from the instrument has expired or been transferred and 
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards associated with the title. Financial liabilities or parts 
of a financial liability are removed from the balance sheet when the obligations of the agreement have been 
fulfilled or otherwise eliminated. 

Financial assets and liabilities valued at fair value in the income statement 

Financial assets and liabilities are valued at fair value in the income statement and are financial assets 
held for trading. A financial asset or liability is classified in this category if it is acquired mainly for the purpose 
of being sold in the near future. Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they can be identified as 
hedges. The Company has both oil derivatives and interest-rate swaps. Oil derivatives are classified as either 
current assets or current liabilities under the heading Derivative instruments and in the income statement under 
the heading Cost of goods sold. Interest-rate swaps are classified as non current assets or long-term liabilities 
under the heading Derivative instruments. In the income statement, interest-rate swaps are accounted for under 
the heading Financial expenses or income. 

Corral Finans has no derivative instruments designated as hedging instruments regarding fair value 
hedge, cash flows hedge or net investments in foreign operations hedge. 
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Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets, with established or fixed payments, and are 
not quoted on an active market. These items are valued at amortized cost. Accounts receivable are included in 
current assets when there are no items with maturity dates more than 12 months after balance sheet date. Loans 
are included in financial fixed assets when the maturity date is more than 12 months under the heading Loans to 
related parties. (see notes 13 and 16). 

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade 
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Corral Finans group will not be able to 
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the 
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency 
in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted 
at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement depending on what 
function the receivable related to. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance 
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the 
function it is attributable to in the income statement. 

Available-for-sale financial assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative assets that are either identified as available for 
sale or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included non-current assets unless management 
intends to dispose of the asset within 12 months of the balance sheet date. When securities classified as 
available-for-sale financial assets are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in 
equity are included in the income statement as gains and losses from financial instruments. 

The fair values of quoted securities are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is 
not active (and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques such as the 
use of information regarding arm’s length transactions recently made, reference to the fair value of other 
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option valuation modelsmaking 
maximum use of market inputs and rely as little as possible on company-specific inputs. If the Company judges 
that these methods do not provide a reliable value, the assets are valued at acquisition value. All available-for-
sale financial assets are valued at acquisition value on balance sheet date since a value cannot be reliably 
estimated. 

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence of a impairment 
requirement of a financial asset or group of financial assets. In the case of shares classified as assets available 
for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an 
indicator that a impairment requirement exists. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, 
the accumulated loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less 
any impairment on that financial asset previously reported in the income statement – is removed from equity and 
recorded in the income statement. Impairment losses reported in the income statement on equity instruments are 
not reversed through the income statement. Impairment testing of accounts receivable is described in note 16. 

Dividends from share instruments available-for-sale are recorded in the income statement as part of 
Other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established. 

Accounts payable—trade 

Accounts payable - trade are initially reported at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. 
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Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recorded at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 
subsequently recorded at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption value is recorded in the income statement as financial expenses distributed over the period of 
borrowing using the effective interest method. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. 

Borrowing costs are generally charged the result for the period they are attributed to. Borrowing costs 
directly attributable to purchases, construction or production of an asset, which by necessity takes a substantial 
period of time to prepare for use or sale, are included in the acquisition value of the asset if it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the asset will go to the Company and the costs of the asset can be 
measured reliably. The capitalised interest expenses for the year amount to SEK 3 million and relate primarily to 
the balance sheet item “Plant and machinery”. The average interest rate utilised was 6.0%. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank deposits and other investments with original 
maturity within three months of the time of acquisition. 

Financial risk factors 

The Group is exposed through its operations to a number of various financial risks: market risk 
(including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management policies focus on unpredictability in the financial markets and aim 
to minimise potentially unfavourable effects on the Group’s financial results. 

Risk policy and objectives 

The Group’s policy for financial risk management aims at maintaining high efficiency in the business 
operations in order to reduce volatility in results and cash-flow. 

All operations connected with the management of risk concerning financial instruments are handled by 
the finance department in Preem Petroleum AB, with the exception of the management of oil derivatives which 
is handled by the business area Supply and refining. The management of financial risks is regulated by Group-
wide policies established by the Board of Directors. The goal of the Company’s derivatives trading is to 
guarantee that financial risks are held within the Board of Director’s established framework. 

Market risk 

Foreign exchange risk 

The Group operates internationally and is subject to foreign exchange rate risks that arise from 
exposure to different currencies, first and foremost, to the U.S. dollar. Foreign exchange rate risk within the 
group arises through future business transaction as well as revaluations of reported assets and liabilities. The 
Group does not hedge risk associated with future business transactions. In order to minimise the risk of losses in 
working capital linked to changes in the value of the USD in relation to the value of SEK, the Company raises 
or amortises borrowings in USD. The Group does not apply hedge accounting. The table below account for the 
Group’s net exposure per balance sheet date translated into Swedish SEK. 

The Group has only insignificant holdings in foreign operations in which the net assets are exposed to 
foreign exchange risks. Therefore, the Group does not have any material foreign exchange exposure. 

On the balance sheet date, if SEK had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the U.S. dollar, with all 
other variables held constant, post-tax profit/loss for the year per December 31, 2007 would have been SEK 198 
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million higher/lower than the profit/loss after tax as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses at translation of 
accounts payable - trade, borrowings as well as loans receivable and accounts receivable. 

Net exposure per balance sheet date 2007 In % 
EUR.....................................................................................................................  (3,336) 24% 
USD.....................................................................................................................  (10,335) 76% 
Other ....................................................................................................................  35 0% 
Total.....................................................................................................................  (13,636) 100% 
 
Price risk 

The Group is exposed to price risk, primarily regarding the stock of crude oil and refined products. The 
stock consists of “normal stock”, in order words, the stock that normally is maintained in order to comply with 
the laws and operational demands at normal market conditions, and deviations both positive and negative from 
the normal stock. As a general rule, the normal stock is not hedged. 

In order to handle price risks that arise related to deviations from the normal stock the Group trades oil 
derivatives. The Board has established a number of risk limits which define to what extent volume exposure 
may deviate from the position that arises due to the normal stock, as well as what level of maximum risk, 
expressed in USD, the Company is ready to take on the amount of these volume deviations. 

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 

The Group’s interest rate risks arise partly from borrowings, partly from loans. 

Loans that run with variable interest rate expose the Group to interest rate risk in regards to cash-flow. 
Loans that run with fixed interest, expose the Group to interest rate risk regarding fair value. The main part of 
the Group’s loans run at variable interest rates. To a lesser extent, the interest rate risk is offset regarding cash-
flow through borrowings at a fixed interest rate and the use of interest rate swaps. According to the Group 
policy, the interest rate duration shall not exceed 12 months. During 2007, the Group’s borrowings at variable 
interest rates consisted of that in SEK, USD and EUR. 

The Group’s interest bearing assets are in the form of loans to related parties, and to a lesser extent, 
short-term investments in liquid funds. Loans to related parties are issued with conditions of a fixed interest rate, 
in accordance with the market, which means that the group is exposed to fair value risk. 

The Group’s outstanding loans from credit institutions on the balance sheet date, for both long-term 
and short-term loans, including bank overdraft facilities, amounted to SEK 18,209 million. The Group’s loan 
conditions, effective interest rate and the maturity profile are disclosed in note 23. 

If the interest rate on borrowings in per December 31, 2007 had been 1.0 percent higher/lower with all 
other variables held constant, the profit after tax for the financial year would have been SEK 89 million 
lower/higher, mainly as an effect of higher/lower interest expenses for borrowings with variable interest rates. 

Credit risks 

Credit risk is controlled at the Group level. Credit risks arise through investments in liquid funds, 
derivative instruments as well as credit exposures against the large number of clients to which sales are made on 
credit. In order to limit these exposures there are group-wide credit policies which, among other things, imply 
that only banks and financial institutions that from independent estimators receive at least an “A” rating are 
accepted. Regarding the Group’s clients, a risk assessment of the client’s credit status is made, where its 
financial position is taken into consideration, and previous experiences and other factors are assessed. The 
Group works with securities in the form of, among other things, Letters of Credit, bank guarantees, deposits and 
Parent Company guarantee. The use of credit limits monitored on a regular basis. 

The greater part in monetary terms of the credit exposure is against financially strong oil companies. 
Based on the analysis that the Group continuously makes of its clients, the credit quality is considered as good. 
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During the year the Group has only SEK 27 million in provision of impairment trade receivables during 2007, 
compared to sales revenue of SEK 50,011 million. 

Lending (liquid funds) to banks has only been made to a very limited group of banks with a credit 
rating of at least A. 

During the year counterparties for derivative trade with interest rate swaps have only been made with 
banks and credit institutions with a credit rating of at least A. In regards to trade with oil derivatives, it is other 
oil companies, banks and trading businesses which act as counterparties. In order to limit counterparty risks with 
the trade of oil derivatives, the Company enters into so called ISDA agreements. 

Liquidity risks 

Liquidity risk is handled by the Group having enough liquid funds and short-term investments with a 
liquid market and available financing through credit facilities which are under contract. The group pays 
approximately SEK 1,200 million on a monthly basis in the form of tax on products and VAT, which, in 
combination with fluctuations in purchase and sales patterns, can incur demands on the availability of short loan 
credits. 

To safeguard the Group’s access to external financing in all circumstances, credit commitments, both 
short and long term, must always be available. The lender base must also be reasonably diversified to prevent 
dependence on individual sources of finance. 

The table below analyzes the Group’s financial liabilities and net settled derivative instruments which 
make up financial liabilities, divided by time period at the balance sheet date that remains until the contractual 
maturity date. The amounts stated in the table are the contractual, undiscounted cash-flows and thus, these do 
not reconcile to the amounts that can be found in the balance sheet. The amounts that mature within 12 months 
do reconcile to recorded amounts since the discounting effect is then insignificant. 

At December 31, 2007 
Less than 1 

year 

Between 1 
and 2 
years 

Between 2 
and 5 
years 

Over 5 
years 

Borrowing......................................................................... 2,857 3,024 14,227  
Interest swaps ................................................................... 10 10 9  
Oil derivatives .................................................................. 62    
Accounts payable trade..................................................... 5,268    
Other current liabilities ..................................................... 1,370    
Accrued liabilities............................................................. 2,620    
 
Handling of Capital Risk 

The Group’s goal regarding capital structure is to secure the Group’s access to capital markets and 
maintain an optimal capital structure in order to hold the costs for the capital down which balances the 
Company’s commercial risk with the cost of capital. 

The Board continuously monitors the Group’s financial position and net liabilities against expected 
future profitability and cash-flow, investment and expansion plans as well as the development the interest rate 
and credit markets. 

Fair value estimation 

Fair value of derivative instruments traded on an active market is based on quoted market prices on the 
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for the Group’s financial assets is the current buying-rate. The 
fair value of oil derivatives is determined by the use of quoted prices for oil forward delivery on the balance 
sheet date. 
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The fair value of financial instruments not traded on an active market (for example, OTC derivatives) is 
determined with the aid of valuation techniques. The fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present 
value of estimated future cash flows. 

Fair value of financial liabilities are calculated, for the purpose of providing information, by 
discounting the future contracted cash flow at the current market rate which is readily available to the Group for 
similar financial instruments. 

The value of financial instruments in the Group 

 

Carrying 
amount 

2007 
Fair value 

2007 
Assets   
Long-term financial assets.................................................................................. 37 37 
Accounts receivable – trade................................................................................ 4,945 4,945 
Other receivables ................................................................................................ 461 461 
Accrued income.................................................................................................. 125 125 
Loans to related parties....................................................................................... 3,136 3,136 
Oil derivatives .................................................................................................... 36 36 
Currency swaps .................................................................................................. 0 0 
Short-term investments, cash and bank balances................................................ 835 835 
 9,575 9,575 
Liabilities   
Interest rate derivatives....................................................................................... 29 29 
Long-term liabilities to credit institutions .......................................................... 14,928 14,474 
Current liabilities to credit institutions ............................................................... 2,838 2,838 
Accounts payable - trade .................................................................................... 5,268 5,268 
Other current liabilities ....................................................................................... 1,368 1,368 
Accrued expenses ............................................................................................... 2,620 2,620 
Oil derivatives .................................................................................................... 62 62 
 27,113 26,659 
 
Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

Estimations and assessments are evaluated on a continuous basis based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future developments deemed fair under current circumstances. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions for accounting purposes 

The Group makes estimates and assumptions about the future. These estimates, for accounting 
purposes following these, by definition, rarely equal the related actual result. The main feature of those 
estimates and assumptions involving a significant risk for essential adjustments in reported values of assets and 
liabilities in the coming financial year are listed below. 

The book value, after any impairment, for accounts receivable–trade and accounts payable–trade is 
assumed to correspond with their fair values, as these items are of a short-term nature. 

Impairment test for Goodwill 

Each year the Group tests whether goodwill should be impaired, in accordance with the accounting 
principle described in note 9. The recoverable amounts for cash generating unit have been established by 
estimating the value in use. In order to come up with these certain estimates must be done, see note 9. 



Corral Finans AB (publ) 

Notes with accounting policy and comments on notes to the financial statements 

(Amount in MSEK unless otherwise specified) 

 F-23 

Had the budgeted gross margin used to calculate the value in use for the cash generating unit which 
constitutes Supply & Refining been 10 percent lower than that estimated by management per December 31, 
2007, the Group would not need to make any impairment on goodwill. 

If the estimated discount rate before tax which was used for discounting cash flows for the cash 
generating unit constituting Supply & Refining had been 1 percent higher than management’s estimate, the 
Group would not have to make any impairment on goodwill. 

Important assessments in connection with application of the Company’s accounting principles 

Functional currency 

The subsidiary Preem Petroleum AB has a significant cash-flow in USD. When assessing the 
subsidiary’s functional currency, management has evaluated the criteria existing in IAS 21 concerning the 
establishment of functional currency. Management has made the assessment, after careful consideration of all 
indicators, that the subsidiary; Preem Petroleum AB’s functional currency is SEK. 

Transactions between parties with joint controlling influence 

Corral Finans AB’s acquisition of Corral Petroleum Holding AB is a transaction between parties under 
joint controlling influence. As there is no guidance in IFRS concerning this type of transaction, the Company’s 
management has worked out an accounting principle in accordance with the demands of IAS 8. The transaction 
has been recorded at the historical book value through the application of the pooling of interests method. 

The application of the pooling of interests method stipulates that the consolidated accounts have been 
prepared as if the merged units have always been made up of one unit, which implicitly means that the 
comparative figures shall be recalculated. However, there is no exception for transactions between parties with 
joint controlling influence in IAS 27. The Company is of the opinion that no departure can be made from this 
recommendation. Therefore, the subsidiary Corral Petroleum Holding AB’s income and expenses are reported in 
the consolidated accounts from the time of the acquisition (the time when controlling influence arises) and, 
accordingly, the result for Corral Petroleum Holding AB has been included from April 1, 2007. 
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Note 1.  Segments 

Business segments 

The group consists of two business segments; 

Supply & Refining—To the two refineries Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff Gothenburg, crude oil is 
bought as being refined to finished oil products. About 2/3 of the production is exported to principally the north 
European market. The part of the production sold in Sweden, is sold partly through own market channels, partly 
through other oil companies. 

Marketing—Through this segment refined oil products bought from the segment Supply & Refining is 
sold. The sale is done directly to consumers through the company’s stations network and to companies and 
consumers through direct sale. 

Internal pricing 

Prices are decided on the basis of the market at prices that are founded upon the official notes from the 
oil market. 

Distribution of profit, assets and liabilities 

In profit, assets and liabilities of the segment there are included items directly attributable and items 
that can be distributed to the segments in a reasonable and reliable way. Undistributed income statement items 
consists principally of exchange rate differences in trade with foreign counterparty and group-wide costs. In the 
segments investments in tangible and intangible fixed assets is included all investments apart from investments 
in expendable equipment and equipment of small value. 
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Note 1.  Segments (Continued) 

The Group 2007 

Sales per segment 
Supply & 
Refining Marketing 

Exchange 
rate 

difference Elimination Group 
External sales 40,682 9,419 (90) — 50,011 
Internal sales 8,847 23 — (8,870) — 
Total sales revenue 49,529 9,442 (90) (8,870) 50,011 
      
Operating income per segment.....................  3,940 (87)   3,853 
Exchange rate differences in current 

payments ...................................................      175 
Currency impact in normal inventory...........      (513) 
Corporate center costs ..................................      (217) 
Total operating income.................................      3,298 
Financial income and expenses ....................      (705) 
Taxes for the year .........................................      (820) 
Net profit for the year ...................................          1,773 
Assets and liabilities per segment      
Assets............................................................  17,777 6,825   24,602 
Undistributed assets......................................      3,973 
Total assets ...................................................      28,575 
Liabilities......................................................  7,390 1,606   8,996 
Undistributed liabilities ................................      20,821 
Total liabilities..............................................          29,817 
Investments and depreciations per segment      
Investments per segment ..............................  1,248 158  2 1,408 

Depreciations per segment............................  640 75   2 717 
 

The segment’s assets and liabilities is matched against the Group’s total assets and liabilities as 
follows: 

 Assets Liabilities 
Segment assets/liabilities ............................................................................................. 24,602 8,996 
Undistributed ...............................................................................................................   
Loans to related parties................................................................................................ 3,136  
Cash and cash equivalents ........................................................................................... 585  
Other receivables ......................................................................................................... 252  
Borrowing....................................................................................................................  17,766 
Deferred tax .................................................................................................................  1,600 
Provisions for pensions................................................................................................  160 
Current income tax liabilities.......................................................................................  785 
Derivative instruments.................................................................................................  29 
Other liabilities ............................................................................................................  481 
Total ............................................................................................................................ 28,575 29,817 
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Note 1.  Segments (Continued) 

Geographical areas—secondary segment 

Geographical areas form the group’s secondary basis for classification. The information that is 
presented attributable to income concerns the geographical areas grouped according to where the customers are 
localised. Information attributable to the segment’s assets and the investments of the period in fixed assets are 
based upon geographical areas grouped according to where assets are localised. In the table below the term 
Other Nordic countries principally refers to Denmark, Norway and Island and with Other countries principally 
refers to Germany, France, UK, the Netherlands, Poland and North America. 

The Group 2007 

 Sweden 

Other 
Nordic 

countries 
Other 

countries Group 
External revenue............................................................. 18,829 10,969 20,213 50,011 
Assets.............................................................................. 28,243 — 332 28,575 
Investments..................................................................... 1,408 — — 1,408 
 
Note 2.  Gross profit/loss 

Purchases and sales of oil products in the market are substantially on a USD basis. Exchange rate 
differences on sales is accounted under net sales and exchange rate differences at purchases is accounted under 
cost of goods sold. In the group’s gross profit is included exchange rate differences, and purchases and sales of 
oil products, to net gain of SEK 175 million (see also note 7). 

Note 3.  Excise duties 

Selective taxes refers to energy tax, petrol tax, carbon dioxide tax, sulphur tax and alcohol tax. 

Note 4.  Other operating income 

 2007 
Heat delivery ...........................................................................................................................................  39 
Rental income..........................................................................................................................................  60 
Harbour income .......................................................................................................................................  29 
Storage certificate ....................................................................................................................................  121 
Commission revenue ...............................................................................................................................  1 
Service remuneration...............................................................................................................................  18 
Other ........................................................................................................................................................  27 
Total.........................................................................................................................................................  295 
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Note 5.  Financial income and expenses 

 2007 
Financial income  
Interest income from bank balances ........................................................................................................  31 
Interest income related parties .................................................................................................................  118 
Other financial income ............................................................................................................................  1 
Exchange rate losses................................................................................................................................  (10) 
Total.........................................................................................................................................................  140 

Finance costs  
Interest expenses, Other...........................................................................................................................  (1,036) 
Interest expenses, financial liabilities ......................................................................................................  (113) 
Interest swap............................................................................................................................................  (29) 
Other financial expenses..........................................................................................................................  (49) 
Exchange rate gains ................................................................................................................................  382 
Total.........................................................................................................................................................  (845) 
 
Note 6.  Tax on net profit for the year 

 2007 
Current tax expense (-) /tax income(+)  
Tax expense for the period ................................................................................................................... (911) 
 (911) 
Deferred tax expense(-)/ tax income(+)  
Deferred tax referring to temporary differences ................................................................................... 91 
Total reported tax expense.................................................................................................................... (820) 

Reconciliation of effective tax  
Profit before tax .................................................................................................................................... 2,593 
Tax according to current tax rates ........................................................................................................ 726 
Deficit for which deferred tax receivable has not been recognized ...................................................... 92 
Other non-deductible expenses............................................................................................................. 5 
Income not subject to tax...................................................................................................................... (1) 
Taxes relating to prior periods.............................................................................................................. (2) 
Reported tax expense............................................................................................................................ 820 

Weighted average tax rate during 2007 was 32%.  
 
Note 7.  Exchange rate differences in income statement—net 

Exchange rate differences have been accounted for in the income statement as follows: 

 2007 
Net sales................................................................................................................................................ (90) 
Cost of goods sold ................................................................................................................................ 265 
Financial items...................................................................................................................................... 372 
Total...................................................................................................................................................... 547 
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Note 8.  Earnings per share 

Before dilution 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by taking the profit attributable to Parent Company shareholders 
divided with a weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares during the period excluding repurchased 
shares held by the Parent Company. 

 2007 
Profit attributable to Parent Company shareholders in SEK....................................................................  1,772,285 
Weighed average number of outstanding ordinary shares .......................................................................  5,000 
Earnings per share before dilution in SEK ..............................................................................................  354,457 
 
After dilution 

There exists no dilutive effect. 

Number of shares at the beginning of the financial year was 5,000. Number of shares at the end of the 
year was 5,000. 

Note 9.  Intangible non-current assets 

Goodwill 

 2007 
Opening acquisition cost .........................................................................................................................  308 
Closing accumulated acquisition cost......................................................................................................  308 
  
Opening accumulated impairment charges..............................................................................................  0 
Closing accumulated write-downs...........................................................................................................  0 
  
Book value ..............................................................................................................................................  308 
  
 
Consideration of write-down requirement for Goodwill 

Identified Goodwill is as a whole attributable to the group’s cash generating unit, Goods support and 
Sweden. 

A summary at segment level is to be found below: 

 2007 
 Supply & Refining Total 
Sweden .................................................................................................... 308 308 
   
Total Group ............................................................................................. 308 308 
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Note 9.  Intangible non-current assets (Continued) 

Recoverable amount for a cash generating unit is determined based upon calculations of value in use. 
These calculations are founded in estimated future cash flows before taxes based upon financial budgets 
approved by the company management and cover a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are 
extrapolated by means of an estimated growth rate in accordance with information given below. The growth rate 
does not exceed the long-term growth rate for the market where the segment Supply & Refining acts. 

Substantial assumptions used for calculations of values in use 

 
Goods  

support 
Average refining margin in USD per barrel for the period................................................................. 4.97-5.40 
Average growth rate for extrapolation beyond budget period ............................................................ 0% 
Discount rate before taxes .................................................................................................................. 8% 
 

The management has determined the budgeted refining margin based on earlier results and their 
expectations in the market development. The weighted average growth rate being used does not exceed the 
forecasts available in industry reports. The discount rates being used is stated before taxes and reflects the 
specific risks valid for the different segments. 

No write-down requirement has been identified for goodwill. This is so even if a change in conditions 
happens as follows: 

Refining margin 20% lower, growth rate -1% and a discount rate at 2% higher for respective segment. 

Note 10.  Tangible fixed assets 

Land and buildings 

 2007 
Opening acquisition cost .................................................................................................................... 1,958 
Investments for the year ..................................................................................................................... 8 
Sales / disposals .................................................................................................................................. (23) 
Completion of constructions in progress ............................................................................................ 65 
Closing accumulated acquisition cost................................................................................................. 2,008 
  
Opening accumulated depreciation..................................................................................................... 1,007 
Sales / disposals .................................................................................................................................. (13) 
Depreciation for the year .................................................................................................................... 50 
Closing accumulated depreciation and write-downs .......................................................................... 1,044 
  
Book value.......................................................................................................................................... 964 
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Note 10.  Tangible fixed assets (Continued) 

Plant and machinery(1) 

 2007 
Opening acquisition cost .................................................................................................................... 14,600 
Investments for the year ..................................................................................................................... 45 
Sales / disposals .................................................................................................................................. (66) 
Completion of constructions in progress ............................................................................................ 571 
Closing accumulated acquisition cost................................................................................................. 15,150 
  
Opening accumulated depreciation..................................................................................................... 7,090 
Sales / disposals .................................................................................................................................. (52) 
Depreciation for the year .................................................................................................................... 496 
Closing accumulated depreciation ...................................................................................................... 7,534 
  
Book value.......................................................................................................................................... 7,616 
 
_____________________________ 
(1) In residual value according to plan platinum and palladium is included with SEK 137 million. 
 
 

Capitalized turn-around costs 

 2007 
Opening acquisition cost .................................................................................................................... 576 
Investments for the year ..................................................................................................................... 545 
Sales / disposals .................................................................................................................................. (404) 
Closing accumulated acquisition cost................................................................................................. 717 
  
Opening accumulated depreciation..................................................................................................... 416 
Depreciation for the year .................................................................................................................... 90 
Sales / disposals .................................................................................................................................. (404) 
Closing accumulated depreciation ...................................................................................................... 102 
  
Book value.......................................................................................................................................... 615 
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Note 10.  Tangible fixed assets (Continued) 

Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings 

 2007 
Opening acquisition cost ................................................................................................................... 1,345 
Investments for the year .................................................................................................................... 3 
Sales / disposals ................................................................................................................................. (136) 
Completion of constructions in progress ........................................................................................... 129 
Closing accumulated acquisition cost................................................................................................ 1,341 
  
Opening accumulated depreciation.................................................................................................... 858 
Sales / disposals ................................................................................................................................. (101) 
Depreciation for the year ................................................................................................................... 81 
Closing accumulated depreciation ..................................................................................................... 838 
  
Book value......................................................................................................................................... 503 
 
Constructions in progress 

 2007 
Opening acquisition cost .................................................................................................................. 505 
Investments for the year .................................................................................................................... 807 
Sales / disposals ................................................................................................................................. (1) 
Completion of constructions in progress ........................................................................................... (765) 
Closing accumulated acquisition value(1)........................................................................................... 546 
_____________________________ 
(1) Projecting expenditures is included with an amount of SEK 170 million. 
 
 
Tax assessment value 

 2007 
Buildings............................................................................................................................................ 871 
Land................................................................................................................................................... 488 
Plant and machinery .......................................................................................................................... 2,960 
 4,319 
Distribution of depreciation 

 2007 
Buildings and land improvements ..................................................................................................... 50 
Plant and machinery .......................................................................................................................... 496 
Capitalized turn-around costs ............................................................................................................ 90 
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings............................................................................................... 81 
Total................................................................................................................................................... 717 
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Note 10.  Tangible fixed assets (Continued) 

Distribution per function 

 2007 
Cost of goods sold .............................................................................................................................. 640 
Selling expenses ................................................................................................................................. 74 
Administrative expenses..................................................................................................................... 3 
 717 
Leasing fees attributable to operational leasing 

 2007 
Minimum leasing fees ........................................................................................................................ 95 
Contingent rents.................................................................................................................................. 2 
Total lease charges.............................................................................................................................. 97 
  
Agreed future minimum leasing fees  
Within one year ................................................................................................................................. 116 
Between one and five years ................................................................................................................ 488 
Later than five years ........................................................................................................................... 10 
  
Revenue from leasing attributable to operational leasing 

 2007 
Minimum leasing fees ........................................................................................................................ 59 
Contingent rents.................................................................................................................................. 0 
Total revenue from leasing ................................................................................................................. 59 
  
Agreed future minimum leasing fees  
Within one year ................................................................................................................................. 78 
Between one and five years ................................................................................................................ 381 
Later than five years ........................................................................................................................... 78 
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Note 11.  Participations in Group companies 

Directly owned subsidiaries 

 

Corporate 
Identity 
Number 

Registered 
offices 

Number of 
shares 

Owner- 
power 

% 

Nominal 
value in 

thousands

Carrying 
value in 

thousands
Corral Petroleum Holdings AB 

(publ) ......................................... 556477-1284 Stockholm 10,000,000 100 100,000 6,500,000 
       
Accumulated acquisition cost 
(TSEK) .............................................  2007     
At beginning of year .........................  —     
Acquisitions for the year...................  6,500,000     
  6,500,000     
       
Carrying amount at the end  

of the period.................................  6,500,000     
 
 
Indirectly owned subsidiaries 
 

 

Corporate 
Identity 
Number 

Registered 
offices 

Number of 
shares 

Owner- 
power 

% 

Nominal 
value in 

thousands

Carrying 
value in 

thousands
Swedish companies       
Operating       
Preem Petroleum AB (publ) ............. 556072-6977 Stockholm 610,258 100 610,258 3,556,501 
Preem Finans AB.............................. 556036-2476 Stockholm 150,000 100 15,000 198,211 
Preem Gas AB .................................. 556037-2970 Stockholm 1,750 70 1,750 6,348 
Svensk Petroleum Förvaltning AB ... 556067-8459 Stockholm 664 66 66 74 
Preem Technology AB ..................... 556117-6610 Lysekil 4,000 100 400 0 
Syrhåla Partnerships ......................... 969633-6743 Stockholm  100  0 
ODAB Svensk Oljedistribution 
AB .................................................... 556264-6835 Falun 2,000 100 200 240 
       
Dormant       
Swedish Petroleum AB..................... 556046-4819 Stockholm 1,000 100 100 100 
Såifa Drivmedel AB ......................... 556039-7001 Stockholm 5,000 100 500 599 
      3,762,073 
Foreign companies       
Preem Insurance Company Ltd., 

Ireland........................................  Dublin 7,500 100 SEK 7,500 3,018 
Preem Petroleum Wybrzeze Sp.z.o.o.,  

Poland   RHB 11623………………. Gdynia 3,000 100 PLN 3,000 0 
      3,018 
TOTAL.............................................      3,765,091 
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Note 12.  Participations in associates 

Company 

Corporate 
Identity 
Number 

Registered 
offices 

Number 
of shares 

Owner- 
power % 

Nominal 
value in 

thousands

Carrying 
value in 

thousands
       
AB Djurgårdsberg.......................... 556077-3714 Stockholm 366 37 37 18 
Göteborgs Smörjmedelsfabrik      

(Scanlube) AB ........................ 556287-6481 Gothenburg 50,000 50 5,000 5,000 
      
TOTAL..........................................     5,018 
 

 Assets Liabilities Sales 
Profit, 

net 
AB Djurgårdsberg........................................................................... 1 1 4 0 
Göteborgs Smörjmedelsfabrik (Scanlube) AB ............................... 168 158 413 0 
     
 
 December 31, 2007 
Opening balance....................................................................................................................  5 
Share in profits ......................................................................................................................  0 
Closing balance .....................................................................................................................  5 
 
Note 13.  Receivables from related parties(*) 

 December 31, 2007 
Value at beginning of year........................................................................................................ 3,136 
Change for the year................................................................................................................... — 
Value at year-end...................................................................................................................... 3,136 
 

_____________________________ 
(*) Refers to the interest-bearing receivable from the related company Corral Morocco Gas & Oil AB. 
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Note 14.  Available-for-sale financial assets 
 

Company 

Corporate 
Identity 
Number 

Registered 
offices 

Number of 
shares 

Owner- 
power % 

Nominal 
value in 

thousands

Carrying 
value in 

thousands
       
NGI Naturgasinvest AB.................... 556387-9260 Stockholm 1,667 17 167 198 
SPIMFAB—SPI  

Miljösaneringsfond AB ............... 556539-4888 Stockholm 1 1 2 2 
Släckmedelscentralen - SMC AB ..... 556488-8583 Stockholm 259 26 52 52 
BasEl i Sverige AB........................... 556672-5858 Stockholm 50 5 5 305 
VindIn A(*)........................................ 556713-5172 Stockholm 100 10 10 810 
Götene E..D..f. Elföreningen,  

ek förening...................................      10 
SSH Svensk Servicehandel...............      1 
Bostadsrättsföreningen Ekerum........      945 
Bostadsrättsföreningen Solhyllan .....      425 
       
TOTAL ............................................      2,748 
 

_____________________________ 

(*) In accordance with a shareholder agreement there exists an investment commitment for total SEK 1 
million in the form of shareholders’ contribution. 

 December 31, 2007 
Carrying amount at beginning of year ........................................................................................ 1,848 
Shareholders’ contribution.......................................................................................................... 900 
Carrying amount at year-end ...................................................................................................... 2,748 
 
Note 15.  Inventories 

 December 31, 2007 
Raw materials ............................................................................................................................ 3,765 
Finished goods............................................................................................................................ 4,414 
Total............................................................................................................................................ 8,179 
 

The stock acquisition value in the group includes corresponding SEK 0 million attributable to lent 
stock volumes. Borrowed stock volumes equivalent to a total stock value at SEK 436 million is not included in 
the stock value. No write-down for the stock has been done in 2007. 
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Note 16.  Accounts receivable and loans to related parties 

 December 31, 2007 
Accounts receivable—trade ..................................................................................................... 4,977 
Provision for impairment of trade receivables.......................................................................... (32) 
Total.......................................................................................................................................... 4,945 
  
Loans to related parties (see note 13) ....................................................................................... 3,136 
 

The total amount of loans to related parties SEK 3,136 million with a market based fixed lending rate 
of 5%. 

The fair value on accounts receivable and other receivables is as follows: 

  December 31, 2007 
Accounts receivable–trade........................................................................................................ 4,945 
Loans to related parties............................................................................................................. 3,136 
Total.......................................................................................................................................... 8,081 
 

At December 31, 2007 adequate accounts receivable amounted to SEK 4,945 million. 

Normally, no write-down requirement is considered to exist for accounts receivable that fell due within 
the last three months. At December 31, 2007 accounts receivable without any write-down requirement 
amounted to SEK 137 million. These apply to a number of independent customers who have no earlier financial 
difficulties. The age analysis of these accounts receivable appears below: 

  December 31, 2007 
Less than 10 days...................................................................................................................... 107 
Between 10 and 20 days ........................................................................................................... 14 
Between 21 and 30 days ........................................................................................................... 7 
More than 30 days .................................................................................................................... 9 
Total.......................................................................................................................................... 137 
 

The reserve for doubtful debts amounted to TSEK 32 at December 31, 2007. The individually assessed 
receivables with existing write-down requirement amount to SEK 20 million whereof SEK 16 million has been 
booked as provision for impairment of trade receivables. Assessment has been made that a part of the 
receivables can be recovered. 

Accounted amounts at currency for the group’s accounts receivable and borrowings to related parties 

  December 31, 2007 
SEK .......................................................................................................................................... 6,140 
USD.......................................................................................................................................... 1,850 
EUR.......................................................................................................................................... 90 
Other currencies........................................................................................................................ 1 
Total.......................................................................................................................................... 8,081 
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Note 16.  Accounts receivable and loans to related parties (Continued) 

Changes in the reserve for doubtful debts is as follows: 

  December 31, 2007 
Opening balance 2007 .............................................................................................................. 22 
Provision of the year for doubtful receivables.......................................................................... 27 
Losses realized.......................................................................................................................... (2) 
Retransfered unutilized amounts .............................................................................................. (15) 
Closing balance 2007................................................................................................................ 32 
 

Provisions to respective cancellations of reserves for doubtful debts is included in the functions they 
are attributable to in the income statement. Amounts accounted for in the provision for depreciation are 
normally written off when the Group is not expected to recover further cash and cash equivalents. 

In other categories within accounts receivables—trade and other receivables, no assets for which write-
down requirement exists are included. 

The maximum credit risk per balance sheet date is fair value for each category of receivables 
mentioned above. 

Note 17.  Derivative instruments 

  2007 
 Assets Liabilities 
Interest swaps ...................................................................................................... — 29 
Oil derivatives ...................................................................................................... 36 62 
      
Total ..................................................................................................................... 36 91 
of which long-term part:   
Oil derivatives ...................................................................................................... — — 
Interest swaps ....................................................................................................... — 29 
     
Short-term part................................................................................................... — 62 
 

Derivative instruments held for trade are classified as current assets or current liabilities. The entire fair 
value of a derivative instrument is classified as fixed asset or long-term liability if the item’s remaining duration 
is longer than 12 months, and as current asset or short-term liability if the item’s remaining duration is less than 
12 months. 

The maximum credit risk per balance sheet date is fair value of the derivative instruments reported as 
assets in the balance sheet. 

Interest swaps 

The nominal amount for outstanding interest swap agreements amounted to SEK 3,958 million as per 
December 31, 2007. 

As per December 31, 2007 the fixed rates are varying between 6.4% and 6.75%. The most important 
varying interest rates are EURIBOR and LIBOR. 
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Note 17.  Derivative instruments (Continued) 

Gains and losses on interest swaps as per December 31, 2007 are reported in the income statement 
continuously. 

Oil derivatives 

The nominal price for the oil derivatives contract amounted to net sell SEK 151 million. The total 
nominal amount for all outstanding oil derivative contracts amount to SEK 8,913 million as per December 31, 
2007. The contracts are being held mainly in order to secure price changes on petroleum products. 

Note 18.  Provision for pensions 

Group 

Defined benefit liabilities and the value of the investment assets 

 2007 
Entirely or partly funded liabilities:  
Present value of defined benefit liabilities .......................................................................................... 740 
Fair value of plans assets ..................................................................................................................... (677) 
Net, entirely or partly, funded liabilities.............................................................................................. 63 
Unfunded liabilities/commitments:  
Present value of unfunded defined benefit liabilities........................................................................... 125 
Net liabilities, in total, before adjustments .......................................................................................... 188 

  
Adjustments:  
Accumulated unreported actuarial losses ........................................................................................... (28) 
Past service cost................................................................................................................................... - 
Net price in the balance sheet (liability+, asset - ).............................................................................. 160 
 
The net amount is report under the following items in the balance sheet: 
Pension commitments.......................................................................................................................... 160 
  
The net amount is divided among the following countries:  
Sweden ................................................................................................................................................ 160 
  
Pension costs 

 
The prices reported in the income statement are as follows:  
 2007 
Defined benefit plans  
Costs for pensions earned during the year ........................................................................................... 18 
Interest expenses.................................................................................................................................. 33 
Expected revenue from investment assets ........................................................................................... (43) 
Identification of new pension commitments ....................................................................................... 1 
Total cost defined benefit plans ........................................................................................................... 9 
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Note 18.  Provision for pensions (Continued) 

Change in the defined benefit liability during the year is as follows 
 

 2007 
Gross price in the balance sheet at the beginning of the year .............................................................. 822 
Cost defined benefit plans ................................................................................................................... 18 
Payment of remuneration..................................................................................................................... (31) 
New pension plans............................................................................................................................... 16 
Interest expenses.................................................................................................................................. 33 
Actuarial losses.................................................................................................................................... 7 
Gross amount in the balance sheet at year-end.................................................................................... 865 

   
 
 
Change in Fair value on investment assets during the year is as follows 

 
 2007 
Gross amount in the balance sheet at the beginning of the year .......................................................... 634 
Payments of remuneration ................................................................................................................... (21) 
Payments of charges from the company ............................................................................................. 27 
New pension plans............................................................................................................................... 15 
Expected return on plan assets............................................................................................................. 42 
Actuarial gains/losses ......................................................................................................................... (20) 
Gross amount in the balance sheet at year-end.................................................................................... 677 

  
Actual return from investment assets amounted to SEK 23 million.  

  
Accumulated actuarial gains or losses 

 
 2007 
Accumulated losses at the beginning of the year ................................................................................ 0 
Actuarial loss reported in the income statement ................................................................................. 0 
Actuarial loss on the liability............................................................................................................... (7) 
Actuarial loss (-) for the year on the investment assets ...................................................................... (20) 
Accumulated losses at year-end........................................................................................................... (27) 
  
Accumulated unreported losses at year-end ........................................................................................ (27) 
10%-corridor’s marginal value (of the liabilities’ present value) ........................................................ 87 
Surplus (expensed concurrently with remaining average period of service) .......................................  
 0 
Expected average remaining period of service ................................................................................... 14 years 
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Note 18.  Provision for pensions (Continued) 

Actuarial acceptances  

 2007 
Discount rate........................................................................................................................................ 4.5% 
Expected revenue from the investment assets ..................................................................................... 6.5% 
Future wage increases ......................................................................................................................... 3.0% 
Employee turnover .............................................................................................................................. 2.0% 
Inflation ............................................................................................................................................... 2.0% 
Expected average remaining period of service ................................................................................... 14 years 
 
Investment assets are comprised of the following:  
Interest-bearing Securities ................................................................................................................... 66% 
Shares .................................................................................................................................................. 24% 
Properties............................................................................................................................................. 10% 
Total..................................................................................................................................................... 100% 
 

The expected revenue from investment assets was fixed in consideration to expected revenue from the 
assets included in the actual investment policy. Expected revenue from investments with fixed interest rates is 
based on the received revenue if these securities are held until dilapidation. Expected revenue from shares and 
properties is based on the long-term revenue from each respective market. 

 2007 
Present value of defined benefit liability .............................................................................................. 865 
Fair value of investment assets ............................................................................................................. 677 
Deficit ................................................................................................................................................... 188 
Experience based adjustments of defined benefit liabilities ................................................................. (9) 
Experience based adjustments of investment assets ............................................................................. (20) 
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Note 19.  Deferred tax 

 
Deferred income 
taxes recoverable 

Deferred 
income tax 
liabilities 

December 31, 2007:   
Land and buildings .......................................................................................... 5 — 
Plant and equipment ........................................................................................ — (1,620) 
Other ................................................................................................................ 49 (34) 
Net assets/liabilities .........................................................................................  (1,600) 
 
Change in deferred tax, in temporary differences 

 
Amount at the 

beginning of the year 
Reported in 

Income statement 
Other 

Changes 
Amount at end 

of the year 
Group     
Land and buildings .................... 6 (1) — 5 
Plant and equipment .................. (1,712) 92 — (1,620) 
Other .......................................... 15 0 — 15 
 (1,691) 91 — (1,600) 
 
Note 20.  Other provisions 

 
Re-establishment 
of environment(1) Other Total 

Opening balance 2007 ...................................................... 148 7 155 
Provisions for the year ......................................................  7 7 
Reclassifications from other current liabilities .................   — 
Amounts accounted for .................................................... (7)  (7) 
Unused, retransferred amounts ........................................     — 
Closing balance 2007........................................................ 141 14 155 
 

_____________________________ 
(1) The Parent Company has via its subsidiary Preem Insurance Co Ltd, effected an insurance premium of SEK 148 million for 

known and planned decontamination. During 2007 SEK 7 million has been used of the reserve and SEK 141 million is 
remaining.  
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Note 21.  Long-term liabilities 

Other long-term interest-bearing liabilities December 31, 2007 
  
Borrowings in EUR ...................................................................................................................... 3,424 
Borrowings in SEK(1).................................................................................................................... 8,220 
Borrowings in USD(1) ................................................................................................................... 5,750 
Left: Repayments within 1 year.................................................................................................... (2,038) 
Total borrowings......................................................................................................................... 15,356 
Transaction costs .......................................................................................................................... (443) 
Total ............................................................................................................................................. 14,913 
 
 
Repayment plan 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013- Total 
       
Parent Company ....................................................  — 5,729 — — — 5,729 
Group companies...................................................  1,876 2,467 5,284 — — 9,627 
GROUP .................................................................  1,876 8,196 5,284 — — 15,356 
_____________________________ 
(1) Includes syndicated borrowings of SEK and USD containing clauses of requests on interest coverage ratio, %, debt equity ratio 

(net), % and investment limitations. The clauses refer to the consolidated balance sheet of the Corral Petroleum Holdings Group. 
 
 
Note 22.  Bank overdraft facility etc. 

 December 31, 2007 
Granted credit framework............................................................................................................. 255 
Unused part................................................................................................................................... 240 
Used credit amount ...................................................................................................................... 15 
  
Other unused frameworks   
Short-term credit framework ........................................................................................................ 1,931 
Medium-term credit framework ................................................................................................... 2,511 
Total.............................................................................................................................................. 4,442 
  
Unused frameworks in total 4,682 
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Note 23.  Loan conditions, effective interest rate (%) and expiration structure 

Long-term liabilities credit institutions 
Nominal value 
local currency 

Effective 
interest 

rate 
Less than 

1 year 1-5 years >5 years 
—EUR, variable interest rates........................ 361 10.09 — 3,424 — 
—USD, fixed interest rates ............................ 255 6.41 — 1,650 — 
—USD, variable interest rates........................ 634 8.91 162 3,938 — 
—SEK, fixed interest rates............................. 2,899 6.17 — 2,899 — 
—SEK, variable interest rates ........................ 5,321 6.78 1,876 3,445 — 
Current liabilities credit institutions      
—SEK, variable interest rates ........................ 800 5.19 800 — — 
  2,838 15,356 — 
Transaction costs ...........................................    (443)  
Total borrowing in accordance with the 

balance sheet.............................................  2,838 14,913  
 
Note 24.  Other liabilities 

 December 31, 2007 
Value-added tax............................................................................................................................. 584 
Selective taxes/excise duties.......................................................................................................... 642 
Other liabilities .............................................................................................................................. 141 
 1,367 
 
Note 25.  Accrued expenses and prepaid-income 

 December 31, 2007 
Purchases of petroleum and products ............................................................................................ 1,722 
Personnel ....................................................................................................................................... 250 
Interest ........................................................................................................................................... 400 
Other .............................................................................................................................................. 248 
 2,620 
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Note 26.  Pledged assets and contingent liabilities 

Pledged assets  December 31, 2007 
Shares in subsidiaries................................................................................................................. 6,850 
Deposits ..................................................................................................................................... 237 
 7,087 
Contingent liabilities  
Guarantee commitments in favour of associated companies ..................................................... 53 
Guarantee commitments, other .................................................................................................. 0 
Guarantee commitments FPG/PRI............................................................................................. 3 
 56 
 
Note 27.  Other contingent liabilities 

A future closing down of operations within the Corral Finans group can mean a demand for 
restructuring and restoration work. This is, however, estimated to be in the future and the expenses can not be 
calculated in a reliable way. 

Note 28.  Shareholders equity 

Share capital 

The share capital amount to SEK 500 000. Number of shares issued and outstanding is 5000 shares 
which in its entirely represents A-shares. The number of shares are the same in the beginning of the period and 
at the end. Quotient value amounts to SEK 100 per share. 

Other paid-in capital 

Other paid-in capital represents the amount received from the shareholders as an unconditional 
shareholders’ contribution in 2007. 

Translation difference 

Translation difference include all exchange rate differences resulting from translation of financial 
reports from foreign operations that have been prepared in a different currency than the Group’s reporting 
currency. 

Retained loss 

Retained loss includes the accumulated results of the Group’s operations. 

No dividend was paid during 2007. The Group’s loan conditions restrict dividends to shareholders. 
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Note 29.  Adjustment for items not included in the Group’s cash flow 

 2007 
Interest received and paid  
Interest received................................................................................................................................  38 
Interest paid ......................................................................................................................................  (1,037) 
  
Adjustment for items not included in the cash flow, etc  
Amortisation/depreciation and write-downs of fixed assets .............................................................  717 
Unrealised exchange rate gains ........................................................................................................  (317) 
Unrealised losses+/earnings- from oil and interest swaps ................................................................  (22) 
Interest not received..........................................................................................................................  (118) 
Capitalized interest cost....................................................................................................................  151 
Expensed part of capitalized borrowing costs ..................................................................................  113 
Provisions .........................................................................................................................................  (21) 
Capital gains from sales of non-current assets..................................................................................  28 
Other .................................................................................................................................................  3 
 534 
Cash and cash equivalents  
The following sub-components are included in cash and cash equivalents  
Cash and bank balances....................................................................................................................  835 
 835 
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Note 30.  Acquisition of subsidiaries 

The acquisition is reported at historical cost used in the acquired Group. 

Assets 2007 
Goodwill ........................................................................................................................................... 308 
Tangible assets.................................................................................................................................. 9,613 
Financial assets ................................................................................................................................. 3,169 
Inventories ........................................................................................................................................ 7,991 
Current receivables ........................................................................................................................... 4,316 
Total ................................................................................................................................................. 25,397 
  
Liabilities  
Borrowing......................................................................................................................................... 11,634 
Provisions ......................................................................................................................................... 2,146 
Current liabilities .............................................................................................................................. 9,845 
Total ................................................................................................................................................. 23,625 
  
Purchase consideration paid ............................................................................................................. (6,500) 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the acquired operation .............................................................. 307 
Shareholders contribution received .................................................................................................. 1,407 
Effect on cash and cash equivalents .............................................................................................. (4,786) 
  
Sub total........................................................................................................................................... (3,014) 
Shareholders’ contribution received ................................................................................................. (1,407) 
  
Acquired Group book value............................................................................................................. (4,421) 
 
 

Note 31.  Cash and cash equivalents 

In cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow analysis the following is included with 
expiry date shorter than three months after acquisition. 

 December 31, 2007 
Cash and bank balances.............................................................................................................. 835 
 835 
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Note 32.  Number of employees 

 2007 

Average number of employees 
Number of 
employees 

Percentage of 
men 

   
Parent Company   
Sweden ........................................................................................................... 0 0% 
   
Group companies   
Sweden ........................................................................................................... 1,114 74% 
Poland............................................................................................................. — — 
Ireland............................................................................................................. — — 
   
Group total...................................................................................................... 1,114 74% 
 
Note 33.  Number of men and women in company management 

 2007 

Parent Company 
Percentage of 

women 
The Board of Directors ..................................................................................................................... 0% 
Other senior management ................................................................................................................. 0% 
  
Group total  
The Board of Directors ..................................................................................................................... 0% 
Other senior management ................................................................................................................. 22% 
 
Note 34.  Salaries and social security contributions 

 2007 

 

Salaries and Other 
compensations 

ningar 

Social security 
costs (of which 
pension costs) 

   
Parent Company.............................................................................  0 0 
  (0)* 
Group companies............................................................................  483 245 
   (69)** 
Group total......................................................................................  483 245 
  (69) 
_____________________________ 
(*) Of the Parent Company’s pension costs SEK 0.0 million applies to the Group’s Board of Directors and Managing Director. 

(**)  Of the Group’s pension costs, SEK 1.9 million applies to the Board of Directors and Managing Director. 
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Note 35.  Salaries and other remunerations divided per region and between Board of Directors/Managing 
Director and other employees 

 2007 

 

Board and 
Managing 

Director (of which 
bonuses) 

Other 
employees 

Parent Company .............................................................................................. 0.0 0.0 
 (0.0)  
Group companies in Sweden ........................................................................... 4 479 
 (0.0)  
Group companies abroad ................................................................................. — — 
Total in Group companies ............................................................................... 4 479 
Group total....................................................................................................... 4.0 479.0 
 (0.0)  
 
Note 36.  Information regarding the benefits of the management officials 

Senior management 

Management officials refer to, partly the highest management and partly other senior management. The 
group of the highest management includes Chairman of the Board, other Members of the Board that collect 
remuneration from the company above the usual remuneration to Board of Directors and that are not employees 
of the Company, and Managing Director, the Chief Executive Officer. The group of other senior management 
includes six white-collar employees from the Group management of the Parent Company together with 
Managing Director, of which all are employees of the Parent Company. 

Preparation and decision process in the establishment of the remuneration to senior management 

The remuneration conditions for Managing Director and the principles for wage remuneration for the 
employees of the Group’s management prepared in a remuneration committee which is appointed by the Board 
of Directors and consists of the Board of Directors vice Chairman and three other Members of the Board. The 
committee’s proposal is established by the Board of Directors. The yearly salary revision for the Managing 
Director as well as for other persons in the group executive board is decided by the remuneration committee. 
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Note 36.  Information regarding the benefits of the management officials (Continued) 

Remuneration to senior management 

To Chairman of the Board and board members’ fees are paid in accordance with shareholders’ general 
meeting’s decision. Any special fee is not paid to Committee work.  

Remuneration to the Managing Director and other senior management constitutes basic salary, variable 
remuneration, other benefits and pension.  

Distribution between basic salary and variable remuneration shall be in proportion to the officer’s 
responsibility and authority. For Managing Director the flexible remuneration is maximised to 30% of the basic 
salary. For other senior management the variable remuneration amounts to a predetermined maximised percent 
of the basic salary. Managing Director and other senior management has the right to variable remuneration in 
the form of a defined pension insurance. In these cases the company, according to contracts, also provide with 
an additional amount corresponding to the variable remuneration multiplied by 1.15. The remuneration 
committee establishes on a yearly basis the conditions for the variable remuneration. 

Pension benefits and other benefits to Managing Director and other senior management is paid as a part 
of the total remuneration. Other benefits are paid, mainly, as service cars. 

 

Remuneration and benefits 
during the year 

Basic salary / 
Remuneration 
to the Board 
of Directors 

Variable 
remuneration 

Other 
benefits 

Pension 
costs 

Other 
remuneration Total 

Chairman of the Board ................... 0.5 — — — — 0.5 
Other members of the Board (1) ....... 2.0 — — — — 2.0 
Managing Director.......................... 2.4 0.7 0.1 1.4 0.0 4.6 
Other senior management  

(6 persons) ............................... 6.6 1.3 0.5 3.5 0.0 11.9 
 11.5 2.0 0.6 4.9 0.0 19.0 
      
(1) remuneration PER Board member (i) TSEK)      
Bassam Aburdene ........................... 200      
Ghazi Habib.................................... 200      
PER Höjgård................................... 33      
Karim Karaman .............................. 200      
Lars Nelson..................................... 200      
John P. Oswald ............................... 200      
Lennart Sundén............................... 200      
Sven-Erik Zachrisson ..................... 250      
Carl-Johan Åberg............................ 250      
Richard Öhman............................... 200      
Employee representatives ............... 67      
Total................................................ 2,000      
 

The amounts in the table above is based on a full-year period (12 months) and not nine months which is 
the reported period for this annual report. 
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Note 36.  Information regarding the benefits of the management officials (Continued) 

Pensions 

The Managing Director has the right to retire at the age of 60. He may be obligated to retire at the age 
of 60 if required by the company.  

The pension is defined. Pension premiums amount to 45 percent of pensionable salary according to 
age. At death, the pensionable salary is paid to the deceased’s partner or spouse. With pensionable salaries refer 
to basic salary as well as an average of the three previous years variable remuneration for other senior 
management a general pension plan is in effect, as well as in previous cases of individual solutions. 

All pension benefits are untouchable, in other words, not conditioned of future employment.  

Severance pay  

Between the Company and Managing Director a term of notice of 24 months and 6 months respectively 
is in affect up to 60 years age. At termination from the company’s side, a maximum of 24 months is paid. At 
termination from the managing directors side the corresponding conditions of 6 monthly salaries is in effect. 
Severance pay is settled against other incomes from a new employment during the notice period. At termination 
from each party after 60 years or age there is not paid any remuneration. 

Between the Company and other senior management the term of notice varies from 6 months to a 
maximum of 24 months. Upon termination on the company’s initiative, agreements provide for a non-working 
paid notice period amounting to a maximum of 24 months. In case of resignation by senior management no 
severance pay is paid. Severance pay is settled against other income from new employment during the notice 
period. 

 
Note 37.  Fees to auditors 

 
 2007 
KPMG  
audit assignment ....................................................................................................................  2.7 
other assignments ..................................................................................................................  0.9 
  
SET  
audit assignment ....................................................................................................................  0.2 
other assignments ..................................................................................................................  0.0 
  
 

“Audit assignments” refers to audit of the annual report and book-keeping records as well as review of 
the administration by the CEO and Board of Directors, other tasks that are the responsibility of the Company’s 
auditors, and other advice or assistance brought about by observations from such audits and or performance of 
other tasks. All other works is “other assignments”. 
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Note 38.  Financial instruments per category 

 

 

Loans- and 
Accounts 

receivable—trade 

Assets valued at 
Fair value via the 
income statement 

Available 
for Sale 

Reported 
value 

Fair 
value 

      
Assets in the balance sheet      
Available-for-sale financial assets ..  — — 3 3 3 
Derivative instruments ...................   36  36 36 
Loans to related parties...................  3,136 — — 3,136 3,136 
Accounts receivable - trade and 

other receivables......................  5,565 — — 5,565 5,565 
Cash and cash equivalents ..............  835 — — 835 835 
Total................................................  9,536 36 3 9,575 9,575 
      
 

 

Liabilities valued 
at Fair value via 

the income 
statement 

Other 
financial 
liabilities 

Reported 
value 

Fair 
value 

Liabilities in the balance sheet     
Borrowing.......................................  — 17,766 17,766 17,312 
Derivative instruments ...................  91 — 91 91 
Other liabilities ...............................  — 9,256 9,256 9,256 
Total................................................  91 27,022 27,113 26,659 
 
Note 39.  Transactions with related companies 

Preem Petroleum AB has an agreement with Capital Trust Management Ltd. regarding purchase of 
financial services. Capital Trust Management Ltd. is owned in part by the members of the Board, John Oswald 
and Bassam Aburdene. During the year payments have been made to an amount of SEK 17 million. To some 
extent, the companies within the Midroc group in Scandinavia performed construction and repair work on the 
Group’s two refineries in accordance with the market. During the year payments have been made to an amount 
of SEK 329 million. 

During the year sales of petroleum products to Société Anonyme Marocaine de l’Industrie du Raffinage 
(Samir) at Market price, to a total amount of SEK 4 million. The company is a public majority owned subsidiary 
to Corral Morocco Holdings AB with operations in Morocco. Corral Morocco Holdings AB is wholly owned by 
Corral Morocco Gas & Oil AB which, in turn, is owned wholly by Moroncha Holdings Co. Limited (Cyprus). 

Corral Petroleum Holdings AB sold its subsidiary Corral Morocco Holdings AB to Corral Gas & Oil 
AB on February 6, 2007. The price amounted to SEK 3,136 million corresponding to Corral Petroleum Holdings 
book value. The purchase was financed by an interest-bearing promissory note in the same amount. 

Preem Petroleum AB has a contract with Petroleum Exploration AB regarding Sales of administrative 
sales. Sales amounted to SEK 1 million. 
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Note 40.  Events after balance sheet date 

No significant events have occurred from the balance sheet date to the time of the establishment of the 
annual report. 

The Group’s profit and balance sheet will be submitted for establishment at the annual general meeting 
on April 29, 2008. 
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         The Board of Directors and shareholders, 
 
Corral Petroleum Holdings AB (publ) 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Corral Petroleum Holdings AB (publ) and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income  
and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2007 and the related 
consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for each of the years in the two-year period ended 
December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statement based on our 
audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain high but not absolute assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Corral Petroleum Holdings AB (publ) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2007, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 
2007 and the related consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for each of the years in the two-
year period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in Sweden. 

Stockholm, Sweden  
April 29, 2008  
 

KPMG Bohlins AB  

 
 

Cronie Wallquist 
Authorized Public Accountant 

 
 

 



Corral Petroleum Holdings AB (publ) 

Consolidated Income Statements 

(Amounts in MSEK) 

 F-54 

 
 Year ended December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Revenues...........................................................................................................  71,652 77,187 
Excise duties (note 3) .......................................................................................  (7,738) (8,024) 
Sales revenue (note 1) .....................................................................................  63,914 69,163 
Cost of sold goods ............................................................................................  (59,402) (65,842) 
Gross profit (notes 2 and 4)............................................................................  4,512 3,321 
Selling expenses (note 4) ..................................................................................  (677) (714) 
Administrative expense (note 4) .......................................................................  (512) (554) 
Net profit of associated companies (note 12) ...................................................  — — 
Other operating income (note 5).......................................................................  386 403 
Other operating expense (note 5)......................................................................  — (839) 
Operating income (notes 1, 4, 21 and 22)......................................................  3,709 1,617 
Financial income (note 7) .................................................................................  185 174 
Financial expenses (note 7) ..............................................................................  (780) (831) 
Income before taxes ........................................................................................  3,114 960 
Income taxes (note 8) .......................................................................................  (911) (551) 
Minority interests..............................................................................................  (2) (43) 
Net Income ......................................................................................................  2,201 366 
Earnings per share (in SEK) .............................................................................  220 37 
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 As of December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Assets   
Fixed assets   
Intangible fixed assets (note 9)   
Goodwill ......................................................................................................... 176 308 
 176 308 
Tangible fixed assets (note 10)   
Land and buildings ......................................................................................... 964 952 
Plant and machinery ....................................................................................... 7,494 7,521 
Capitalized turnaround costs........................................................................... 615 124 
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings............................................................ 503 511 
Construction in progress................................................................................. 546 468 
 10,122 9,576 
Financial fixed assets   
Participations in associated companies (note 12) ........................................... 5 5 
Receivables from associated companies......................................................... 0 0 
Loans to related parties (note 12) ................................................................... 3,136 3,136 
Other securities held as fixed assets .............................................................. 3 2 
Other long-term receivables (note 12) ............................................................ 349 424 
 3,493 3,567 
   

Total fixed assets ............................................................................................ 13,791 13,451 
   

Current assets   
Inventories   
Raw materials and consumables ..................................................................... 3,765 3,058 
Finished products............................................................................................ 4,414 3,573 
 8,179 6,631 
Receivables   
Accounts receivable........................................................................................ 4,945 3,501 
Receivables from associated companies......................................................... 0 0 
Receivables from related parties .................................................................... — 0 
Receivables from group companies................................................................ 2 — 
Other receivables ............................................................................................ 460 516 
Prepaid expenses and accrued income............................................................ 394 348 
 5,801 4,365 
Short-term investments ................................................................................... — 843 
Cash and bank balances ................................................................................. 591 442 
Total current assets ......................................................................................... 14,571 12,281 
Total Assets ................................................................................................... 28,362 25,732 
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 As of December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Shareholders’ equity   
Share capital ................................................................................................... 100 100 
Restricted reserves.......................................................................................... 218 1,009 
Profit brought forward .................................................................................... 1,580 423 
Net income...................................................................................................... 2,201 366 
Total shareholders’ equity .............................................................................. 4,099 1,898 
Minority interest ........................................................................................... 9 8 
Provisions   
Provision for pensions (note 13)..................................................................... 41 66 
Provision for deferred taxes (note 13) ............................................................ 1,607 1,714 
Other provisions ............................................................................................. 148 155 
 1,796 1,935 
Liabilities   
Long-term liabilities   
Liabilities to credit institutions (notes 14, 16 and 17)..................................... 9,267 12,546 
Bank overdraft facilities (note 15) .................................................................. 15 0 
 9,642 12,546 
Current liabilities   
Liabilities to credit institutions (note 16 and 17) ............................................ 2,838 664 
Advance payments from customers................................................................ 4 118 
Accounts payable ........................................................................................... 5,268 3,461 
Liabilities to associated companies................................................................. 1 3 
Income tax payable......................................................................................... 785 662 
Other liabilities (note 18)................................................................................ 1,367 1,543 
Accrued expenses and deferred income (note 19) .......................................... 2,553 2,894 
 12,816 9,345 
Total shareholders’ equity, provisions and liabilities  28,362 25,732 

Pledged assets and contingent liabilities   
Pledged assets (note 17)   
Shares in subsidiaries (Net value in the Group).............................................. 6,850 5,881 
Endowment insurance..................................................................................... — 1 
Deposits .......................................................................................................... 16 142 
 6,866 6,024 
Contingent liabilities   
Sureties on behalf of associated companies.................................................... 53 53 
Sureties, other ................................................................................................. 0 1 
Other contingent liabilities (note 20) .............................................................. 3 3 
 56 57 
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 Share capital 
Restricted 
reserves 

Profit 
b/f 

Total  
Equity 

Equity December 31, 2005 ...................... 100 20 3,711 3,831 
Dividend ..................................................   (2,300)  
Equity effect of merger............................  989 (989)  
Net income...............................................   366  
Equity December 31, 2006 ...................... 100 1,009 789 1,898 
Translation difference..............................  0 0  
Equity effect of merger............................  (792) 792  
Net income...............................................   2,201  
Equity December 31, 2007 ...................... 100 217 3,782 4,099 
 
Restricted reserves 

Restricted reserves are made up of statutory restricted reserves and the share of equity of untaxed 
reserves. 

Profit brought forward 

The Group’s profit brought forward consists of the Parent Company’s non-restricted equity with the 
addition of the Group’s share in subsidiaries’ non-restricted equity, to the extent that it can be distributed 
without the Parent Company requiring to impair its participation in the subsidiary. 

From this value, a deduction has been made for the effect on equity of the eliminated intra-Group profit 
and any difference in accounting policies. 

The agreement with credit institutions contains requirements for interest coverage, net debt-equity ratio 
and investment limits, restrictions for dividends and requirements for size of shareholders’ equity. 

According to the agreement, Corral Petroleum Holdings must ensure that the value of equity of the 
Group does not fall below (i) SEK 2,000 million at anytime before January 1, 2008, or (ii) SEK 3,000 million at 
any time on or after January 1, 2008. 

 

Specification of exchange rate difference in equity for the year: As of December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Exchange rate difference for the year in foreign subsidiaries......................... 0 0 
Total exchange rate difference for the period ................................................. 0 0 

Specification of accumulated exchange rate difference in equity:   
Accumulated exchange rate difference at beginning of year .......................... 0 23 
Exchange rate difference for the year in foreign subsidiaries......................... 0 0 
Realization of accumulated exchange rate differences for the year on  

 sale of foreign subsidiaries..................................................................... 0 (23) 
Total exchange rate differences for the period ............................................... 0 (23) 

Accumulated exchange rate difference at end of year .................................... 0 0 
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 Year ended December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Operating activities   
Income after financial items ........................................................................... 3,114 960 
Adjustment for non-cash items....................................................................... 523 1,797 
 3,637 2,757 
Income taxes paid ........................................................................................... (895) (14) 
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital ......... 2,742 2,743 
Cash flow from changes in working capital ...................................................   
Increase/decrease in inventories ..................................................................... (1,187) 1,884 
Increase/decrease in operating receivables ..................................................... (1,469) (194) 
Increase/decrease in operating liabilities ........................................................ 1,267 4 
Cash flow from operating activities ............................................................ 1,353 4,437 
   
Investing activities ..........................................................................................   
Disposal of subsidiaries .................................................................................. — (594) 
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets ................................................................ (1,562) (831) 
Sale of tangible fixed assets............................................................................ 35 31 
Increase/decrease in financial receivables ...................................................... 0 (322) 
Cash flow from investing activities.............................................................. (1,527) (1,716) 
   
Financing activities ........................................................................................   
Loans raised.................................................................................................... 1,885 16,362 
Amortization of debt....................................................................................... (2,405) (16,838) 
Loan to Parent Company ................................................................................ — (2,301) 
Cash flow from financing activities ............................................................. (520) (2,777) 

Cash flow for the year .................................................................................. (694) (56) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ............................................. 1,285 1,341 
Exchange rate difference in cash and cash equivalents .................................. — 0 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ....................................................... 591 1,285 
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 Year ended December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Supplementary disclosures to the cash flow statements:   
   
Interest paid and dividends received   
Interest received.............................................................................................. 28 52 
Interest paid .................................................................................................... (861) (1,109) 
   

Adjustments for non-cash items   
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets.................................................. 1,080 1,102 
Reversed impairment/Impairment of inventories ........................................... (361) 361 
Unrealized exchange rate difference............................................................... (200) (299) 
Unrealized losses/gains of oil swaps .............................................................. 55 (29) 
Expensed portion of capitalized loan expense ................................................ 91 157 
Capital gain on sale of fixed assets................................................................. 33 4 
Capital gain on sale of subsidiary ................................................................... — 663 
Interest not paid .............................................................................................. — 35 
Interest not received........................................................................................ (157) (142) 
Provisions ....................................................................................................... (21) (55) 
Other ............................................................................................................... 3 — 
 523 1,797 
   

Disposal of subsidiaries(*)   
Intangible fixed assets .................................................................................... — 1,069 
Tangible fixed assets ...................................................................................... — 1,867 
Financial fixed assets...................................................................................... — 259 
Inventories ...................................................................................................... — 3,576 
Operating receivables ..................................................................................... — 5,146 
Cash and cash equivalents .............................................................................. — 594 
Total assets ..................................................................................................... — 12,511 
   
Minority interest ............................................................................................. — (1,553) 
Provisions ....................................................................................................... — (401) 
Loans .............................................................................................................. — (2,709) 
Operating liabilities ........................................................................................ — (3,877) 
Total provisions and liabilities........................................................................ — (8,540) 
   
Selling price.................................................................................................... — 3,136 
Deduct: Vendor’s bonds ................................................................................. — (3,136) 
Purchase price received .................................................................................. — 0 
Deduct: Cash and cash equivalents in the operations disposed of .................. — (594) 
Impact on cash and cash equivalents .............................................................. — (594) 
   

Cash and cash equivalents   
The following subcomponents are included in cash and cash equivalents   
Cash and bank balances.................................................................................. 591 442 
Short-term investments................................................................................... — 843 
________ 591 1,285 
(*)  Refers to the disposal of Corral Morocco Holdings AB in 2006. 
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 Year ended December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Revenues.......................................................................................................... — — 
Gross profit or loss ........................................................................................ — — 
   
Administrative expenses.................................................................................. (3) (7) 
Operating income (notes 4, 21 and 22)......................................................... (3) (7) 
   
Net profit of associated companies (note 6) .................................................... 70 — 
Financial income (note 7) ................................................................................ 157 144 
Financial expense (note 7) ............................................................................... (454) (373) 
Income before taxes ....................................................................................... (230) (236) 
   
Income taxes (note 8) ...................................................................................... 83 62 
Net income ...................................................................................................... (147) (174) 
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 As of December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Assets   
Fixed assets   
   
Tangible fixed assets (note 10)   
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings..........................................................  0 0 
 0 0 
   
Financial fixed assets   
Participations in group companies (note 11) ................................................  3,557 4,557 
Receivables from related parties (note 12) ...................................................  3,136 3,136 
Other long-term receivables (note 12) ..........................................................  134 176 
 6,827 7,869 
   
Total fixed assets ..........................................................................................  6,827 7,869 
   
Current assets   
   
Receivables   
Receivables from group companies..............................................................  2 213 
Other receivables ..........................................................................................  2 1 
Prepaid expenses and accrued income..........................................................  0 0 
 4 214 
   
Cash and bank balances ...............................................................................  6 11 
   
Total current assets .......................................................................................  10 225 
   
   
Total Assets .................................................................................................  6,837 8,094 
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 As of December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Shareholders’ equity, provisions and liabilities   
Shareholders’ equity    
Restricted equity   
Share capital ................................................................................................... 100 100 
Statutory reserve............................................................................................. 20 20 
 120 120 
Non-restricted equity    
Profit brought forward .................................................................................... 832 628 
Net income...................................................................................................... (147) (174) 
 685 454 
   
Total shareholders’ equity .............................................................................. 805 574 
   
Liabilities   
Long-term liabilities   
Liabilities to credit institutions (note 14 and 17) ............................................ 4,109 6,540 
 4,109 6,540 
Current liabilities   
Liabilities to credit institutions (note 14 and 17) ............................................ 1,576 — 
Liabilities to group companies........................................................................ 8 0 
Accounts payable............................................................................................ 0 0 
Income tax payable......................................................................................... 65 535 
Other liabilities (note 18)................................................................................ 0 14 
Accrued expenses and deferred income (note 19) .......................................... 274 431 
 1,923 980 
   
Total shareholders’ equity, provisions and liabilities ................................ 6,837 8,094 
   
Pledged assets and contingent liabilities   
Pledged assets (note 17)   
Shares in subsidiaries ..................................................................................... 3,557 4,557 
 3,557 4,557 
Contingent liabilities   
Sureties on behalf of group companies........................................................... 4,933 7,830 
 4,933 7,830 
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Capital 
stock 

Restricted 
reserves Profit b/f 

Total 
Equity 

     
Equity December 31, 2005 .............................................. 100 20 2,455 2,575 
     
Group contribution ..........................................................   225  
Tax effect of group contribution......................................   (63)  
Equity effect of merger....................................................   311  
Dividend ..........................................................................   (2,300)  
Net income.......................................................................   (174)  
     
     
Equity December 31, 2006 .............................................. 100 20 454 574 
     
Group contribution ..........................................................   525  
Tax effect of group contribution......................................   (147)  
Net income.......................................................................   (147)  
     
Equity December 31, 2007 .............................................. 100 20 685 805 
 
Restricted reserves 

Statutory reserve constitutes restricted equity and is reserved in accordance with the previous 
applicable Companies Act (1975:1385). 

Profit brought forward 

Non-restricted equity constitutes the previous year’s non-restricted equity with a supplement for the net 
income, received unconditional shareholders’ contribution as well as received and paid group contribution. 

Number of shares and quota value 

The number of issued shares amounts to 10,000,000 and entirely refers to class A of shares. The shares 
are fully paid, and the number of shares is the same at the end of the year as at the beginning. The quota value 
amounts to 10 SEK/share. 

For the annual general meeting the board proposes that the standing earnings are to be brought forward. 

The agreements with credit institutions contain requirements on dividend restrictions. 

Merger 

During 2006 Corral Investment AB merged with Corral Petroleum Holdings AB and resulted in a 
positive equity effect of merger of SEK 311 million. 
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 Year ended December 31, 
 2007 2006 
Operating activities   
Income after financial items ........................................................................... (230) (236) 
Adjustment for non-cash items....................................................................... (117) (107) 
Income taxes paid ........................................................................................... (534) — 
   
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in   
 working capital ........................................................................................ (881) (343) 
   
Cash flow from changes in working capital   
Decrease (Increase) in operating receivables.................................................. (1) 110 
Decrease (Increase) in operating liabilities..................................................... (15) 10 
Cash flow from operating activities ............................................................ (897) (223) 
   
Investing activities   
Disposal of subsidiaries .................................................................................. — 345 
Increase in long-term receivables ................................................................... — (176) 
Disposal of subsidiaries .................................................................................. — 0 
Cash flow from investing activities.............................................................. — 169 
   
Financing activities   
Loans raised.................................................................................................... — 9,467 
Amortization of debt....................................................................................... (855) (10,256) 
Cash received on the merger........................................................................... — 139 
Dividend paid ................................................................................................. — (2,300) 
Received group contribution........................................................................... 747 2,868 
Repayment from subsidiary............................................................................ 1,000 — 
Cash flow from financing activities ............................................................. 892 (82) 
   
Cash flow for the year .................................................................................. (5) (136) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ............................................. 11 147 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ....................................................... 6 11 
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 Year ended December 31, 
 2007 2006 
   
Supplementary disclosures to the cash flow statements   
   
Interest paid and dividends received   
Interest received................................................................................................... 0 3 
Interest paid ......................................................................................................... (406) (582) 
   
Adjustment for non-cash items   
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets....................................................... 0 0 
Interest not paid ................................................................................................... (157) (142) 
Expensed portion of capitalized loan expense ..................................................... 41 35 
Unrealized exchange rate differences .................................................................. (1) — 
 (117) (107) 
   
Merger of subsidiary   
Participation in group companies ........................................................................ — 4,557 
Receivables in group companies ......................................................................... — 3,164 
Operational receivables ....................................................................................... — 82 
Cash and cash equivalents ................................................................................... — 139 
Total assets .......................................................................................................... — 7,942 
   
Financial liabilities .............................................................................................. — (5,207) 
Total liabilities..................................................................................................... — (5,207) 
   
Elimination of inter-company items .................................................................... — (2,424) 
Merger difference accounted in Shareholders’ equity ......................................... — 311 
   
The following subcomponents are included in cash and cash equivalents   
Cash and bank balances....................................................................................... 6 11 
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General accounting policy 

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and the Swedish 
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s recommendations RR 1–RR 29, as well as with the Board’s Emerging 
Issues Task Force statements URA 1–3 and 8–41. 

Registered office 

Corral Petroleum Holdings AB (publ) carries on the operation in the form of a stock corporation, with 
the registered office in Stockholm, Sweden. 

The address of the Head Office is Sandhamnsgatan 51, SE-115 90 Stockholm, Sweden. 

The Company’s operations 

Corral Petroleum Holdings AB, mainly refines crude oil into finished oil products in its two refineries 
Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff Gothenburg. More than half of the production is exported, mainly to the 
Northern European market. The part of production that is sold in Sweden, is sold partly through the Company’s 
own market channels, and partly through other oil companies. 

Reporting by segment 

The primary basis for classifying the Group’s segments is line of business. The Group’s internal 
reporting system is based on the return on the group’s products, which is why lines of business are the primary 
classification basis. 

Classification etc. 

Non-current assets, non-current liabilities and provisions consist essentially solely of the amounts 
which are expected to be recovered or paid after more than twelve months counted from the balance sheet date. 
Current assets and current liabilities consist essentially solely of amounts expected to be recovered or paid 
within twelve months of the balance sheet date. 

Valuation principles etc. 

Assets, provisions and liabilities have been valued at cost unless otherwise stated below. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired by the Company are recognized at cost less accumulated amortization and 
impairment. 

Expenditure for internally-generated goodwill and trade marks is recognized as an expense in the 
income statement as it arises. 

Additional expenses for an intangible asset are added to cost only if it substantially increases the future 
economic benefits. All other expenditures are expensed as they arise. 

Amortization according to plan is based on original cost less the residual value. Straight line 
amortization is applied over the useful life of the asset. 
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The following amortization periods are applied: 

 Useful life 
 The Group 
Goodwill .......................................................................................................................................... 5–15 years 
 
Depreciation principles for tangible assets 

Depreciation according to plan is based on original cost less estimated residual value. Straight line 
depreciation is applied over the estimated useful life of the asset. No depreciation is applied to platinum and 
palladium, which are recognized under Plant and machinery, since these are used as catalysts in reformer and 
isomerization plants, and are not consumed. The recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount. 

 Useful life 
 The Group 
Building and rock chambers ............................................................................................................ 20-50 years 
Land improvements ......................................................................................................................... 20 years 
Plant and machinery ........................................................................................................................ 3-20 years 
Capitalized runaround cost of refineries .......................................................................................... 4 years 
Equipment tool fixtures and fittings ................................................................................................ 3-20 years 
 

Loan expense 

Loan expense is charged to profit-loss in the period to which it refers, apart from that portion which is 
included in the cost of the asset. Capitalization of loan expense is carried out in accordance with the 
precautionary principle in RR 21. Capitalized interest expense in the Group amounted to MSEK 4 (17) relating 
mainly to balance sheet item ‘‘Plant and machinery’’. The average interest rate used is around 6.0% (6%). 
Expenditure in connection with raise of a loan is reported in the item “Other long-term investments” and is 
written-off concurrently with the duration of the loan. The written-off amounts are reported in the item 
“Financial Expenses”. 

Impairment losses 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s long-lived assets are reviewed on each balance sheet date to 
ascertain whether there is any indication that impairment is necessary. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is measured as the higher of value in use and net selling price. Impairment is 
applied if the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount. In calculating value in use, future cash flows 
are discounted at a pre-tax interest rate that reflects current market assessment of the risk-free rate of return and 
the risks specific to the asset. For an asset which does not, independently of other assets, generate a cash flow, 
the recoverable amount is measured for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Receivables 

Receivables have been recognized at the amount which, after individual valuation, is expected to be 
received. 

Receivables and liabilities in foreign currency 

Receivables and liabilities in foreign currency have been translated at the closing day rate in 
accordance with RR 8. Exchange differences on operating receivables and operating liabilities are included in 
the operating profit, while differences on financial receivables and liabilities are recognized among financial 
items. To the extent that receivables and liabilities in foreign currency have been hedged, they are translated at 
the forward rate. 
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Inventories 

Inventories, valued in accordance with RR 2:02, are recognized at the lower of cost under the first-in, 
first-out method and net selling price. Inventory purchases of petroleum products in USD are recognized at the 
exchange rate in force on the bill of lading date. For products produced in-house, the acquisition value consists 
of direct production costs and a reasonable share of overheads. The net selling price of finished products is made 
up of the selling price less estimated selling expenses. For crude oil, replacement cost is the best available 
measure of net selling price. Since crude oil is held for use in production, the value of the crude oil is not 
impaired below cost in the event that it is, at the same time, expected that it will be possible to sell finished 
products at a price higher than the cost of the products. 

The acquisition cost of the inventories in the Group includes the equivalent of MSEK - (51) relating to 
loaned inventory volumes. Borrowed inventory volumes equivalent to a total inventory value of MSEK 436 
(583) are not included in the inventory value. 

Short-term investments 

Short-term investments are valued at the lower of cost and fair value. 

Tax 

The Company and the Group apply RR 9 Income Taxes. Total tax consists of current tax and deferred 
tax. Taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except where the underlying transaction is recognized directly in 
equity, in which case the associated tax effect is recognized in equity. Current tax is the tax which is to be paid 
or received in the current year. It also includes adjustments of current tax attributable to previous periods. 
Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet method from temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts and taxation values of assets and liabilities. The amount is calculated on the basis of how the temporary 
differences are expected to be evened out, using the tax rates and tax rules adopted or announced as at the 
balance sheet date. Temporary differences are neither taken into account in consolidated goodwill nor in 
differences attributable to participations in subsidiaries and associated companies that are not expected to be 
taxed in the foreseeable future. In corporations, untaxed reserves are recognized including deferred tax 
liabilities. In the consolidated financial statements, on the other hand, untaxed reserves are divided into deferred 
tax liability and equity. Deferred tax assets in respect of deductible temporary differences and loss carry-
forwards are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that they will lead to reduced tax payments in the 
future. 

Provisions (excluding negative goodwill and deferred tax) 

A provision is recognized in accordance with RR 16 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets, in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a consequence of a past 
event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can 
be estimated reliably. Present value calculations are made to take account of the time effects of significant future 
payments. 

Remuneration to employees 

Remuneration to employees is recognized in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
RR 29, Remuneration to employees. 

The Swedish companies in the Group mainly offer defined benefit retirement plans to employees, but 
there are also defined contribution retirement plans in existence. The retirement benefits have been secured 
through occupational pension insurance policies, entered as liabilities in the account Provisions for retirement 
benefits (FPG/PRI) or through payment to a pension fund (KP fund) under the provisions of the Safeguarding of 
Pension Commitments Act. 

With defined contribution plans, the Company pays stipulated contributions to a separate judicial unit, 
and has no obligation to pay additional contributions. The Group’s results are charged with the cost as the 
benefits are accrued. 
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With defined benefit retirement plans, payments are made to employees and former employees based 
on their salary on retirement and the number of years of service. The Group bears the risk of paying the 
promised pension. 

The defined benefit retirement plans are both funded and unfunded. Where the plans are funded, assets 
have been ring-fenced in pension funds. These managed assets may be used only for the payment of benefits 
under the retirement agreements. 

In the balance sheet, the net of the estimated present value of the obligations and the fair value of the 
managed assets is recognized either as a provision or as a non-current financial receivable. Where a surplus in a 
plan cannot be wholly utilized only that part of the surplus which the Company can recover through reduced 
future contributions or repayments is recognized. Offsetting a surplus in one plan against a deficit in another 
plan can be done only if the Company has a right to utilize a surplus in one plan to clear a deficit in another 
plan, or if the obligations are considered to be settled on a net basis. 

Retirement benefit costs and obligations for defined benefit retirement plans are calculated using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method. The method allocates the cost of retirement benefits as the employees carry out 
the services for the Company that increase their right to future payment. The Company’s obligations are 
calculated by independent actuaries. The obligations consist of the present value of the expected future 
payments. The discount rate used is equivalent to the yield on first-class corporate bonds or government bonds 
with a term corresponding to the average term of the obligations and the currency. The most important actuarial 
assumptions are listed in note 13. 

During the determination of the present value of the obligations and the fair value of the managed 
assets, actuarial gains and losses may arise. These arise either through the actual outcome differing from the 
assumptions previously made, or the assumptions being changed. That part of the accumulated actuarial gains 
and losses at the close of the previous year which exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the 
obligations and the fair value of the managed assets are recognized in profit or loss over the expected average 
remaining period of service of the employees covered by the plan. 

The accounting policies described above are applied only in the consolidated financial statements. 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized in accordance with recommendation RR 11, Revenue. Revenue is recognized in 
profit and loss when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company, and these 
benefits can be measured reliably. Revenue includes only the gross inflow of economic benefits that the 
Company receives or may receive on its own account. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized as revenue 
when the Company has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards that are linked to 
ownership of the goods, and the Company no longer exercises effective control over the goods sold. 

Revenue is recognized at the fair value of the consideration received or to be received less discounts. 

Leasing-lessee 

Recommendation RR 6:99 is applied. Leases are classified in the consolidated financial statements 
either as finance or operating lease. A finance lease exists when all the risks and rewards incident to ownership 
are transferred to the lessee. If this is not the case, it is an operating lease. 

Assets leased under finance lease agreements have been recognized as assets in the consolidated 
balance sheet. The obligation to pay future lease charges has been recognized as non-current and current 
liabilities. These assets are depreciated according to plan, while lease payments are recognized as interest and 
amortization of liabilities. 

Operating lease implies that the lease charge is expensed over the lease term on the basis of utilization. 
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Financial risk management and financial instruments 

The Group and the Parent Company are exposed to various types of financial risk, including price risks, 
credit risks, liquidity risks and cash flow risks. The management of risk is governed by common Group-wide 
policies determined by the Board of Directors. A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial 
asset or financial liability. 

Risk policy and goal 

All activities associated with the management of the risks surrounding financial instruments are 
managed by Preem Petroleum AB. The goal of the Company’s derivative trading is to obtain protection against 
unpredictable price fluctuations on the priced crude oils and refined products that are included in the refining 
process. Preem Petroleum AB has a defined normal position in inventories, which is the volume of fixed-price 
oil required to maximize the contribution from the refining system in the most efficient way, without making 
use of derivative instruments. The price risk on this volume is the Company’s business risk that the Board has 
accepted. Starting from this, the Board has specified a number of risk limits that define the extent to which the 
volume exposure is permitted to deviate from the normal position, and the maximum risk, expressed in USD, 
the Company is prepared to accept on the total of these deviations in volume from the normal position. As part 
of this, the Company trades in derivative instruments to keep price exposure within the risk limits specified by 
the Board. Within the framework of these limits, starting from the Company’s assessment of the oil market at 
each given date, the goal is to increase the financial contribution partly by trading in derivative instruments. 

The Group’s outstanding loans on the balance sheet date, for both long-term and short-term loans, 
including bank overdraft facilities, raised from credit institutions and, in previous years, also on the bond 
market, amounted to MSEK 12,480 (MSEK 13,210 ). The due date varies, depending on the economic life of 
the underlying asset. The loans were raised with a mix of variable and fixed interest. The Company’s goal is to 
keep the risk profile as low as possible at a reasonable cost for the assets being financed. Preem Petroleum AB 
pays about MSEK 1,000 per month in product taxes and Value Added Tax, which means that there can be a 
high requirement for access to short-term credit. Preem Petroleum AB takes out or redeems loans in USD to 
minimize the risk of loss on inventories where the price is set in USD. 

Price risk 

In Corral Petroleum Holdings AB’s operations, the price risks of financial instruments are linked 
mainly to the market risk, i.e. the risk of unforeseen price fluctuations on the oil market and currency risk, i.e. 
principally the risk of fluctuations in the value of the U.S. Dollar. Currency risk can be further divided into 
transactions risk (income and expense in different currencies) and translation risk (translation of foreign 
subsidiaries). In order to minimize the risk of loss of working capital linked to changes in the value of the USD 
in relation to the value of the SEK, the Company raises or amortizes loans in USD. The Company’s transactions 
exposure in working and financial capital is distributed over the following currencies, translated into SEK as at 
balance sheet date. Figures preceded by a minus sign are to be read as a liability exposure. 

 2007 in % 2006 in % 
EUR.........................................................................................................  50 (1) 24 0 
USD.........................................................................................................  (8,114) 101 (7,699) 100 
Other ........................................................................................................  35 0 15 0 
Total.........................................................................................................  (8,029) 100 (7,660) 100 
     
 
Interest rate risk 

The Group’s borrowings from credit institutions are exposed to interest risk. To a small extent the 
interest risk is balanced by borrowing at fixed rate and by use of interest rate swaps. Loan conditions, effective 
rate and the maturity structure are described in note 16. 

Credit risk 

The Group is exposed to the risk of failure to pay by any of the large number of customers who buy on 
credit. To limit this risk, there are common Group-wide credit policies. 
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Liquidity risk/financing risk 

Financing risk is the risk that the need for a substantial loan may arise in a strained credit market 
situation. To safeguard the group’s access to external finance in all circumstances, credit commitments, both 
short and long term, must always be available. The lender base must also be reasonably diversified to prevent 
dependence on individual sources of finance. 

Cash flow risk 

Commercial flows 

The purchase of petroleum products, and a large percentage of sales, takes place in USD. This means 
that the Group has a long position in USD. The exposure is counterbalanced by loans taken out in USD. 
Forward contracts, options and swap agreements in oil products and swap agreements in currencies are valued at 
the closing day market price. The difference between acquisition price and closing day market price has affected 
operating profit and the balance sheet. 

The value of financial instruments in the Group 

 Carrying
amount 

2007 

Fair 
value 
2007 

Carrying 
amount 

2006 

Fair 
value 
2006 

Assets     
Long-term financial assets........................................................... 3,175 3,175 3,162 3,162 
Accounts receivable..................................................................... 4,945 4,945 3,501 3,501 
Other current receivables............................................................. 462 462 516 516 
Accrued income........................................................................... 125 125 112 112 
Oil swaps ..................................................................................... — — 29 29 
Currency swaps ........................................................................... 0 0 0 0 
Short-term investments, cash and bank balances......................... 591 591 1,285 1,285 
 9,298 9,298 8,605 8,605 
     
Liabilities     
Interest rate swap......................................................................... 29 29 (2) (2) 
Long-term liabilities to credit institutions(1) ................................ 10,921 10,946 12,157 12,184 
Current liabilities to credit institutions ........................................ 1,262 1,262 664 664 
Accounts payable......................................................................... 5,268 5,268 3,461 3,461 
Other current liabilities ................................................................ 1,368 1,368 1,543 1,543 
Accrued expenses ........................................................................ 2,498 2,498 2,894 2,894 
Oil swaps ..................................................................................... 26 26 — — 
 21,372 21,397 20,717 20,744 
(1) In the table above, that part of non-current financial assets relating to expenditure in connection with 

raising of loans has been recognized net under the item non-current liabilities to credit institutions, and 
this has led to a reduction in this item of MSEK 298 (MSEK 389). 

The difference between reported value and actual value is pertaining to loans raised at fixed rate. A 
change in the market interest has an effect on the loans’ actual value but not the reported value at the time of the 
change. 

Consolidated financial statements 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recommendation RR 
1:00. 
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Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are companies in which the Parent Company directly or indirectly holds more than 50% of 
the number of votes or otherwise has a governing influence over the operational and financial control. 
Subsidiaries are normally accounted for in accordance with the purchase method. The purchase method means 
that an acquisition of a subsidiary is treated as a transaction through which the Parent Company indirectly 
acquires the subsidiary’s assets and assumes its liabilities. From and including the acquisition date, the acquired 
company’s income and expense, identifiable assets and liabilities and any goodwill or negative goodwill arising, 
are included in the consolidated financial statements. 

Goodwill 

Consolidated goodwill arises when the acquisition value on the acquisition of participations in a 
subsidiary exceeds the fair value of the acquired company’s identifiable net assets. Goodwill is recognized at 
cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment. 

Associated companies 

Shareholdings in associated companies, in which the Group has a minimum of 20% and a maximum of 
50% of the votes or otherwise has a significant influence over the operational and financial control, are 
recognized in accordance with the equity method. 

Elimination of transactions between Group companies 

Intra-Group receivables and liabilities, as well as transactions between companies in the Group, along 
with associated unrealized gains are eliminated in their entirety. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with 
associated companies are eliminated to the extent that the Group owns shares in the company. 

Mergers 

Mergers are recognized in accordance with BFNAR 1999:1 ‘‘Merger of wholly-owned corporations’’. 
The consolidated value method is applied, which means that the Parent Company has recognized the assets and 
liabilities of the merged subsidiaries at the values these had in the consolidated financial statements. 

Translation of foreign subsidiaries or other foreign operations 

Currency translation is carried out in accordance with the recommendation RR 8. The current method is 
applied to the currency translation of income statements and balance sheets in autonomous foreign operations. 
The current method means that all assets, provisions, and liabilities are translated at the closing day rate, and all 
items in the income statement are translated at the average rate. Exchange differences arising are recognized 
directly in equity. 

On the disposal of an independently-run foreign operation, the accumulated translation differences 
attributable to the operation are realized in the consolidated income statement. 

Group contribution and shareholders’ contribution 

The Company recognizes Group contribution and shareholders’ contribution in accordance with the 
Swedish Financial Accounting Standards Council’s Emerging Issues Task Force’s statement. 

Shareholders’ contributions are recognized directly in equity by the recipient and are capitalized in 
shares and participations by the giver, to the extent that impairment is not required. 

Group contributions are recognized in accordance with their financial purpose. This means that a 
Group contribution made with the aim of minimizing the Group’s total tax is recognized directly against profit 
brought forward after deducting the relevant tax effect. 
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Emission rights 

Preem Petroleum’s refineries, Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff Gothenburg, have been allotted 
emissions rights for carbon dioxide equivalent to a total of 6,682,224 tonnes over a three-year period, 2005–
2007. The allocation and consumption has not, therefore, affected neither the reported results, nor the 
Company’s position. The disposal of emission rights is recognized under the heading, net sales in the income 
statement at an amount corresponding to the purchase price received. 

 Lysekil Gothenburg 
Number of allocated rights for the three-year plan .......................................  4,923,834 1,758,390 
Number of rights consumed 2005–2006.......................................................  (2,880,638) (1,114,644) 
Number of rights sold 2006 ..........................................................................  (165,000) - 
Number of rights consumed 2007.................................................................  (1,610,108) (474,995) 
Number of rights sold 2007 ..........................................................................  (155,000) - 
Total rights remaining ..................................................................................  113,088  168,751  
 

During the current year, 155,000 (165,000) emission rights have been sold for a total of MSEK 4 
(MSEK 16) in consequence of the set-up period for the new liquefied petroleum gas plant in Lysekil being 
longer than originally planned. The remaining emission rights are expected in the light of current estimates to be 
sufficient to cover consumption for the whole period. 

Group information 

The company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Corral Finans AB (publ) which is wholly-owned by 
Moroncha Holdings Co. Limited, which has its registered office in Cyprus. 

Related parties 

Related party relationships that involve a significant influence 

The Group 

Moroncha Holding Co. Limited exercises a significant influence over the Group. 

The Parent Company 

In addition to the related party relationships noted for the Group, the Parent Company has related party 
relationships involving a significant influence with its subsidiaries, see note 11. 

Related party transactions 

The Group 

With Subsidiary 

The Group has related party transactions with its Parent Company, Corral Petroleum Holdings AB in 
the form of Group contribution made. 

With subsidiaries 

In addition to the related party transactions noted for the Group, the Parent Company, Preem Petroleum 
AB has related party transactions with its subsidiaries, see note 10. 
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With other related companies 

Preem Petroleum AB has an agreement with Capital Trust Management Ltd. regarding the purchase of 
financial services. Capital Trust Management Ltd. is partly owned by Directors John Oswald and Bassam 
Aburdene, members of the Board of the Corral Petroleum Holdings Group. During the year, payments 
amounting to MSEK 17 (MSEK 102) were made. Companies within the Midroc Group in Scandinavia carry out 
a certain amount of construction and repair work at the Group’s two refineries on market terms. During the year, 
payments amounting to MSEK 329 (MSEK 223) were made. 

During the year, sales of LPG took place to Société Anonyme Marocaine de l’Industrie du Raffinage 
(Samir) at market price of a total amount of MSEK 4 (MSEK 310). The company is a public majority-owned 
subsidiary of Corral Morocco Holdings AB, with operations in Morocco. Corral Morocco Holdings AB is 
wholly-owned by Corral Morocco Gas & Oil AB, which is itself wholly-owned by Moroncha Holdings Co. 
Limited (Cyprus). 

Corral Petroleum Holdings AB sold its subsidiary Corral Morocco Holdings AB to Corral Gas & Oil 
AB on February 6, 2007. The price amounted to SEK 3,136 million corresponding to Corral Petroleum Holdings 
book value. The purchase was financed by an interest-bearing promissory note in the same amount. 

Preem Petroleum AB has an agreement with Svenska Petroleum Exploration AB concerning the sale of 
administrative services. The selling price amounted to MSEK 1 (MSEK 1). 

The transition to IFRS 2008 

As at January 1, 2008 Corral Petroleum Holding AB (publ) will put into practice IFRS (International 
Financial Reporting Standards). Up to December 31, 2007 Corral Petroleum Holding AB (publ) has been 
practicing the recommendations of the Swedish Financial Accounting Standards Council. The transition to IFRS 
will be reported according to IFRS 1 “First-time adoption of financial reporting standards” which transitional 
date is January 1, 2007. The financial information regarding earlier financial years than 2007 will not be 
converted. 

The changes regarding accounting affected by the transition to IFRS on the profit and loss account and 
on the balance sheet are preliminary and might affect certain IAS/IFRS standards that are still valid. A survey of 
the preliminary effects of the transition and its affect on the profit and loss account and equity is presented in 
note 23. 
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Note 1.  Information on lines of business (primary segment) 

Lines of business 

The Group is involved in two lines of business; 

Supply & Refining — Crude oil is purchased for the two refineries Preemraff Lysekil and Preemraff 
Gothenburg, where it is refined into finished oil products. More than half of production is exported, mainly to 
the Northern European market. That portion of production which is sold in Sweden is sold partly through the 
Group’s own market channels and partly through other oil companies. 

Marketing — Refined oil products purchased from the Supply & Refining segment are sold through 
this segment. Sales take place directly to consumers via the Company’s network of filling stations, and to 
corporate customers through direct sales. On February 1, 2006 the subsidiary Corral Morocco Holdings AB was 
sold to Corral Morocco Gas & Oil AB. SAMIR is a subsidiary to Corral Morocco Holdings AB. 

Internal pricing 

Prices are set on market terms at prices based on the official market price on the oil market. 

Apportionment of results, assets and liabilities 

The results, assets and liabilities of the segments include directly attributable items and items that can 
be reasonably and reliably apportioned in segments. Non-apportioned profit/loss items consist mainly of 
exchange differences on trading with foreign counterparties and central Group costs. The segments’ investments 
in tangible and intangible assets include all investments apart from investments in short-term inventories and 
inventories of negligible value. 
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Note 1.  Information on lines of business (primary segment) (Continued) 

The Group 2007 

 
Supply & 
refining Marketing 

Exchange 
difference Elim/other The Group 

Sales per segment      
External sales.............................................  51,806 12,171 (63) — 63,914 
Internal sales..............................................  11,361 30 — (11,391) 0 
Total sales revenue ....................................  63,167 12,201 (63) (11,391) 63,914 
       
Operating income per line of business 4,586 (74) — — 4,512 
Exchange differences on current 

payments...........................................      33 
Currency effect on normal inventory.......      (424) 
Total for the Group ..................................      (412) 
Total operating income............................      3,709 
       
Financial income and expense .................      (595) 
Income taxes............................................      (911) 
Minority interests.....................................      (2) 
Net income ...............................................      2,201 
       
Assets and liabilities per segment      
Assets.......................................................  17,311 6,825 — — 24,136 
Unapportioned assets...............................      4,226 
Total assets ..............................................      28,362 
       
Liabilities.................................................  7,354 1,606 — — 8,960 
Unapportioned liabilities .........................      15,294 
Total liabilities.........................................      24,254 
       
Investments and depreciation per 
segment      
Investment per segment ...........................  1,384 175 — 3 1,562 
Depreciation/amortization per segment ...  846 99 — 135 1,080 
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Note 1.  Information on lines of business (primary segment) (Continued) 

The Group 2006 

 SAMIR 
Supply & 
refining Marketing 

Exchange 
difference 

Elim/ 
other 

The 
Group 

Sales per segment       
External sales................................... 1,728 54,251 13,454 (270) — 69,163 
Internal sales.................................... — 12,156 71 — (12,227) 0 
Total sales revenue .......................... 1,728 66,407 13,525 (270) (12,227) 69,163 
        
Operating result per business 

segment 178 2,766 (52) — — 2,892 
Exchange differences on current 

payments...................................      779 
Currency effect on normal 
inventory..........................................      (926) 
Total for the Group ..........................      (1,128) 
Total operating income....................      1,617 
        
Financial income and expense .........      (657) 
Income taxes....................................      (551) 
Minority interests.............................      (43) 
Net income .......................................      366 
        
Assets and liabilities per segment       
Assets...............................................  14,867 5,658 — — 20,525 
Unapportioned assets.......................      5,207 
Total assets ......................................      25,732 
        
Liabilities.........................................  6,108 1,436 — — 7,544 
Unapportioned liabilities .................      16,282 
Total liabilities.................................      23,826 
        
Investments and depreciation per 

segment       
Investment per segment ...................  745 82 — 4 831 
Depreciation/amortization per 

segment.....................................   860 106 — 136 1,102 
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Note 1.  Information on lines of business (primary segment) (Continued) 

 
Geographical areas 
 
 Geographical areas are the secondary division criterion in the Group. The information presented 
regarding revenue relates to geographical areas grouped by customer location. 
 
 Information regarding the segments’ assets and investments during the period in non-current assets is 
based on geographical areas grouped by asset location. In the table below, Other Nordic refers primarily to 
Denmark, Norway and Iceland, and Other Countries refers primarily to Germany, France, England, Holland, 
Poland and North America. 
 
The Group 2007 

 Sweden Other Nordic 
Other 

Countries The Group 
Sales per geographic area     
External sales........................................................ 24,063 14,019 25,832 63,914 
Assets.................................................................... 28,030 — 332 28,362 
Investments........................................................... 1,562 — — 1,562 
 
The Group 2006 

 Sweden Other Nordic 
Other 

Countries The Group 
Sales per geographic area     
External sales......................................................... 25,962 12,640 30,561 69,163 
Assets..................................................................... 25,392 — 340 25,732 
Investments............................................................ 831 — — 831 
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Note 2.  Gross profit/loss 

The purchase and sales of oil products on the market is primarily based in U.S. dollars. Foreign 
exchange gains/losses in regards to sales are presented under net turnover, and foreign exchange gains/losses in 
regards to purchasing are presented under cost of goods sold. Foreign exchange gains/losses regarding to the 
purchase and sale of oil products are included in the Groups gross profit at a net of SEK 33 million (779). 

Note 3.  Excise duties 

Excise taxes refers to energy taxes, petrol taxes, carbon dioxide taxes, sulphur taxes and alcohol duty. 

Note 4.  Depreciation/amortization 

Amortization of goodwill has been applied at a rate of 6.67% or 20% (with a term of 15 years or 5 
years) on acquisition value. The longer period is applied to corporate acquisitions for strategic reasons. 

Capitalized turnaround costs refer to oversight expenses and preventive maintenance in the refineries. 
These expenses are allocated over the period until the next planned audit inspection. 

 
 The Group Parent Company 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Apportionment of depreciation/amortization     
Goodwill ............................................................................  132 155 — — 
Land and buildings ............................................................  66 62 — — 
Plant and machinery ..........................................................  656 650 — — 
Capitalized turnaround costs..............................................  118 116 — — 
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings...............................  108 119 0 1 
Total...................................................................................  1,080 1,102 0 1 
     
     
Distribution per function     
Cost of goods sold .............................................................  847 862 — — 
Selling expenses ................................................................  98 104 — — 
Administrative expenses....................................................  135 136 0 1 
Total...................................................................................  1,080 1,102 0 1 
     
Note 5.  Other operating income and expense     
     
Other operating income     
Heat supply........................................................................  65 73   
Rental income....................................................................   78 58   
Harbor income ...................................................................  40 40   
Storage certificates ............................................................   150 152   
Income from commission ..................................................  1 4   
Service payments...............................................................   23 24   
Other ..................................................................................  29 52   
Total...................................................................................  386 403   
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Note 5.  Other operating income and expense (Continued) 

 The Group Parent Company 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Other operating expenses     
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ........................................  — (835)   
Other ..................................................................................  — (4)   
Total...................................................................................  — (839)   
     
Note 6.  Result from participations in group companies     
     
Impairment ........................................................................    — — 
Dividends...........................................................................    70 — 
Total...................................................................................    70 — 
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 The Group Parent Company 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Note 7.  Financial income and expense     
     
Financial income      
Interest income, related parties ........................................  157 145 157 145 
Interest income, other ......................................................  29 49 0 1 
Other financial income ...................................................  0 0 — — 
Exchange gain/loss on assets, net ....................................  (1) (20) 0 (2) 
Total.................................................................................  185 174 157 144 
      
Financial expense     
Interest expense, Group companies/stockholders ............  — (48) — (54) 
Interest expense, related parties .......................................  — (7) — (7) 
Interest expense, other .....................................................  (963) (1,175) (434) (537) 
Redemption fees on early redemption of bond loans.......  — (348) — — 
Other financial expense ...................................................  (51) (15) (21) 0 
Exchange gain/loss on liabilities, net...............................  234 762 1 225 
Total.................................................................................  (780) (831) (454) (373) 
     
Note 8.  Income taxes     
     
Current tax expense(-)/tax income (+)     
Tax expense for the period ..............................................  (1,018) (185) (64) (1) 
Tax expense due to group contributions ..........................  — — 147 63 
 (1,018) (185) 83 62 
Deferred tax expense(-)/tax income (+)     
Deferred taxes relating to temporary differences.............  107 (366) 0 — 
Total recognized tax expense...........................................  (911) (551) 83 62 
     
Reconciliation of effective tax     
Profit/loss before tax........................................................  3,114 960 (230) (236) 
Tax in accordance to applicable tax rate (28%) .............  872 269 (64) (66) 
Effect on other tax rates on foreign subsidiaries..............  0 10 — — 
Amortization of consolidated goodwill ...........................  37 43 — — 
Non-deductible expenses .................................................  5 242 1 4 
Non-taxable income ........................................................  (1) (13) (20) 0 
Taxes repaid.....................................................................  (2) — — — 
Recognized tax ................................................................  911 551 (83) (62) 
     
Tax items recognized directly against shareholder equity     
Current tax due to Group contributions received/paid.....  — — 147 63 
 — — 147 63 
Note 9.  Intangible fixed assets     
     
Patents and trade marks     
Opening acquisition value ...............................................  — 194   
Disposal of subsidiaries ...................................................  — (194)   
Closing accumulated acquisition value............................  — —   
     
Opening amortization ......................................................  — 127   
Disposal of subsidiaries ...................................................  — (127)   
Closing accumulated amortization...................................  — —   
     

Carrying amount ..............................................................  — —   
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Note 9.  Intangible fixed assets (Continued) 
 The Group 
Goodwill 2007 2006 
Opening acquisition value ...................................................................................  1,729 3,621 
Disposals..............................................................................................................  (630) (1) 
Disposal of subsidiaries .......................................................................................  — (1,891) 
Closing accumulated acquisition value................................................................  1,099 1,729 
   
Opening amortization ..........................................................................................  1,421 2,367 
Disposals..............................................................................................................  (630) — 
Amortization for the year ....................................................................................  132 155 
Disposal of subsidiaries .......................................................................................  — (1,101) 
Closing accumulated amortization.......................................................................  923 1,421 
   
Carrying amount ..................................................................................................  176 308 
   
Other intangible assets   
Opening acquisition value ...................................................................................  — 210 
Disposal of subsidiaries .......................................................................................  — (210) 
Closing accumulated acquisition value................................................................  — — 
   
Note 10.  Tangible fixed assets   
   
Land and buildings   
Opening acquisition value ...................................................................................  1,947 2,461 
Investment for the year ........................................................................................  8 2 
Sales/Disposals ....................................................................................................  (29) (33) 
Reclassifications ..................................................................................................  82 272 
Disposal of subsidiaries .......................................................................................  — (755) 
Closing accumulated acquisition value................................................................  2,008 1,947 
   
Opening deprecation............................................................................................  995 1,476 
Sales/Disposals ....................................................................................................  (17) (22) 
Depreciation for the year .....................................................................................  66 62 
Disposal of subsidiaries .......................................................................................  — (521) 
Closing accumulated depreciation .......................................................................  1,044 995 
   
Carrying amount ..................................................................................................  964 952 
   
Plant and machinery (*)   
Opening acquisition value ...................................................................................  14,572 14,475 
Investment for the year .......................................................................................  45 1 
Sales/Disposals ....................................................................................................  (66) (52) 
Reclassifications ..................................................................................................  599 3,077 
Disposal of subsidiaries .......................................................................................  — (2,929) 
Closing accumulated acquisition value................................................................  15,150 14,572 
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Note 10.  Tangible fixed assets (Continued) 
 The Group 
 2007 2006 
Opening depreciation...........................................................................................  7,051 8,556 
Sales/Disposals ....................................................................................................  (51) (40) 
   
Depreciation for the year ...................................................................................... 656 650 
Disposal of subsidiaries ........................................................................................ — (2,115) 
Closing accumulated depreciation ........................................................................ 7,656 7,051 
   
Carrying amount ................................................................................................... 7,494 7,521 
________   
(*) The residual value according to plan includes platinum and palladium for an amount of SEK 137 million (SEK 115 million) 
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Note 10.  Tangible fixed assets (Continued) 
 The Group Parent Company 
Capitalized turnaround costs 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Opening acquisition value ..................................  513 501   
Investment for the year ......................................  608 12   
Sales/Disposals ...................................................  (404) —   
Closing accumulated acquisition value...............  717 513   
     
Opening depreciation..........................................  389 273   
Sales/Disposals ...................................................  (405) —   
Depreciation for the year ....................................  118 116   
Closing accumulated depreciation ......................  102 389   
     
Carrying amount .................................................  615 124   
     
Equipment, tools, fixtures and fittings     
Opening acquisition value ..................................  1,363 1,523 2 2 
Investment for the year ......................................  3 6 — — 
Sales/Disposals ...................................................  (160) (119) — — 
Reclassifications .................................................  137 65 — — 
Disposal of subsidiaries ......................................  — (112) — — 
Closing accumulated acquisition value...............  1,343 1,363 2 2 
     
Opening depreciation..........................................  852 926 1 1 
Sales/Disposals ...................................................  (120) (105) — — 
Depreciation for the year ....................................  108 119 1 1 
Disposal of subsidiaries ......................................  — (88) — — 
Closing accumulated depreciation ......................  840 852 2 2 
     
Carrying amount .................................................  503 511 0 0 
     
     
Construction in progress     
Opening acquisition value .................................  467 3,866   
Investment for the year ......................................  898 811   
Completion of work in progress .........................  (818) (3,414)   
Sales/Disposals ...................................................  (1) —   
Disposal of subsidiaries ......................................  — (796)   
Closing accumulated acquisition value...............  546 467   
     
Tax assessment value      
Buildings.............................................................  871 878   
Land....................................................................  488 246   
Plant and machinery ..........................................  2,960 4,359   
 4,319 5,483   
     
Lease payments in respect of operating leases     
Minimum lease payment ....................................  126 122 — — 
Variable payments ..............................................  2 7 — — 
Total lease expenses ...........................................  128 129 — — 
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Note 10.  Tangible fixed assets (Continued) 
 The Group Parent Company 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Contracted future minimum lease payment     
Within one year ..................................................  116 110 — — 
Between one and five years ................................  488 409 — — 
Later than five years ...........................................  10 57 — — 
Lease income in respect of operating leases     
     
Minimum lease payment ....................................  78 58 — — 
Variable payments ..............................................  0 0 — — 
Total lease expense.............................................  78 58 — — 
     
Contracted future minimum lease payment     
Within one year ..................................................  78 57 — — 
Between one and five years ................................  381 286 — — 
Later than five years ...........................................  78 56 — — 
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Note 11.  Participations in Group companies 
 

Directly owned subsidiaries 
Corporate 

ID No. 
Registered 

office 
Number 
of shares 

Stockholding 
% 

Nominal 
value in 

Carrying 
amount in 

 
  (SEK thousand) 

 
Preem Petroleum AB (publ) ..... 5566072-6977 Stockholm 610,258 100 610,258 3,556,501 
       
Accumulated acquisition 

value ..................................  2007 2006    
At beginning of year .................  4,652,501 3,232,575    
Merger ......................................  — 4,555,560    
Sales of shares ..........................  — (3,135,634)    
Repayment from subsidiary 

company ............................  (1,000,000) —    
  3,652,501 4,652,501    
Accumulated 

impairment/depreciation ...       
At the beginning of the year .....  96,000 96,441    
Mergers.....................................  — (441)    
  96,000 96,000    
       
Carrying amount at end of 

period.................................  3,556,501 4,556,501    
       
Indirectly owned subsidiaries       
       
Swedish companies       
Operating       
Preem Finans AB...................... 556036-2476 Stockholm 150,000 100 15,000 198,211 
Preem Gas AB .......................... 556037-2970 Stockholm 1,750 70 1,750 6,348 
Svensk Petroleum 

Förvaltning AB.................. 556067-8459 Stockholm 664 66 66 74 
Preem Technology AB ............. 556117-6610 Lysekil 4,000 100 400 0 
Syrhåla Handelsbolag ............... 969633-6743 Stockholm  100  0 
ODAB Svensk 

Oljedistribution AB ........... 556264-6835 Falun 2,000 100 200 240 
       
Dormant       
Svenska Petroleum AB............. 556046-4819 Stockholm 1,000 100 100 100 
Såifa Drivmedel AB ................. 556039-7001 Stockholm 5,000 100 500 599 
      205,572 
Foreign companies       
Preem Insurance Company 

Ltd., Ireland .......................  Dublin 7,500 100 
SEK 
7,500 3,018 

Preem Petroleum 
WybrzezeSp.z.o.o., 
Poland RHB 11623............  Gdynia 3,000 100 

PLN 
3,000 0 

      3,018 
Total .........................................      208,590 
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Note 12.  Financial fixed assets 
   
Participation in associated companies   
Accumulated acquisition value 2007 2006 
Carrying value at beginning of year ................................................................................... 5 160 
Net profit from associated companies ................................................................................ — 0 
Sale of shares in associated companies............................................................................... — (155) 
 5 5 
   
 

Associated companies Org. no. Domicile 
Number of 

shares 

Percentage 
of 

ownership 

Book 
value in 
1,000s 

Reported 
value in 
1,000s 

       
AB Djurgårdsberg........................556077-3714 Stockholm 366 37 37 18 
Göteborgs Smörjmedelsfabrik .....       
(Scanlube) AB .............................556287-6481 Göteborg 50,000 50 5,000 5,000 
TOTAL........................................      5,018 
 
 
Receivables from group companies Parent company 
 2007 2006 
Opening balance ............................................................................................................. — 242 
Amortization of the year................................................................................................. — (242) 
 — — 
 
 
Receivables from related parties Consolidated Parent company 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Opening balance ........................................................ 3,136 103 3,136 103 
Lending of the year*.................................................. — 3,136 — 3,136 
Amortization of the year............................................ — (103) — (103) 
 3,136 3,136 3,136 3,136 
______ 
* Represents an interest-bearing receivable on the related party Corral Morocco Gas & Oil AB. 
 
Other long-term receivables Consolidated Parent company 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Opening balance ............................................................................ 424 46 176 0 
Capitalized borrowing costs ** ..................................................... — 452 — 202 
Amortization of the year **........................................................... (91) (64) (41) (26) 
Disposal of subsidiaries ................................................................. — (36) — — 
Other changes ................................................................................ 16 26 — — 
Closing balance **......................................................................... 349 424 134 176 
_____     
** The receivables at the end of the year, SEK 349 million, mainly consists of capitalized borrowing costs in connection with raising 

loans in 2006.  Capitalized borrowing costs at the end of the year amounts to SEK 299 million (SEK 389 million).  The 
amortization of the capitalized borrowing costs are recognized as Financial expense in the income statement. 



Corral Petroleum Holdings AB (publ) 

Notes 

(Amounts in MSEK unless otherwise specified) 

 F-88 

 

Note 13.  Provisions   
   
The Group   
   
Defined-benefit obligations and the value of managed assets The Group 
 2007 2006 
Fully or partly-funded obligations:   
Present value of defined-benefit obligations ........................................................................ 740 688 
Fair value of managed assets ................................................................................................ (677) (634) 
Net fully or partly-funded obligations .................................................................................. 63 54 
Unfunded obligations:   
Present value of unfunded defined-benefit obligations......................................................... 125 134 
Net obligations, total, before adjustments ............................................................................ 188 188 
   
Adjustments:   
Accumulated unrecognized actuarial gains (+) and losses (-) .............................................. (147) (122) 
Net amount in the balance sheet (obligation +, assets -)...................................................... 41 66 
   
Net amount recognized in the following items in the balance sheet ....................................   
Provisions for retirement benefits......................................................................................... 41 66 
   
The net amount is distributed over the following country:   
Sweden ................................................................................................................................ 41 66 
   
Retirement benefit costs   
   
Defined-benefit plans   
Cost of retirement benefits earned during the year ............................................................... 18 17 
Interest expense .................................................................................................................... 33 30 
Expected return managed assets ........................................................................................... (43) (35) 
Actuarial gains(-) and losses (+) recognized during the year ............................................... 3 2 
Identification of new pension obligations............................................................................. 1 — 
Total cost of defined-benefit plans........................................................................................ 12 14 
   
Reconciliation of net amounts for retirement benefits in the balance sheet   
   
Net amount in the balance sheet at start of year ................................................................... 66 113 
Cost of defined-benefit plans................................................................................................ 12 14 
Payment of benefits .............................................................................................................. (31) (28) 
Payment of contributions from the Company....................................................................... (27) (52) 
Payment from pension fund.................................................................................................. 21 19 
Total...................................................................................................................................... 41 66 
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Note 13.  Provisions (Continued)   
   
Accumulated unrecognized actuarial gains or losses The Group 
 2007 2006 
Accumulated unrecognized losses at start of year ............................................................. (122) (103) 
Actuarial loss recognized in the income statement............................................................ 3 2 
Actuarial loss for the year on obligations .......................................................................... (8) (67) 
Actuarial loss (-) profit (+) on managed assets.................................................................. (20) 46 
Accumulated losses at end of year..................................................................................... (147) (122) 
   
Accumulated unrecognized losses at end of year .............................................................. (147) (122) 
10% corridor limits ............................................................................................................ 87 82 
Surplus............................................................................................................................... (60) (40) 
Projected average remaining period of service.................................................................. 14 years 14 years 
   
Actuarial assumptions    
   
Discount rate...................................................................................................................... 4.5% 4.0% 
Projected return on managed assets ................................................................................... 6.5% 6.5% 
Future salary increases....................................................................................................... 3.0% 3.0% 
Staff turnover..................................................................................................................... 2.0% 2.0% 
Inflation ............................................................................................................................. 2.0% 2.0% 
Projected remaining period of service ............................................................................... 14 years 14 years 
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Note 13.  Provisions (Continued) 
 
Provision for deferred taxes   
   
The Group Deferred Deferred 
 Tax assets Tax liability 
2007 ................................................................................................................................. 5 (1,586) 
Tangible assets................................................................................................................. 8 (34) 
Other ................................................................................................................................ 13 (1,620) 
   
2006 ................................................................................................................................. 6 (1,693) 
Tangible assets................................................................................................................. — (27) 
Other ................................................................................................................................ 6 (1,720) 
 
 
Change in deferred tax in temporary differences 
 
The Group     

 

Amount at 
beginning 

of year 

Recognized 
in income 
statement Other 

Amount 
at end  
of year 

Tangible assets.......................................................................... (1,687) 106 — (1,581) 
Other ......................................................................................... (27) 1 — (26) 
 (1,714) 107 — (1,607) 
 
Other provisions      
 The Group Parent company 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Opening balance ....................................................................... 155 151 — — 
Provisions made during the year............................................... 0 0 — — 
Reclassification from other short-term liabilities ..................... — 5 — — 
Amounts received .................................................................... (7) — — — 
Closing balance *...................................................................... 148 155 — — 
_____     
* Also see note 20, Pledged assets and contingent liabilities. 
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Note 14.  Long-term liabilities      
      
Liabilities to credit institutions      
 2007   2006  
      
The Parent Company      
Loans in SEK..................................................... 5,685   6,540  
Deduct amortization within 1 year..................... (1,576) 4,109  — 6,540 
      
Group companies      
Loans in USD .................................................... 3,446   3,771  
Loans in SEK *.................................................. 2,534   2,235  
Deduct amortization within 1 year..................... (462) 5,518  — 6,006 
      
Lease payment  —   —  
Deduct short-term portion.................................. — —  — — 
THE GROUP.....................................................  9,627   12,546 
_____      
* Includes syndicated loans in SEK and USD which contain requirements for interest coverage ratio, net-debt equity ratio, investments 

limits, restraints on dividends and requirements regarding the amount of shareholders’ equity. 
       
      
 
Note 15.  Bank overdraft facilities etc.     
 The Group Parent company 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Credit facilities granted ............................................................. 255 170 — — 
Unutilized part ........................................................................... 240 170 — — 
Utilized credit ............................................................................ 15 0 — — 
     
Other unutilized facilities .......................................................... 4,442 4,290 — — 
     
Total unutilized credit................................................................ 4,682 4,460   
     
 

 
Note 16.  Loan conditions, effective interest rate and due date structure 

 
The Group    

    

 

Nominal 
value local 
currency 

Effective 
interest rate 

Less 
than 

1 year 1-5 years >5 years 
Non-current liabilities to credit institutions .......      
—USD, fixed interest rate ................................. 255 6.41 — 1,650 — 
—USD, variable interest.................................... 278 6.69 162 1,633 — 
—SEK fixed interest.......................................... 2,899 6.17 — 2,899 — 
—SEK, variable interest .................................... 5,321 7.78 1,876 3,445 — 
Current liabilities to credit institutions ..............      
—SEK, variable interest .................................... 800 5.19 800   
   2,838 9,267 — 
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Note 17.  Pledged assets for liabilities to credit institutions and bond loans    
      
 The Group  Parent company 
 2007 2006  2007 2006 
      
Shares in subsidiaries......................................... 6,850 5,881  3,557 4,557 
 6,850 5,881  3,557 4,557 
      
Note 18.  Other liabilities      
 The Group  Parent company 
 2007 2006  2007 2006 
      
Value Added Tax............................................... 584 438  — — 
Excise duties...................................................... 642 605  — — 
Other liabilities .................................................. 141 500  0 14 
 1,367 1,543  0 14 
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Note 19.  Accrued expenses and deferred income   
   
 The Group Parent company 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Purchases of crude oil and products .................................... 1,748 1,949 — — 
Staff ..................................................................................... 250 290 — — 
Interest ................................................................................. 306 438 266 426 
Other*.................................................................................. 249 217 8 5 
 2,553 2,894 274 431 
* Of which to Arabian Peninsula Company, related party .. 3 5 3 5 
     
 
Note 20.  Pledged assets and contingent liabilities  

Other contingent liabilities 

A future close-down of operations within the Corral Petroleum Holdings Group could involve claims 
for decontamination and restoration work. This is, however, expected to lie a long time in the future, and the 
future expenditure cannot be reliably measured. 

Preem Petroleum AB (publ) has, through its subsidiary Preem Insurance Company Ltd, paid an 
insurance premium of SEK 148 million for known and planned decontamination work. During 2007, SEK 7 
million of the provision has been used and SEK 141 million remains. This is recognized under Other provisions 
in the balance sheet. 

A minor requirement for a revised year of assessment regarding 2007 has been made by the Swedish 
Tax authorities, which is currently defrayed by the company. 

Note 21.  Employees, personnel costs and fees to Board and President 
 
 2007 2006 

 
Number of 
employees 

Percentage 
of men 

Number of 
employees 

Percentage 
of men 

Parent company     
Sweden ................................................................................... 1 0 1 0 
     
Group companies     
Sweden ................................................................................... 1,485 74 1,697 70 
Norway ................................................................................... — — — — 
Poland..................................................................................... — — — — 
Morocco.................................................................................. — — 110 92 
Group companies, total........................................................... 1,485 74 1,807 71 
     
Group total.............................................................................. 1,486 74 1,808 71 
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Note 21.  Employees, personnel costs and fees to Board and President (Continued) 
 
 
Gender distribution in Group management   
 2007 2006 
 Percentage Percentage 
 of women of women 
Parent company   
The Board of Directors ................................................................................................ 0% 0% 
Other key management personnel................................................................................ 0% 0% 
   
Group total   
The Board of Directors ................................................................................................ 0% 0% 
Other key management personnel................................................................................ 22% 27% 
   

 
 

Salaries, other remuneration and social security contributions 
 
  2007 2006 
 

 

Salaries and 
other 

remuneration 

Social 
security 

contribution 
(of which 
pension 

expenses) 

Salaries and 
other 

remuneration 

Social 
security 

contribution
(of which 
pension 

expenses) 
     
Parent company .................................................... 0 0 0 0 
     
Group companies.................................................. 644 326 667 348 
  (85)  (92) 
     
Group total............................................................ 644 326 667 348 
  (85)*  (92)* 
________     
* Of the Group’s pension costs, SEK 2.5 (2.4) million relate to key management personnel 
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Note 21.  Employees, personnel costs and fees to Board and President (Continued) 
 
Salaries and other remuneration by country and between Directors and employees 
 
 2007 2006 

 

Board and 
President (of 
which bonus) 

Other 
employees 

Board and 
President 
(of which 

bonus) 
Other 

employees 
Parent company .................................................... 0 0 0 0 
     
Group companies in Sweden ................................ 6 638 5 655 
 (0.0)  (0.0)  
Foreign group companies abroad     
Morocco................................................................ — — 3 14 
     
Group companies, total......................................... 6 638 8 669 
     
Group total............................................................ 6 638 8 669 
 (0.0)  (0.0)  
     
     
Note 22.  Fees to auditors     
 2007 2006 

 The Group 
Parent 

Company 
The 

Group 
Parent 

Company 
KPMG     
Audit assignments................................................. 3.2 0.6 2.9 0.8 
Other assignments................................................. 1.2 0.1 1.5 0.3 
     
Other auditors .......................................................     
Audit assignments................................................. 0.2 — 0.2 — 
Other assignments................................................. — — — — 
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Note 23.  Transition to IFRS 

Goodwill and other intangible assets 

IFRS 3, Business Combinations, specifies that goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite 
useful life are no longer amortized according to plan, but are subject to an annual impairment test. An 
impairment test is performed at the time IFRS is adopted for the first time, thereafter it’s performed annually. If 
the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount an impairment loss should be recognized. 

On January 1, 2007 an impairment test was carried out to establish whether the recoverable amount of 
goodwill (SEK 308 million) was correct. This test did not cause a write-down of goodwill. As a consequence of 
the adoption of IFRS, the recognized depreciation of goodwill has been reversed which has affected 
shareholders’ equity and the profit by SEK 132 million for the year 2007. 

In accordance with IFRS 1 Preem Petroleum AB (publ) has chosen not to translate acquisitions made in 
earlier years. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

According to IAS 16; Property, Plant and Equipment, depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
shall occur on the basis that non-current assets consist of components. According to the earlier method of 
depreciation used, some non-current assets have been depreciated over the average life of the components. At 
the time IFRS was adopted for the first time all non-currents assets of the group were divided into components. 
An adjustment of the depreciation periods, based on the useful lives of the components, has resulted in a 
positive effect of MSEK 124 on the property, plant and equipment of the group as well as a negative effect of 
MSEK 2 on the profit for the year.  

Employee Benefits 

In accordance with IAS 19, Employee Benefits, pension plans are classed as either defined benefit 
plans or defined contribution plans. Defined contribution plans are used within the group. According to defined 
contribution plans the benefits received by employees and previous employees are based on the salaries at the 
time of retirement and on the number of years of service. Preem Petroleum AB (publ) bears the risk if the fund 
does not hold sufficient assets to pay the benefits and also bears the actuarial and the investment risks. At the 
time IFRS was adopted Preem accounted for all actuarial gains and losses in the Balance sheet at the date of 
adoption, i.e. January 1, 2007. This has led to a negative effect of MSEK 152 (including special employer’s 
contribution) as of January 1, 2007 and MSEK 148 as of December 31, 2007.  

Preem Petroleum AB’s (publ) decision is to record actuarial gains and losses according to the so-called 
corridor approach. 

Deferred taxes 

IAS 12, Income Taxes. The preliminary IFRS adjustments that have been calculated based on the 
transition effects that have been identified in different accounting standards have caused a deferred tax asset of 
MSEK 8 in total, net, as of January 1, 2007. This net asset is split between a deferred tax asset of MSEK 43 with 
respect to employee benefits and a deferred tax liability related to property, plant and equipment of MSEK 35.  

As of December 31, 2007, the total deferred tax asset amounts to MSEK 7. The net asset is divided 
between a deferred tax asset of MSEK 41 related to employee benefit and a deferred tax liability of MSEK 34 
related to property, plant and equipment. 
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Note 23.  Transition to IFRS (Continued) 

Minority interests 

In accordance with IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, the minority interests shall be 
separately presented within equity in the balance sheet instead of as an entry between shareholders’ equity and 
liabilities. In the income statement, profit or loss attributable to minority interests should no longer be adjusted 
for in the income statement but instead be included in the reported profit or loss for the period. At the end of the 
income statement the portion of the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent and the 
portion attributable to minority interests of the subsidiaries shall be specified. The total amount of shareholders’ 
equity increases thus by MSEK 8 as of January 1, 2007 and by MSEK 9 for the year 2007. The profit for the 
year is increased by MSEK 1.5. 

Accumulated translation gains/losses on consolidation 

In accordance with IAS 21, Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, exchange rate differences 
relating to investments in foreign operations shall be recognized as a separate component of equity. On the 
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences shall be recognized in profit 
or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized. Preem Petroleum AB (publ) has chosen to set the 
translation gains/losses on consolidation to zero as of January 1, 2007 in accordance with IFRS 1. 

Financial instruments and hedges 

IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, requires derivatives to be measured at 
fair value. As of January 1, 2007 Preem Petroleum AB (publ) has interest rate derivatives held with the purpose 
to reduce the interest rate risks on loans. Preem Petroleum AB (publ) also has oil swaps in order to reduce the 
uncertainties in values of future sales. These derivatives have previously been measured at fair value in 
accordance with IAS 39. In addition, so-called embedded derivatives have been identified in connection to 
actual purchase and sales contracts. These derivatives have previously not been measured at fair value, which is 
required by IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amounts according to IAS 39 and the previous carrying 
amounts will be recognized directly in equity in accordance with the transition rules of IFRS 1 as of January 1, 
2007. The analysis of the preliminary effects of the transition is currently in process and is expected to be 
completed by the end of the first quarter 2008. 
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Note 23.  Transition to IFRS (Continued) 

Balance sheet As of 
 January 1, 2007 December 31, 2007 
Shareholder’s equity as per earlier principles .................................. 1,898 4,099 
   
IFRS 3 Business Combinations ............................................................. — 132 
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.................................................. 124 122 
IAS 19 Employee Benefits .................................................................... (152) (148) 
IAS 27 Minority shareholding ............................................................... 8 9 
IAS 12 Deferred tax............................................................................... 8 7 
   
Shareholders’ equity as per IFRS ...................................................... 1,886 4,221 
   
   
Income statement   
  Year ended 

December 31, 2007 
Net profit as per earlier principles .....................................................  2,201 
   
IFRS 3 Business Combinations .............................................................  132 
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment..................................................  (2) 
IAS 19 Employee Benefits ....................................................................  4 
IAS 27 Minority shareholding ...............................................................  1 
IAS 12 Deferred tax...............................................................................  (1) 
   
Net profit as per IFRS .........................................................................  2,335 
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